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VEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 - - MORNI NG SESSI ON

JUDGE CLI FTON: W're back on record on Cctober 14, 2015.
It's a Wednesday, it is 9:13 in the norning, and we're in
Covis, California. M nane is Jill difton, I'"'mthe United
States Admi nistrative Law Judge whose been assigned to take in
the evidence at this m |k hearing.

Today is Day 15 of the hearing -- that's 15. As |
nmentioned at the end of |ast week, truly has been amazing. |
just wanted to conplinment all of those who prepared and are
presenting evidence at this hearing. [I'mwell aware that those
peopl e who are here for the entire hearing are al so working
before and after the hearing, sonme of you are putting in 16 or
18- hour days, and | appreciate it very nuch. | appreciate the
expertise that you are lending so that the Secretary will have

all of the evidence needed to choose wisely.

| would like -- my nane is Jill difton. |I'ma United
States Adm nistrative Law Judge. |'menployed by the United
States Departnent of Agriculture. | would like to take

appear ances of those participating, beginning with other USDA
enpl oyees.

M5. TAYLOR Good norning. M nane is Erin Taylor.
E-R-I1-N, T-AY-L-OR [I'ma Marketing Specialist with USDA AMS
Dairy Program

M5. MAY: Good norning, |'mLaurel May, L-A-UR-EL, MAY,
USDA AMS Dairy Prograns.
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MR. CARMAN.  Good norning, Cifford Carman, CGA-RMA-N,
Assistant to the Deputy Adm nistrator Dairy Prograns.

MS. ELLIOIT: Panela Elliott, E-L-L-1-OT-T, USDA, AN,
Dairy Program

MR, NIERMAN.  Good norning, Jason Nierman, N-1-E-R MA-N
Assi stant Market Admi nistrator Federal Oder 5, on detail with
ANVS Dairy Prograrns.

M5. BECKER  Good norning, Lauren Becker, B-E-C K-E-R USDA
O fice of the General Counsel.

MR HLL: Good norning, Brian HIIl, B-RI-A-N HI-L-L,
O fice of the General Counsel.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | would like nowto take the appearances of
those who are part of the teamfor a proponent or an opponent.

MR, BESHORE: CGood norning, Marvin Beshore, MA-RV-I-N,
B-E-SHORE, attorney representing the three dairy farners
cooperatives who are the proponents of Proposal Nunmber 1,
California Dairies, Dairy Farnmers of Anerica, and Land O Lakes.

MR, HOLLON:  Good norning, I'mElvin Hollon, E-L-V-I-N
HOL-L-ON and | work for Dairy Farmers of Anerica, one of
t he proponents of Proposal 1.

MR. SCHAD. Good norning, ny name is Dennis Schad,
SCGHAD | wrk for Land O Lakes.

DR. ERBA: Good norning, Eric Erba, EERI-C, E-RB-A |
work for California Dairies, Inc.

MR. ENGLI SH: Good norning, your Honor, ny nane is Chip
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English, EENGL-1-S-H, |I'man Attorney with the Iaw firm of
Davis, Wight, Tremaine. M/ office is in Washington DC, and
' mappearing on behalf of the Dairy Institute of California,
proponents of Proposal Nunber 2.

M5. VULIN. Good norning, Ashley Vulin, AS-HL-EY, V, as
in Victor -- WL-1-N, also an attorney for the Dairy Institute
of California.

DR SCH EK: Good norning, WIlliam Schiek, S-CGHI-E-K
Economi st with the Dairy Institute of California.

MS. KALDOR  Good norning, Rachel Kaldor, R A-CHE-L,
K-A-L-D-OR Executive Director of Dairy Institute of
Cali fornia.

MR RAM REZ: Good norning, Mguel Ramrez, MI-GUE-L,
RAMI-RE-Z Drector of Economcs, Leprino Foods, Denver,
Col or ado.

MR DeJONG Janes Deldong, J-A-ME-S, De-J-ONG I'mwth
H | mar Cheese, a dairy farner-owned manufacturer of cheese,
whey, and m |k powders.

MR ZOLIN. Good norning, nmy nane is Alan Zolin, A-L-AN,
Z-OL-1-N, I"'ma consultant here representing H |l mar Cheese
Conpany.

MR. VETNE: Good norning, John Vetne, V-E-T-N-E, I'malso a
representative for H |l mar Cheese Conpany.

MS. HANCOCK: Nicole Hancock. HA-NCOCK, Stoel Rives,
ST-OGEL, RI-V-E-S, | represent the California Producer
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Handl ers Associ ation and Ponderosa Dairy.

MR, LAI: Good norning, Victor Lai, spelled L-A-l1, I'mwth
Producers Dairy Foods, a menber of the California Producer
Handl ers Associ ati on.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | would like now to take appearances of any
ot her participants who have not yet identified thensel ves.

MR MLTNER. Good norning, Ryan MItner, MI-L-T-NE-R
representing the Select M|k Producers.

MS. AcMOODY: Good norning, Annie AcMbody, A-c-MOODY
with Western United Dairymnen.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is there anyone else here who is likely to
testify today, if you would cone forward and identify yourself
at this tine. Al right. | see no one at this tine.

| would like to take initial announcements, any ot her
prelimnary matters, beginning with those fromthe
U S. Department of Agriculture.

M5. MAY: Good norning. Laurel My.

As you know, we're all here to hear proposals for a
Marketing Order for mlk in California, and we're grateful for
those of you who have conme to participate in this hearing. |If
anybody would like to testify, they are wel come to do so, just
| et one of us know. Pam who wll raise her hand, is taking
that role on this week of keeping track of our w tnesses and
our exhibits. Anybody in the audience nay al so ask questions

of any of the wtnesses, so if you would |like to do that,
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pl ease conme to the podium and the Judge will acknow edge you.

W are broadcasting this hearing session via |live audio
feed, but we have had to change our link. So for those of you
who want to notify your people out in the field about the new
link for this audio feed, it is www anms. usda. gov/live.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Say it again, please, M. Muy.

M5. MAY: Ckay. www. ans.usda.gov/live. And as you know,
the court reporter is recording official transcripts of the
hearing, which are avail able about two weeks after the end of
each hearing week. And as of this week, we have the
transcripts and exhibits fromthe first week up, so if you go
to our website, you can see those and they are listed by week.
The transcripts are listed by week and the there's two separate
l'inks, one for exhibits one for transcripts.

"1l tell you what the website is for that, too, just
In case you care:
WWw. ans. usda. gov/ rul es-regul ati ons/ MOA/ dai ry/ CA
['lIl read that to you again:
www. ans. usda. gov/ rul es-regul ati ons/ MOA/ dai ry/ CA

We do have some copies of sone of the exhibits on the
table in the back of the roomthere, they are going fast
t hough, so get "emwhile they are hot.

Ch, also | was going to tell you that CDFA, over the
weekend, updated their website where they had posted the tables

that they entered into the exhibit |ast week, and they have
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added the table nunber to each of those tables so you can find
t hem nore qui ckly, because they are not in al phabetical order
so you can go down the list and find the one that you are

| ooking for nore quickly, I think.

| was asked also to | et you know t hat next week on
Thursday and Friday we will be nmoving this hearing to the
Piccadilly Inn at the Airport just for Thursday and Friday, and
then the following week, if we are still in hearing, we wll be
returning back here to the Liberty Room on Mnday, Cctober
26t h.

At the end of the day on Friday, M. Hollon was on the
stand being cross-exam ned, and | believe that's where we're
going to start today. Although | have been inforned that we
have a producer comng who would like to be able to speak this
afternoon, or testify this afternoon. That's what | have.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Excellent. Thank you. | have the docket
number which | would like to read in the record, in brackets,
[AQ and then docket nunber 15-0071. That is how the Hearing
Cerk within the U S. Departnent of Agriculture has designated
this case. The caption, by the way, is In Re: MIk in
Cali fornia.

All right. | would like to hear fromanyone else with
prelimnary matters. |f they are statements fine, if they are
questions, also fine. None at this tinme. And anyone, feel

free to take the mcrophone to raise issues about prelimnary

2886

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

matters, or procedures, or location, and duration, and those
ki nds of things.

All right. There being no other prelimnary nmatters, |
woul d li ke to have us continue with the testinony.

M. Hollon, you are welcone to take the stand. W are
in the cross-examnation phase of M. Hollon. And M. English,
you may resumne.

M. Hol I on, although you are already sworn, you remain
sworn, | would like you again to state and spell your nane.

MR HOLLON Elvin, E-L-V-I-N, Hollon, HOL-L-ON.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.
CONTI NUED CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Good nmorning, M. Hollon

A, Good norning, M. English.

Q Sol would like to start with a coupl e housekeepi ng
matters, your Honor. Friday we identified Exhibit 65 whichis
a map of Nevada with counties and colors, and | apol ogi ze, at
the time | said it was fromthe website, but | actually have
the website now and | can provide that, and then ask for this
docunent to be admtted.

It's http://geol ogy. com st at e- map/ nevada. shtml .
JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. |If back slashes don't work, then
forward sl ashes?

MR. ENGLISH. | guess we have technical differences. Yeah,
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it is the slash that -- yes, if other people consider that a
forward slash, it's the slash that normally is used, and if
ot her people call that a forward slash, that's fine.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Ckay.
MR. ENGLI SH: So would | ask that Exhibit 65 be admtted.
JUDCGE CLIFTON. Al right. So basically, say it in words,
| think got it all, but just say it in words without spelling.
MR, ENGLI SH: Htp://geol ogy. cont st at e- map/ Nevada. shtml .
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. Al right. Wth regard to
Exhibit 65, is there any objection to it being admtted into
evidence? There is none. Exhibit 65 is admtted into
evi dence.
(Thereafter, Exhibit 65 was
received into evidence.)
MR. ENGLI SH: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MR HOLLON:

Q Next, this is a housekeeping matter -- M. Hollon, |
believe it was last Friday, but it could have been in your
earlier testinony, we discussed the Wstern Order, the former
Western Order, Order 135, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And when we were discussing it, you declined to agree
with me or for confidentiality reasons, would not speak to the
question of how it came about that that Order was term nated,

correct?
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A 1 think | declined to discuss DFA's vote on that as a
way orders, the way final decisions are voted on.

Q So do you recall participating in, both attendi ng and
testifying at the Central Marketing Area, what you have used to
be cal |l ed pooling hearing, that took place in 2004? So the
second of the two Central Order proceedings, it was held in
Decenber of 2004, in Kansas City, Mssouri?

A | don't recall, but I likely was there and did testify.

Q Ckay. And, your Honor, the docket nunber for that is
AO 313- A48; DA-04-06, and the proceeding title was, MIlk in the
Central Marketing Area; | guess MIk in the Central Marketing
Area. | was going to say Final Decision, but that's not part
of the proceeding necessarily. Do you remenber at that
proceedi ng being asked by M. Vetne about the term nation of
the Western Order?

A. | do not.

Q Your Honor, | provided to USDA, Panela, and yourself,
M. Hollon, and the court reporter -- to USDA provided three
copies -- and | think there may be a tiny bit of confusion
because there an exhibit nunber on it already, so | want to
di scuss that. But this is a three-page docunent which we
pul l ed off the Internet fromDairy Prograns' prior hearings,
that docket number, Exhibit nunber 25 was the exhibit nunmber
gi ven that docunent in that proceeding 11 years ago. And in

bol d there's a statement DFA Supports USDA' s Proposal to
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Term nate FOL35. And above that there is a website which was
the original source of this information, that is to say this is
a public docunent on the DFA website, and it references
Western Order termnation
So I would ask that this be marked by the next exhibit
nunber, and obviously, in sone way as to not have confusion
because of the Exhibit nunber 25 Metropolitan fromthe earlier
proceedi ng.
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. It will be alittle hard to
pl ace an exhibit sticker on this document wthout obliterating
any of the document. | don't want any of it to be obliterated.
So in placing the exhibit sticker on, you may need to put it at
the top, but not in a horizontal position, in a vertica
position to the left of Exhibit number 25, if it will fit
t here.
Yes, M. Carnman, can you, do you have a suggestion as
to how we can do it?
MR CARMAN It fits, could we just strike through the 25?
JUDGE CLIFTON:  No, no. Qur sticker nunber will be right
next toit, | don't think it will cause any confusion. | don't
want to obliterate any of the source docunent. So it's an odd
way to put on a sticker, but it works. Better than
obliterating any of the exhibit.
All right. So have we marked this exhibit as

Exhi bit 667
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THE WTNESS: That's correct
JUDGE CLIFTON:  I'lIl mark mne as Exhibit 66 as well.
(Thereafter, Exhibit 66 was narked
for identification.)
And | invite everyone else to do so.
M. Hollon, do you want sone time to read through it before
you have to answer any questions?
MR, HOLLON:  No, I'm prepared.
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. M. English, you nay resume
your questioning.
MR, ENG.lI SH: Thank you.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So this docunent is actually a three-page docunent, the
second and third page after a nmodest carry over froman article
or something dated January 15, 2004, is a separate article, but
it's connected, and it says, DFA says "no" for Amendnents to
Western Order, and that's dated October 31, 2003.

So M. Hollon, first, do you recogni ze these press
rel eases?

A. | don't recognize them but there's no doubt they are
what they say they are.

Q So nowif this docunent, which was available in 2004,
you | ooked at it, |ooking at pages 2 and 3, would you agree
that when the proposed anended order cane out, DFA voted not to

support the anmended changes and basically voted agai nst the
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anendnent ?

A, Yes, | would agree.

Q And then looking at the first page, the article dated
January 15th, 2004, do you agree that DFA supported the
elimnation of Federal Oder 135, the term nation of Federal
Order 1357

A, Yes, | would agree.

Q Your Honor, I'd nove adm ssion of Exhibit 66

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is there anyone who wi shes to question the

W t ness before determ ning whether you have an objection?
There is no one. Is there any objection to the adm ssion into
evidence of Exhibit 66? There is none. Exhibit 66 is admtted
I nto evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 66 was

received into evidence.)
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So when we broke |ast Friday, M. Hollon, we were in
the m ddl e of discussing Proposal Nunber 1, Section 7(c)(1),
having to deal with a plant located in Churchill County. Do
you recall that?

A | do.

Q And do you recall discussing the fact that Dairy
Farners of Anmerica also supplies mlk to a plant in Reno,
Nevada, it's a Cass 1 distributing plant?

A. Correct.
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Q I'mgoing to hand anot her docunent. W had some nodest
issues with the copier not being available earlier this
norni ng, so sone of these docunents, they are identical, but
sonme of the documents we passed out, the ones that are for the
court reporter and for your Honor and M. Hollon are printed on
both sides, so it is a one piece of paper printed on both
sides. W actually had the front desk here in the building
make us sone copies earlier because we weren't sure the copier
woul d be readily avail abl e, and those copies are the identica
docurnent, but printed on two pages. So | would |like to have
this marked as the next nunber, your Honor.
JUDGE CLIFTON: WII this be Exhibit nunmber 67?
MS. ELLIOIT: That's correct.
JUDCGE CLIFTON: It will. So you may mark your copies as
Exhibit 67.
(Thereafter, Exhibit 67 was narked
for identification.)

MR. ENGISH  The front, okay, for those who have it

printed on two sides of the paper -- thank you, M. Beshore, |
saw where that was going -- the, actually the pages are
nunbered 1 and 2 but -- | understand -- the heading is the

same, Analysis of Proposal 1-Proposed Section 1051.7(c), and
then it says July 2015-CSO for California State O der prices,
i's page 1.

Page 2 is July 2015-1mputed FMMO Pri ces.
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BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So, M. Hollon, what | have done here is using your
Exhibit 64, | don't know if you have that with you this
nor ni ng.

A | do.

Q And the tables that | have listed on the right hand
side, and | have gone to the nost recent nonth that is
avai | abl e, July 2015, and so taken directly fromyour tables, |
have used the Northern California Class 1 price, and that is
because | think you and | agree that today, Nevada uses, for

Reno, the California Federal prices for Northern California,

correct?
A. Correct.
Q And then on the next line, | have used O ass 4a, again

fromJuly 2015, and | have listed the California State O der
bl end that you used, again fromExhibit 64 and the California
State Order Overbase. So in the fifth line | have sinply nmade
an assunption that 90 percent of the mlk at the Reno plant is
Cass 1 and 10 percent is 4a. And that would establish, if you
accept ny math, a plant blend of $17.88. Wth nme so far?

A So far.

Q And you agree with me that when we use the term pl ant
blend, that is |looking at a specific plant, what its val ue of
the mlk at classified values and vol unes woul d work out to be,

correct?
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A, Correct.

Q So going back to Friday, we were discussing that to the
extent DFA today delivers mlk to that plant in Reno, and
assumng a 90 percent Cass 1 and a 10 percent O ass 4a, you
woul d get a plant blend, and if ny math is right, $17.88,
correct?

A If your math is right, correct.

Q Now, the next piece of page 1 has a long title,
Cooperative Receipts for MIk Delivered to Reno Plant with
Renmai nder Recei ved and Processed in the O ass 4a products,
assum ng a Federal M1k Oder, but it is CSO prices, using
California State Order class prices. And what | have done is
t aken those nunbers from above, which are the first two
numbers, Class 1 at $18.42 and $13.03, so you have got, in
essence, in the first part of the second colum, where for
80 percent Reno receipts you have a val ue of $16.91, you have
got $17.88 times 80 percent. Wich, if you go up, again, if ny
math is right, the $17.88 is the plant blend for the Reno
facility based upon a 90/10 ratio, but nowif that's 80 percent
of the total receipts for DFA going to the Reno plant and the
Fall on plant, you would have $17.88 times 80 percent, and as |
t hi nk we have discussed, the Fallon plant produces nonfat dry
m | k products?

A, Correct.

Q Wich wiuld be dass 4a, correct?
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A, Correct.

Q And so the 20 percent is at the Gass 4a price which is
the second |ine above. Do you see that?

A Yes, | follow

Q kay. So what | have tried to show is what those
val ues woul d be and what they woul d generate. And again,
assuming ny math is correct, would that show what woul d
generate to DFA if there were 80 percent Reno receipts, $16.91?

A, This would be a reasonabl e conpari son of what the price
woul d be.

Q \Wat the price that DFA woul d receive using the prices
that woul d be regul ated under these assunptions?

A. Correct.

Q And then | used 60 percent and 50 percent, obviously
don't know what DFA's receipts are, and |I'mnot expecting you
to tell ne, but the fourth line, and | admt because | backed
intoit, | show what receipts would be at Reno, which woul d be
26.6 percent, versus what receipts would be at Fallon in order
to calcul ate a nunber that would match the overbase of $14.32
for the nonth of July. Do you see that?

A | see that.

Q And would you agree if ny nunbers are correct, that
that woul d be, that that woul d be approxi mate, would be a val ue
that DFA coul d generate based upon its sales both to Reno and

Fal | on?
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A Yes.

Q Gkay. And by the way, if people go to re-create this,
there could be rounding errors of a penny, what | did, | went
out to three decimal places. So | had three decimal places for
the 17.88 tinmes 26.6, | added that to three decinal places of
13.03 times 73 -- and | apol ogi ze, that should be 73.4, but |
did that, it would have carried over to the next line -- but
you could look at that and say it is 14.33 versus 14.32. But
that's howit worked out. So that's the first category.

So now | want you to go down to the next one, which is
Cooperative Receipts for MIk Delivered to Reno Plant Wth
Remai nder Received and Processed Into 4a Products.

Assum ng a Federal MIk Order but at California State
Order prices still, nowusing the California State Order class
price and the overbase price. And that is, just assumng for a
noment that a Federal Order were adopted but the prices stayed
the same, that is to say we used the California State O der
prices, | was trying to show a conparison simlar to above.
And effectively, the only real difference is that the class,
what was the O ass 4a value of $13.03 in the first set of
numbers, | now used a California State O der overbase of
$14.32. Do you follow that?

A 1 think so. | wll hear the rest.

Q Al right. Well, this is what | think we were

di scussing on Friday, that if a Federal Order were adopted, and
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in this case using California State Order prices, DFA would,
for the mlk delivered to Reno, get the plant blend, and on the
mlk going to Fallon, get the overbase, correct? That's what
we were discussing on Friday when I ran out of tinme.

A Ch -- yes.

Q kay. And again, if ny nunbers are correct, | have run
80 percent, 60 percent, 50 percent to show what DFA would
generate fromthe value of that mlk, correct?

A, Assumi ng your numbers are right, correct.

Q Ckay. And going to the last one, even though I call it
break even, effectively, if the mlk is pooled sonehow at
Fallon, you could literally deliver no mlk to Reno, and
because a hundred percent of the mlk would get the overbase
price, you would get the $14.32 on that mlk, correct?

A Yes.

Q Solet's goto page 2. Page 2 shows is instead of the
State Order prices, now |'musing again your exhibit. What
woul d be -- what woul d have been, excuse ne, Federal M|k
Marketing Order prices for July 2015. Do you follow ne?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. So, for instance, going to Exhibit 64, Table
5.A.6, the Federal MIk Oder California Class 1 is $18.45
because you woul d propose, or as part of Proposal Number 1,
your view is you have for Federal Order purposes, just one

price as opposed to a price for Northern California and

2898

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

Sout hern California, correct? You have 18.45 which is 3 cents
hi gher than page 1, because you bl ended, for want of a better
word, at 54/46 percent, those two values in Northern California
and Southern California, correct?

A 52/48, yes, it's actually, that's the 18.45 is the
proxy for a California average Cass 1 price.

Q | agree it is a proxy, which is why | used conputed, so
a proxy conputed.

A Ckay.

Q So that's where that 18.45 conmes from And now,
instead of Cass 4a, you have a Class IV, and from Tabl e 64,
Table 5.E. 8, that was 13.50; am| right?

A.  Assum ng you grabbed the right line, yes.

Q Wll, you are wel come to go | ook.
A 1"l trust you for now.
Q Al right. Then you had, on Table 64, Table 5. E. 8, the

FMMO bl end. And | do want you to go to Exhibit 64, Table 5.E. 8
for a nonent.

Ckay.

And | want you to go to the |ast page, Table 5.E. 8.

Al right.

For July 2015.

For July 2015, $15.51.

And that's what | have |isted as FMMO bl end, correct?

> O >» O >» O >

Correct.
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Q Now, at this point | just want to make sure | have got
this read correctly. As | understood the table, if you go over
to the right, to Colums H, |, and J, the $15.51 in Colum Cis
unadj usted for quota, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Gkay. |If you wanted to calculate the proxy for what
you call the FMMO non-quota blend, | understood that you woul d
take Colum C, you woul d subtract Columm H, subtract Colum I,
and add back Col um J.

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And that would give you the FMMO non-quota
bl end?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So if you see on the right hand side of the page
2, that's exactly what | have done, | have taken $15.51 and |
have subtracted, although |I did it mathematically, you add the
negati ve quota, you add the negative transport, and you
subtract the RQA as a positive nunber, subtract that, and
that's the $15.08?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. So you would agree the FMMO non-quota blend, if
| have done the math correctly, for the nonth of July 2015
woul d have been $15.08?

A Yes.

Q Thank you. So now Table 2 follows the format of, I'm
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sorry, page 2 follows the format of page 1, but now uses the
nunbers that we have just discussed for a proxy for Federal
MIk Marketing Orders. So the next line | have got inputed,
Reno plant bl end, again assuming, trying to say apples to

appl es, 90 percent Cass I, and 10 percent Class IV. And

made an assunption that Nevada prices would change to natch the
FMMO prices, and you agreed with me that the way the Nevada
statute works, that that is what Nevada woul d have to do.

A.  Yes, or change the statute.

Q O change the statute. But based upon existing
| egi sl ation, that's what Nevada woul d do.

A. Correct.

Q Al right. So on the right hand side for inmputed Reno
pl ant bl end, again, assuming ny math is correct, |'ve done the
very same thing | did on page 1, and instead of having $17. 88,
| end up with $17.92, and that's a function of 3 cents higher
on 90 percent, and 12 cents higher on 10 percent.

Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q You agree again, if ny math is correct, that would be
an accurate representation of what that plant blend woul d be?

A Yes.

Q So in the next box, and this is literally trying to
mmc the box on page 1 that was Cooperative Receipts for MIKk

Delivered to Reno Plant if Remni nder Recei ved and Processed
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into what was 4a, but now is Cooperative Receipts for MIk
Delivered to Reno Plant with Remai nder Received and Processed
into dass IV Products, assum ng a Federal M|k Order and at
Federal , FMMO prices, now using the FMMO cl ass and i nmputed
non-quota blend price, and | apol ogi ze, actually this
conparison is to box 2 at the bottomof page 1. So this now
shows, if ny math is correct, that at 80 percent Reno receipts,
what DFA woul d receive on that mlk is $17.35, correct?

A Assuming your math is correct, yes.

Q Wich, if you |ook at page 1, the bottombox is 18
cents higher than it would receive if you didn't have, if you
are using the California State Order prices, correct? Because
there's a difference between $17.35 and $17. 17.

A Yes.

Q And again, |ooking at Zero percent Reno receipts, if
there's had been a Federal Order for 2015, |ooking at zero
percent Reno receipts, you could ship nothing to Reno, 100
percent to Fallon, and get the FMMO non-quota bl end of $15.08,
correct?

A, Correct.

Q And now for the very last box, and | know that you are
not going to agree this is what woul d happen, but obviously it
is Dairy Institute's intention that out-of-state m |k which
cannot own quota, would need to have a Federal Order blend

price. And so for illustration purposes, and | realize that
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you and your group do not buy into the |legal argunent on this,
but for illustration purposes, the only change here between the
box imredi ately above that shows $15.08 FMMO non-quota bl end,
is that instead of using $15.08 in the second cal cul ation, |

have used the FMMO bl end of $15.51. Do you see that?

A, Actually, do that one nore time? | understand what you
are trying to do, but | just don't -- I"'mnot lining up the
nunbers.

Q Ckay. So for the box we just discussed --

A Yes.

Q -- we used the $17.92, tines the various percentages
for Reno and that cane fromthe inmputed Reno bl end price.

A Ckay.

Q And we used 15.08, which is the FMMO non-quota blend to
do the calculation. The only difference is instead of using
the 15.08 FMMO non-quota blend, I'msaying if the Secretary
woul d determ ne that out-of-state mlk should instead get the
traditional FMMO bl end using your own Exhibit 64, Table 5.E. 8,
that would be 15.51 rather than 15.08. Do you see that?

A Yes, | do.

Q Gkay. And so in that case, if you have zero percent
Reno receipts, you could, at the Fallon plant, as Proposal 1
has presently witten, if the Secretary were to determ ne that
out-of -state mlk needs the traditional FMMO bl end, you could

actually obtain the 15.51 FWMO bl end at that plant, correct?
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A Yes.

Q Your Honor, | nove adm ssion of Exhibit 667

JUDGE CLI FTON: Who would Iike to question the witness on
this before determ ning whether you have any objections to it

being adm tted? ©h, do you have something prelimnary to that?

MR, ENGLISH First of all, it is 67, so that would be an
i mmedi ate problem it is not 66. And actually, |I'mnot going
to offer it at this time, I'lIl offer it through a different
witness. |'Il offer it through a different w tness.

MR. BESHORE: | wasn't going to question the w tness, but
before it was admtted, | was going to ask if we had had a
chance --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Come to the m crophone, please,
M. Beshore, and start again just in case there's sonebody who
coul dn't hear.

MR, BESHORE: Marvin Beshore. | have no questions for the
W tness on the docunent, but before it was, if it was being
offered into evidence, ny question was, wouldn't we have the

opportunity to cross-exam ne the author of the docunent?

MR, ENGI SH. The answer is no. | have seen | awers on the
W tness stand here and it doesn't go well. In fact, | would
offer it, but, you know what? |'mgoing to hold off this line

of questions because it does seemto ne fair to allow people to
run the math for thenmselves. And |I'm happy to do that and

maybe offer it |later today, and | can al so sponsor it through a
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different witness. But | do recognize that one issue is, you
know, | ooking at the math, so |'mactually not going to offer
it at this tinme.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | have sone questions | would |like you to
enlighten me on, M. English, and this is not in the nature of
exam nation, |'mnot expecting you to serve as a W tness here.
You have chosen certain assunmptions and | need sone help in
under st andi ng why they illustrate something.

What kind of plant is the plant at Fallon?

MR. ENGLI SH: The witness has explained that it is a plant
that nakes what are known as Class 4a plants under California
and it would be IV under Federal Order; is that correct,

M. Hollon? The plant at Fallon?

MR. HOLLON:  Yes, that is correct.

MR ENGLI SH. Ckay.

JUDGE CLI FTON: All right. And is it located in
California or Nevada?

MR ENGISH It is located in Churchill County, Nevada, in
the city or around the city of Fallon. | have never been there
so | couldn't tell you whether it is in the city limts or
outside the city limts.

MR. HOLLON:  That is correct.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: All right. So when you are show ng us
possibilities with Exhibit 67, what we are mndful of is two

plants that are |ocated in Nevada.
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MR ENGISH  That is correct, your Honor.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Ckay. What does Reno nmake?

MR ENGLISH It is what is conventionally known as a

Cass | operation. It has other products other than Cass I.
For sinplification | was just trying to illustrate at 90/10, it
woul d al nost certainly have what are known as Cass Il, or used
to, whether it does today, | can't say, but at |east at one
time it did. It would be, the only way it would have Cass I1I
would be if Cass Il for the nonth was the | owest price and
then it is shrinkage ended up in dass IlIl. So | was assum ng

sort of a conventional nmonth where Cass IVis the | ownest
price, so we have sonme shrinkage and sone other things, but it
is Class | operation.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Do you know now what witness you will call
bef ore you nove adm ssion of Exhibit 6772

MR ENGISH | think I know one of two, or both. But |
have to consult with themas to that, but | think I know And
Dr. Schiek is nodding his head yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: All right. Thank you. And you nay
continue your cross-exam nation of M. Hollon.

MR. ENGLI SH: Thank you.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So M. Hollon, going to your testimony which is
Exhibit 63, | want to | ook at page 18. And actually, for

clarity since, again, we're starting today, let's look at 17
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and 18, the bottomof 17 over to page 18.

A Ckay.

Q And what we're |looking at here is the section,
paragraph B of who is not a producer, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And B.5 on the bottomof 17, you say "a Dairy Program
farnmer described in Paragraph B.5 of this section shall be
known as a dairy farmer for other markets." Correct?

A, Correct.

Q And you then have 4.B.5 on page 18, that "a dairy
farmer for other markets shall mean a dairy farner who, having
had a Grade A permt, has marketed m |k as other than G ade A
mlk for nmore than 30 consecutive days and shall not be a
producer until twelve consecutive nmonths have passed fromthe
time non-Gade A status started." Correct?

A. Correct.

Q And that provision, B.5, effectively would bring into
the Federal Order the existing opportunity/limtation on
California producers voluntarily on January 1st of the year,
giving up their Grade A status and staying out of the pool for
a year, correct?

A. At sone point, it may not necessarily be January 1st,
but at some point they have producers --

Q I'msorry.

A. -- Gade A status change, then they would be out of the
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pool under these under these paraneters.

Q Andisn't it true that in California today, that
parameter or simlar parameter exists in the California State
Order?

A Yes.

Q So you are, in essence, in B.5trying to at |east match
over to that limtation, correct?

A Yes.

Q kay. Now, you have been involved in Federal Orders
how many years?

A, 30.

Q And | have no quibble with your putting B.5 in, but I
wonder why you didn't include a B.6, which is a nore
traditional version of a Dairy farmer for other narkets found
in Federal Orders. And |I'mgoing to pass out a docunent which
| don't intend to nake an exhibit, but harking back to | ast
Friday, | understand peopl e need to have docunents.

This is, what I'mgoing to hand out is a two-page
docunent from7 CFR, and it is, the first page is a carry over,
| was trying to say paper, so it is order 1124.13 and it starts
wth 4 but it has paragraph 5. And the second page is order
131, which is the Arizona Order. So 124 is the Pacific
Nort hwest, 131 is the Arizona Order. And so this is a two-page
docunent, again, I'mnot going to ask that it be made an

exhi bit.
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JUDCGE CLI FTON: Ckay. So you don't even want it identified

as an exhibit, it is just for us to | ook on?

MR, ENGLISH. | would accept the preface. | have al ready

made enough copies we can turn it into an exhibit,

to me you could take official notice at the end of

but it seens

t he

proceeding, and | wasn't intending just to |load up the hearing

record with docunents fromthe USDA. Literally what | was

doing fromlast Friday, your Honor, was rather than trying to

read a provision to the witness, | was just trying to have all

of us on the sane page to discuss it. So no, | was not

intending to identify it as an exhibit, | was not intending to

nove its adm ssion, but if USDA or any person would prefer for

the record to have it that way, | have no objection to treating

it that way, but | wasn't looking to it that way.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: The way | read records is, | have the

transcript in front of me and | have the exhibits in front of

nme, and when the transcript refers to an exhibit,

| | ook at

themboth. And it is useful. | think even though you may not

want to nove its admssion, if we could identify it, I think

that m ght be hel pful.

MR. ENG.I SH: Your Honor, | said | would be, whether it is

for your Honor, 1'd be particularly happy to accept any

recomrendations, and | have no problemw th that.
JUDCGE CLI FTON: All right. Let's do mark it.

it an exhibit. | realize it's excerpts of regul at
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can find it without the exhibit, but I think it is helpful when
going through a record to have it handy. Besides, if there's
any error in the transcript referring to it, the exhibit takes
care of that problem So let's call this Exhibit 67. 67.
Let's get three of them

68. So soon you will have three. W're marking this as
Exhibit 68. And | realize you are not trying to elevate its
status, M. English, but I still think as a practical matter
it's hel pful.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 68 was marked
for identification.)

MR. ENGLI SH: And, again, your Honor |'m happy to be
practical about it, | just didn't want to say, | didn't want to
nove every single docunent in, but | have others like this, and
so we wll do the sane.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q M. Hollon, while we're waiting for the extra copies, |
certainly invite you to peruse paragraph 5, which is on the
first page of Exhibit 68. And the page, simlar paragraph 5 on
the second page, and if you would like to have all the Order
| anguage | can certainly get you one of the reference books so
that you have all of 124.

A. | have a CFR

JUDGE CLIFTON: So while the rest of those are being

distributed, M. English, for the benefit of those people who
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are not in the roomwth us, would you again give the citation
to the Federal Register, excuse me, to the Code of Federa
Regul ations?

MR, ENGLI SH. Yes, thank you, your Honor. W are |ooking
at page 1 of what's been identified as Exhibit 68.

I[t's 7 CFR, Section 1124.12.

JUDGE CLI FTON: That's enough. That will get themthere.

MR, ENGLI SH: And then paragraph B.5 or whatever it is.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Wiich is the last paragraph of that
particul ar section.

MR ENGISH Actually, it's (a)(5), but yes, the |ast
section.

And then the second page is effectively | anguage very
simlar from7 CFR Section 1131.12, in the CFR, and it is also
par agr aph B(b) (5).

JUDGE CLIFTON:. O is it --

MR ENGISH (b) is at the bottomof the left hand col um,
and simlarly, (b)(5) of the other. It says producer shall not
i nclude, which effectively natches up. Not word for word, and
not paragraph for paragraph, but it's simlar to the |anguage
we're | ooking at on pages 17 and 18 on Exhibit 68.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you. That's hel pful .

MR ENGISH And | didn't put all of themin, because
there's other orders, like Oder 1 has a simlar provision

right, M. Hollon?
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MR, HOLLON: It does.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Sothisusesinitalics a dairy farnmer for other
markets, in both page 1 and 2 of Exhibit 68. And would you
agree with me that the purpose of paragraph (b)(5) on page 1,
and page 2 is to provide a financial disincentive for basically
pooling mlk, and then otherw se getting a non-pool blend val ue
out of the remainder of the mlk?

A | would say, | generally agree with that. And | m ght
add, it is to, in some ways, deal with opportunistic pooling.
So it attenpts to provide, this |anguage provi des sone
limtations to that.

Q But that |language is not in your Proposal 1, correct?
Language like it is not in Proposal 1, is it?

A Not in-- the intent, | think, is there. The actual
verbiage and the way it mght play out, is, if that's what you
nmean, is not there. In a simlar manner to, for exanple
contrasting maybe the Order 1 |anguage with the O der 124 and
131, all three are not identical, but they serve a simlar
pur pose.

Q Looking at the Arizona | anguage, which is page 2, it
reads, paragraph (b)(5):

A dairy farmer whose mlk is received at a pool
plant, if during the month mlk fromthe sane farm
is received at a nonpool plant, (except a nonpoo

pl ant that has no utilization of mlk products in
any class other than Cass Ill or Cass |V)
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ot her than as producer milk under the order in
this part or sone other Federal Order. Such dairy
farnmer shoul d be known as a dairy farner for other
mar ket s.

If that | anguage were included in Proposal 1 or
Proposal 2 for that matter, would you agree that that |anguage
woul d prevent the results shown on Exhibit 67?

A I'mnot -- Exhibit 67?2

Q 67 is the chart that has not been admtted but shows
sort of what woul d happen, especially on page 2 under Federa
Order. Basically the ability to get the plant blend out of the
Reno plant, and either the FMMO non-quota blend or the FMMO
bl end out of the Fallon plant?

A, I'mnot certain. | haven't had tinme to study that, but
we did choose the | anguage we chose because we thought it fit
our situation better than the other dairy farmer for other
mar ket provi si ons.

Q Do you agree that the | anguage you have presently
chosen does not prevent any scenari os under Exhibit 677?

A. Again, with the proviso | have not had a chance to
study 67, | think that that's correct.

Q Thank you. D d you bring the Federal Register Notice
up Wi th you today?

A |1 did. Wit, nol did not. | brought what I thought
it was, but it turned out to be one of the previous hearings.

Q | think Laurel is taking care of that.
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A | have it.

Q | want to also retrace our steps a little bit to our
di scussion | ast Friday before focusing in on general questions
on that's turned into specific questions about what has been
mar ked as Exhibit 67.

And | want to | ook at page 47213 and Section 1051. 13,
producer mlk. And | want to | ook focus on paragraph B
whi ch - -

A. B as in boy?

Q B as in boy.

A Thank you.

Q Received by a handl er described in 1000.9(c) in excess
of a quantity delivered to pool plants.

A Ckay.

Q And so for clarity in the record, 9(c) is a cooperative
association acting on behalf of its menbers, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Now, obviously, producer m |k under paragraph (a) --
(a) reads, "received by the operator of a pool plant directly
for a producer or handl er described in 1000.9(c)." So that is
mlk that that is received at the pool plant. 9(b) is mlk
that is in excess the of the quantity delivered to a poo
plant, correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So once a producer has been designated as poo
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producer because it has shipped to a pool plant, then under
paragraph (b) all mlk that was reported by a Cooperative in
excess of what is actually delivered to the pool plant, could
continue to be producer mlk until the Cooperative

de- desi gnates, correct?

A. Correct.

Q That provision is not available to proprietary
operators, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And harking back to our discussion on Friday before we
were focusing in specifically on Churchill County and what's
turned into Exhibit 67, that would nean that once mlk from
what ever |ocation, either inside or outside California, has
been received at a pool plant such as Proposal 1's Churchil
County facility, that then thereafter, that mlk could be
recei ved at a nonpool plant, but listed by the Cooperative as
recei ved and remain producer mlk, correct?

A. | would say there, that once you go to a nonpool plant
you are going to fall under the guidelines and characteristics
of nonpool plant which are listed later in this section. |f
you deliver to a plant in the state, or a plant in Churchil
County, whatever you deliver, that would be pool. Well
assumng that the (c)(1) provisions apply. But once you fal
out of that, because we don't have nonpool plants in the O der,

you woul d then be subject to the diversion limts later in this
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par agr aph.

Q Wll, what is the point of paragraph (b)?

A.  \Wen paragraph (b) is discussed the 9(c) provision, but
again, you would need to foll ow down in sequence to regul ate
t hose diversions to which you speak.

Q But you haven't said paragraph (b) is subject to
anything else, it just says producer mlk is received by
handl er described in 1000.9(c) in excess of the quantity
delivered to pool plants, and there's no statement that says,
subject to the diversion limts in paragraph (d), is there?

A, There's not.

Q kay. Andisn't it a fact, in the past when this
provi sion has been applied, it has permtted Cooperatives to
continue to pool mlk regardless of the diversion linitations?

A. I'mnot certain.

Q (oing back to the discussion of the Western Order. (One
of the issues in that hearing was the Western Order's provision
for something called a proprietary bulk tank handler. Correct?

A. That is correct.

Q And what that provision essentially did provide, was,
for proprietary operators, simlar regulatory treatnment to
Cooperatives for mlk associated with a Class | operation, but
ot herwi se was received at a manufacturing plant, correct?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. And DFA, along with nyself on behalf of ny
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clients, as part of the Western Order proceeding | ooked to
remove that provision, correct?
Correct.

And USDA actually did renove that provision, correct?

> O >

Correct.

Q Is there any substantive difference in regulatory
results between the nowterm nated Western Order proprietary
bul k tank handl er provision and your provision 7(c)(1) for a
pl ant |l ocated in Churchill County?

A, Again, | think I described our intent would be to make
any such activity subject to the limtations relative to
paragraph (d), so if that's something that we need to do, we
may need to nake that change.

Q Now, in your testinony, going to your policy change
di scussions starting on page 25, you first discuss as an
exanpl e of policy changes relevant to today's proceeding, the
el imnation of individual handler pools, correct?

A. W discuss policy changes in light of shifts in policy,
just like some of the things that proposed today woul d be
shifts in policy.

Q Wll, was the elimnation of individual handler pools a
shift in policy such as who gets to participate in the pool and
i ncl usive pooling versus performance standards, or was it nore
consi stent, given your own statenent on page 25, with the idea

that conpetition for the fluid nmarkets needed to be equalized?
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A | think there was sone of all the |ast individua
handl er pool, was in nmy menory serves correct, the M chigan
order and in the Reform Decision the Upper M chigan.

Q Upper Peninsul a.

A And it was renoved for sonme of the reasons out of the,
given fromthe decision, that it created or it interfered with
t he market-w de pooling concept which was the nore favorable
nmet hod to share pool revenues.

Q But even fromyour own testinony on page 25, the
reference to market-w de pooling was to successfully mtigate
price conpetition between producers seeking the higher val ue
fluid outlets for their mlk, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And turning to producer-handl ers, again, the reason why
bot h Cooperatives and proprietary plants subject to regulation
were concerned about |arge producer-handlers, was the inmpact on
not sharing the Cass |, either paying or sharing the dass |
val ue, correct?

A, That was, that decision was focused on O ass | val ue,
that's true.

Q So now you reference multiple component pricing plans
starting on page 28, now that has to do with pricing but it has
nothing do ultimately with who pools or doesn't pool, does it?

A, No. But it does have to do with how val ues are shared.

Q But it's not the directly related to pooling and who
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gets to pool, correct?

A No, it is not.

Q And finally, the devel opment of transportation prograns
that you reference, that, too, doesn't deal wth the question
of who pools and doesn't pool, does it?

A It does not.

Q Gkay. Your Honor, this will be simlar to what we did
wth the CFR And again harking back to Friday, what | intend
to hand out and I guess we'll have marked, is the follow ng,
and | have already referenced it in cross-exam nation today.
This is the Secretary's final decision with respect to mlk in
Central Marketing Area, Final decision on Proposed Arendnents
to Marketing Agreement and Order. It is the 2004 proceeding
for the Central Order, and this is from this is Federa
Regi ster, Volune 71, starting at page 54152, and runni ng
t hrough 54170 and it is the entire docunent, referencing a
nunber of matters heard, and | want to be, | want to try to
focus like a |laser beam but we'll take tinme, if necessary, to
do nore, but | wanted to hand out that entire docunment, given
your statement earlier today for preference. W can have it
marked, but | don't intend to ask that it be admtted. | wll
be asking for it to take official notice at the end of the
proceedi ng.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | would like to mark it. It will be
identified, | believe, as 69. That will be Exhibit 69. And
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may mark yours accordingly. Wile those are being distributed
| would like to take a 15-m nute break.

MR. ENGLI SH. Before we do that, your Honor, just one
thing. | note that in trying to save paper, | tried to do
sonething we did | ast week, was maybe have people share a
little bit, rather than everybody having a copy. And we'll
certainly share at our table, and hopefully others can as well.
It is a 20-page docunent, | was trying -- | know we did this
ourselves, that's why it is not printed on doubl e-si ded paper,
rather than using USDA's paper. That's my own,
non-envi ronment al probl em

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Thank you. W'Il go off record
at 10:28. Please be back ready to go at 10:45

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: We're back on record, it is 10:46,

M. English?

MR. ENGLI SH: Thank you, your Honor. Have we marked the
Federal Register that he passed out?

JUDGE CLIFTON: W have. W have marked it as Exhibit 69,
and | would like you again to read into the record the
citation.

MR. ENGISH. O course, your Honor.

This is MIk in the Central Marketing Area, Final
Deci si on on Proposed Anendnments to Marketing Agreenent and to

Order, dated Septenber 1, 2006, is when it was signed, by the
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Admi ni strator, but it is published in the Federal Register on
71, line 71, Federal Register, starting at page 51554152
t hrough - -
JUDGE CLI FTON: Do that again, please.
MR, ENGI SH. 54152 t hrough 54170, on Wdnesday,
Sept ember 13, 2006.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Now, totry to organize this a little bit, your Honor
because it is a 20-page docunent, what the Departnent did in
this particular proceeding, was it first laid out the issues
starting on 54153. So under Nunber 1, pooling standards,
there's paragraph (a), performance standards for supply plants,
then on page 54154 there's a discussion, and this is only the
di scussi on of what people said at the hearing or their briefs,
so then on 54154 there's paragraph (b) split plant provision,
carrying over onto page 54155, and the first colum is
paragraph (c), systempooling for supply plants, and I'mstil
very aware the Department was di scussing what the testinony was
and what the briefs were.

54155, paragraph (d), elimnation of supply plant
provision. And that's still discussing what people said.

And then, paragraph (e) on 54156, it is against
standards for producer mlK.

Now, what the Secretary then did is starting on 54157,
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for the first time, the Secretary starts tal king about the
Secretary's view of the record, and I'min Colum 2 at the
bottom Paragraph is the bottomthat carries over, starts with
the record reveals that distributing plants in certain areas.
And then the Secretary continues that discussion over to

Page 54159, first columm, before we get to nunber 2,
establishing pooling limts.

So what | would like to focus on and the witness is
certainly welcome to | ook at the |onger segnent, but there are
sonme paragraphs on 54158, starting, like | said, bottomof the
second col umm, where the Secretary for the first tine discusses
the Secretary's views of what the evidence were.

And | woul d propose ending, |'msorry, | apologize, |
was on 54157, the record reveals actually sort of duplicates on
the ot her page. The 54157, the bottom of Column 2, there's
about three or four paragraphs that | want to focus on. But as
we di scussed before, if the witness needs to | ook at the rest,
that's fine. But | represent to you and the record that before
you get to that statenent on 54157 the bottom of Columm 2, the
Secretary is not saying the Secretary's position. And that as
to the issue that | want to focus on, the Secretary's
di scussion ends on 54159, the first colum --

COURT REPORTER |'msorry, what was the |ast part of that?
MR, ENGLI SH: 54159, Columm 1, there's two-thirds of the

way down it says: 2. Establishing pooling limts. And the
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Secretary goes off to discuss another matter. |'mnot saying
they aren't related --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Sl ow down, M. English, just inmagine
sonmeone is trying to capture everything you are saying.

MR. ENGLI SH: Let ne just state the whole thing again.
What |'mfocusing on is the |anguage that starts on page 54157,
the bottom of the second colum, and while | want to stay, for
ny part, on 54157, | want it to be clear that the Secretary's
di scussion of this particular issue carries all the way to
54159, two-thirds of the way down on the first colum, where we
see a new number 2 establishing pooling limts.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. That is very hel pful.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So, M. Hollon, | knowit's a little tedious, but one
of us has to read it, starting at the second colum, | can pick
and choose, but | think it's clear fromlast Friday that
Judge Clifton correctly wants to have context. So for context
purposes, if you could read from 54157, the second col um,
starting with the carry over paragraph to Colum 3, which says
the record reveals that distributing plants, and read from
there until you get through the second full paragraph of 54157
that ends with if effective, can result in pooling mlk that is
not providing such service. Do you see that?

So there's the paragraph beginning on the bottom of

54157 that carries over the top of page 3, then there's a first
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ful | paragraph --

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Now, when you say the top of page 3, you
nean the top of Colum 3?

MR, ENGLI SH. Columm 3, thank you, of 54157. And then the
foll ow ng two paragraphs, which are the full, first ful
par agraphs wi thout a carry over on Colum 3, ending in, if
ineffective can result in pooling mlk that is not providing
such service.

MR. HOLLON: The record reveals that distributing plants in
certain areas of the marketing area are having difficulty
obtaining reliable mlk supplies. Because this decision does
not adopt transportation credits (discussed later in this
deci sion) for the nmovement of mlk to distributing plants,

i ncreasing the performance standards for supply plants is a
reasonabl e measure to better assure that all distributing
plants of the Order are adequately supplied. Additionally,
ot her measures are being taken to prevent the pooling of the
m |k which can not denonstrate regular and consi stent service
in supplying the Cass | needs of the marketing area. The
pooling of such mlk results in an unwarranted | owering of the
bl end price returned to those producers who denonstrate regul ar
and consistent service in supplying the Class | needs of the
mar ket .

The pooling standards of all Federal MIk Marketing

Orders, including the Central Oder, are intended to ensure
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that an adequate supply of mlk is available to neet the
need -- sorry, let me start that sentence over again.

The pooling standards of all Federal M|k Marketing
Orders, including the Central Oder, are intended to ensure
that adequate supply of mlk is available to neet the O ass
needs for the market and provide the the criteria for
determ ning the producer mlk that is denonstrated service in
neeting the Cass | needs of the narket and thereby receive the
Order's blend price. The pooling standards of the Centra
Order are represented in the Pool Plant, Producer, and the
Producer M1k provisions of the order and are based on
performance, specifying standards that if met, qualify a
producer, the m |k of a producer, or a plant to share in the
benefits arising fromthe classified pricing of mlk.

Pool i ng standards that are performance-based provide
the only viable method for determ ning those producers eligible
to share in the market-w de pool. It is usually the additiona
revenue generated fromthat higher value Class | use of mlk
that adds additional incone to producers, and it is reasonable
to expect that only those producers who consistently bear the
costs of supplying the market's fluid needs should share in the
returns arising fromthe higher-valued Cass | sales. An
i mportant objective of pooling standards is identifying the
mlk that serves the fluid mlk needs of the market, a feature

which if ineffective can result in pooling mlk that is not
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provi di ng such servi ce.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q kay. So going back to Judge Cifton's question |ast
Friday about inclusive pooling, you are |ooking for a change of
policy for inclusive pooling that woul d upend existing Federal
Order perfornmance standards based upon actual deliveries or the
ability to deliver the Class | plants, correct?

A. W are |looking for a change in policy for proposed
California order based on the narketing conditions in that
order.

Q How do you respond to the Secretary's concl usion that
you just read, pooling standards that are performance-based
provide the only viable method for determ ning those producers
eligible to share in the market-w de pooling?

A.  That the conditions in the proposed California O der
are not the same as the conditions in the other orders. So as
we have outlined, the California Order would be the only order
that the presence, for exanple, of a quota system would be the
only order with equal and very high percentage utilizations of
Cass Il and IV use. And the opportunities to pool or depoo
m |k woul d be every nonth, in our analysis al nost every nonth,
one whether the Order would want to pool or not pool. So those
reasons, and there may be others, but those reasons woul d be,
we call for the performance standards in the California O der

to be nmeasured in sone different way than in past decisions.
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Q A way that doesn't result in a regul ated nmechani smfor
getting mlk to Cass | plants, instead relies on third party
contracts, correct?

A, Qher than the transportation paynent system which we
proposed, | would agree with you.

Q | have no further questions.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wo would Iike next to question M. Hollon?

MS. HANCOCK: Ni col e Hancock.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HANCOCK:

Q Good morning, M. Hollon. Nicole Hancock representing
the California Producer Handl er's Association and Ponderosa
Dai ry.

A Good norni ng.

Q | do not have any particular order, so I'mjust going
to dive into ny questions.

So let's |ook at Exhibit 66. M. English asked you
sonme questions, this is the two, | guess, news report articles
about, fromlate 2003, early 2004 on DFA support of termnating
Federal Order 135?

A Yes.

Q Wre you part of DFA's, | guess, executive teamthat
made the decision to vote no against the amendments?

A | was a part of the team the actual decision was made

by menbers.
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Q Didyou agree with the decision that was nmade by DFA

back at this time period?

A. | was part of the executive team

Q Is that a yes?

A Yes.

Q Wy did you agree with it?

A, The evidence that was |laid out and the desire of

nmenbers about what their concern about issues in the day-to-day
mar keting expressed, so as we laid out the way the new order
woul d operate and explained to them w thout necessarily any
recomrendation, but here's the way this provision will work,
here's the way this provision would work. And they then,
deci ded, based on that information, what to do. And they, in
turn, directed the policy, and DFA voted and the decision to
bl ock vote, which is sonmething that we do.

Q So ny question was about why is it, what about -- what

about the proposed anendnents did you disagree with, do you

recal | ?
A No, | don't recall. There were a handful of issues and
| don't recall specifically what they were, I'msorry.

Q Was it that it had a disproportionate effect on the
C ass | producers?

A No, | don't think so. Again, | don't recall, you know,
what the reasons were. There were a handful of proposals at

that hearing, and a handful in the decision, so I'msorry.
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Q Solet ne just tell you what this says and you can

maybe you can help me understand it. It says, and it's a quote
to David Jones, and it says: "This is not a decision anyone
takes lightly. DFA --" I'mon Exhibit 66, second page, right

in the mddl e of the page. "DFA has decided that the Western
Order can no longer expect dairy farmers who market milk to
Cass | drinking mlk markets, to shoul der the costs of
bal ancing and servicing this marketplace while dairy farners
who sell to Class Il cheese and O ass |V powder narkets
conpl etely avoid the expense."

Does that help you recall what it is that you had

di sagreenment with --

A No.
Q ~-- in the anendnents?
A I'msorry, it does not.

Q Is it fair to say that, that there were concerns about
whet her certain producers were shoul dering an unfair burden or
cost in production of Class | mlk, conpared to Dairy Program
farmers who were selling to Class Il and Class |V narkets?

A Al | can tell you, Ms. Hancock, is reading David's
quote, | think that has a ot to do wth cost of bal ancing and
serving the marketpl ace.

Q kay. Let's go to the paragraph before that on the
second page. And it starts off with, "During a U S. Departnent

of Agriculture USDA poll of Cooperatives conducted on

2929

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

Cctober 6, DFA voted not to support anended changes to the
Western Order because the proposals did not go, "far enough" to
correct the gross inequities caused by pool witing and ot her
I ssues related to servicing and bal ancing the O ass |
mar ket pl ace. "

Do you see that?

A | do.

Q Do you agree that the proposed anmendnents did not go
far enough to help correct the gross inequities?

A. Again, all I can tell you, | don't renenber all the
particulars, so | don't think they woul d have made that up.

But | don't remenmber which proposals did what.

Q So you don't renenber if that was an issue for you and
your nenbers at the tine?

A Well, | think, when you asked nme about David Jones
quote, | said that there were sone issues around the cost of
serving the market, and | think those are also reflected in the
second paragraph, in the paragraph you just read.

Q Do you know what the gross inequities were? Do you
recall what that was about besides the costs?

A. (One of the ones that | renenber was the proprietary
bul k tank handl er provision that basically allowed the operator
to inpact the blend price inmensely by the way they chose to
pool m|Kk.

Q Anything else that you think contributed to what was
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perceived to be gross inequities in the anendnments?

A. That's the only one that | renenber.

Q Gkay. And Judge clarified, | didn't nmean the
amendnents thensel ves created inequities, but the goal was to
create better cures for what was perceived to be inequities at
the time; is that right?

A Yes.

Q So would you agree, then, that the goal for DFA and
you, on behalf of your menbers, is to create an order that
woul d provide an equitable distribution of pricing to the
producers?

A.  Are you asking about this proposal, the proposal for a
California O der?

Q |I'masking about orders in general

A Yes, | would say, yes.

Q Gkay. If you can look at Exhibit 64, these are your
the tables that you created. It is part of, | guess they were
put in with your prepared statenent.

Ckay.
And if we look at the | ast page which is Table 5.E. 8 --
Ckay.

o > O P

--and | was trying to follow al ong when M. English
was wal king through this, and I just want to nake sure that |
understand it.

And | think he's comng at it fromslightly different
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angl e than what |'m | ooking at because | represent Ponderosa
Dairy, and that's an out-of-state producer, | want to have a
full understanding of how the Cooperatives' proposal wll

I npact Ponderosa Dairy as an out-of-state producer.

And as M. English was wal ki ng through this, | think I
understand it, but | just want to confirmthat. So | think he
took Colum C, which is the Federal MIk Order blend, and this
is your chart, right? You put this together?

A It is.

Q kay. So if the Federal MIk Oder blend in Colum C,
and then he subtracted out Colums H, |, and then added back in
J, and then ended up with what is the proposed Federal M|k
Mar keting Order non-quota blend price. 1Is that how you recall
that cal cul ating out?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. So it wouldn't be true then, that that sane
cal cul ation would apply for out-of-state producers and how t hey
woul d be paid under the proposed Cooperative Federal M|k
Marketing O der?

A Yes.

Q And that's because an out-of-state producer woul d not
receive or would not be able to participate in purchasing or
requiring any quota, right?

A, Correct.

Q You woul d have to deduct out Columm H because t hat
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woul d never be available to themas premumpricing as an
out - of -state producer?
A, Wll, the blend price would -- yes, that woul d be

correct.

Q kay. And then, then you would, for an out-of-state

producer, you would al so deduct Colum I, and this is

transportation all owances?

A. Well, those would be deducted out of the blend price.

The, so you wouldn't -- they would be, well say it right --

yes, they would reduce, in essence, the price just |ike any

ot her producer. So it would be no different for Ponderosa

Dairy, the transportati on noni es woul d be taken out of the poo

returns.

Q Well, but there are producers that could qualify for

transportation all owances?

A, Yes, that would be true.

Q But as an out-of-state producer, they coul d never
qual ify for transportation all owances?

A Yes, that's right. They could not.

Q kay. So you would take Columm C for out-of-state

producers, and colums H and | are the ones that, as an

out - of -state producer, they could never qualify for, so for

every out-of-state producer you woul d al ways deduct those
col utms?

A, Yes.
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Q In-state producers, assumng they qualify for those
ei ther by holding quota or being in the correct territory that
woul d allow a transportation allowance, they could participate
In those?

A, Yes.

Q Ckay. And those would result for those in-state
producers who qualified, in a higher producer paynent price?

A. In the sense that they would get a quota paynent or
there woul d be sone offset to the marketing of their mlk to a
class, in essence, a Class | or class Il operation

Q GCkay. Oher than being out-of-state, is there any
other justification for why it nakes sense to not allow those
out-of -state producers to participate in Colums Hand |?

A The proponents don't make the quota rules, those are
set up by the state so we have no control over that. And the
transportation allowance, in order to try to have a reasonabl e
cost reflection and to not abuse the transportation proposal
limted to mlk that's in the state.

Q kay. And let's say, for exanple, the mlk being
transported fromout-of-state, actually, if you just quantify
it, the mleage either canme farther than other areas from
wthin the state that would qualify for transportation
al lowances. Is other than them just being outside of the
borders of California, is there any other justification that

woul d expl ain why that nakes sense?
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A |1 don't think so.

Q Gkay. And then the sane for quota. Oher than just
bei ng outside of the State of California, is there any
justification why they would not participate in quota or
receive some, or receive a |ower producer paynment price?

A. \Well, again, the proponents don't nake the rules for
how you can own and not own quota, so whatever the state rules
are is what, we're dealt the sane hand.

Q So no other justifications. So other than being
outside of the state and that's how the California code is
witten?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. If you go to Exhibit 63, this is your prepared

statement. Do you wite your own prepared statenents,

M. Hollon?
A. | do, at least the initial draft.
Q And then you have a team of people that help you?
A Inprove it.
Q Inprove it put it into final fornf
A Yes.
Q | want to turnto -- M. English took all my questions.

Al right. Let's turn to page 24.
A Ckay.
Q Actually, let's go to page 26.
A Ckay.
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Q And you have, on page 26 of Exhibit 63, you have a
Subsection B here where you discuss regul ation of |arge
producer handl ers.

A Yes.

Q And | think the historical inplenmentation of the 3
mllion pounds or less limtation that was, and then you have
cited to a 2010 Federal Register?

A. Correct.

Q And then this discussion goes on to page 27. | want to
talk a little bit about that. Tell nme what it is, tell me what
your goal was in including Subsection B in your prepared
st at enent .

A.  The goal of including Subsection B was to point out
exanpl es of where the Departnent and Dairy Prograns has changed
their policy with regard to a fairly substantial issue of
substantive issue, and so this was one of the five dairies that
| pointed out that prior to this, |arge producer-handlers had
not been regulated, and there had been nore than one hearing to
attenpt to create that. And the Departnent had decided in
those hearings that it did not need to be done. Following this
hearing, the Departnment changed its direction, and so the
purpose of including this was to point out that change in
pol i cy.

Q Ckay. Just to give an exanple of the historical event

in which the Secretary had changed directions to cure what had
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becone a disorderly market condition?

A Yes.

Q And when you say | arge producer-handlers, these are
producer-handlers that were vertically integrated, they produce
all the way through distributing a brand new product, correct?
Correct.

And under these orders --
And in some cases, not brand new product.

Ckay. In both products?

> O > O »F

Yes. No, a private-|abel product.

Q kay. Under private label. So, and these were
producer-handlers that didn't, did not have any type of
[imtation on, on the exenptions that they obtained fromthe
pool ; is that right?

A, Correct.

Q So these were, they -- as long as their businesses
continued to grow, whatever they produced was exenpted fromthe
pool, they just operated it independently?

A Yes.

Q So different than the producer-handl ers that
represent in this instance. |Is that fair to say?

A. Under current California regulation, if | understand
the rules right, your clients today are fully subject to
pooling prices up, on everything except their exenpt quota. So

that either would be no change with that regard for them
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There woul d be, today California regulation, tomorrow
producer-handl er regulation, and if they are over 3 mllion
pounds, they woul d be subject to regulation conpletely on all
pounds, other than the question of exenpt quota.

Q So for our -- let me restate that just to make sure
have it clear on the record. So the Producer Handlers
Associ ation, as you understand it, the California Producer
Handl ers Associ ation, the four entities who are
producer - handl ers who hol d exenpt quota, they are fully
regul at ed producer-handl ers subject to the pool, except for the
exenpt quota vol umes that they hold, which is a fixed [imted
anount ?

A.  Under today's California regulation, yes.

Q And do you know, or have you | ooked at the nunbers to
see what percentage their exenpt quota nmakes up?

A.  No, | have heard peopl e make conments about
percent ages, but | have not tried to sort it out.

Q And are you in any way, on behalf of the Cooperatives
in Proposal Nunber 1, claimng or suggesting that the
California Producer Handl ers Association and the exenpt quota
that they hold are creating any kind of disorderly marketing
conditions in California?

A W get frequent inquiries fromour custoners who are
not producer-handl ers about narketing conditions in conpetition

w th producer-handlers. So fromthat standpoint, | do, | am
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aware of concerns, | will say. The concerns sonetinmes just

|'i ke you, using the eye of the behol der, but nonethel ess, we
hear comments and questions about conpetitive conditions which
are related to the exenpt quota. | do not have any firsthand
knowl edge. | have not attenpted to take a product to the
grocery store and attenpt to market and sell it, it's only
comments fromour Cass | custoners about that.

Q And |l -- 1 want to be clear about what you are saying
here. You are not suggesting that conpetitors who are
conpl ai ni ng about another conpetitor who gets a sale that they
didn't get, is the same as disorderly narket conditions, are
you?

A.  You asked ne if | was aware of anyone who had any
concerns about that, and | was relating that those are, those
are, that's ny know edge of concerns about that situation. And
when | do hear it, it is attributed to the exenpt quota dollar
vol une anount.

Q Yes. | just want to clarify what you are saying,

t hough. You are not saying that conpetitors conplai ni ng about
anot her conpetitor is the sane thing as an disorderly market
condition, are you?

A No.

Q Ckay. So you heard conplaints fromyour conpetitors
that the exenpt quota gives the producer-handl er sone, maybe

conpetitive advantage in selling those brand new products,
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right?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. But you are not saying that those conplaints
t hat you have received fromcustonmers who are conpl ai ni ng about
a conpetitor, is the same thing as you taking a position on
behal f of the Cooperatives today, that the producer-handlers
exenpt quota is creating a disorderly market condition?

A No, | think our position at the nonent is that they
woul d be fully regulated on all mlk, and to the extent in the
prior producer-handl er decisions where they noted a difference
in price, was a disorderly narket condition. At this point, we
woul d agree with that, that the price advantage afforded by
exenpt quota neans they have a different price than the order
price published as the dass | price, so those two wouldn't be
equal .

Q They would be or wouldn't be?

A.  They woul d not be equal.

Q So they have a different price, but it doesn't
necessarily result in a disorderly market condition for those
pr oducer - handl er s?

A.  Again, the producer-handl er decision noted that not
all, the fact that all prices were not the sanme in that regard
was a disorderly condition. So we would agree with that at
present.

Q Ddyou just junp back to the Western Order?
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A, No. No. In the producer-handler decision itself, that
was part of the reason why the 3 mllion pound Iine was drawn,
and the pricing terms were applied to a producer-handler, a
| arge producer-handler, was that they had a pricing advant age.

Q Rght. And so in those instances, these are
producer-handlers that had no limtation on the exenption, and
as far as they could grow, they continued to grow the anount of
exenpt exenptions that they had fromwith the pool; is that
fair?

A Fair.

Q ay. That's not the case here, right?

A, Wll, again, to the extent that the exenpt quota is a
value that's not priced, and that makes the m ni mum d ass
val ue be sonething different for someone who hol ds exenpt
quot a.

Q kay. So -- so | guess what | want to clarify is that
at what point are you taking a position that a |arge
producer - handl er, now, these were producer-handl ers who held
exenmptions far in excess of what the exenpt quota is today,
right?

A. They had, for lack of a better word, sales volune of
3 mllion pounds or nore, and so that's what qualified them as
a | arge producer-handl er.

Q kay. But it went far in excess of that, right?

A, Yes. Some were nmuch larger than that, and sone were
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approxi mately that size.

Q Rght. But it is the ones, it was kind of the unended
growm h potential, right? There's no cap onit? The growh
potential that created the disorderly market conditions or were
found to be the disorderly market conditions?

A, That was true. | would agree that was one of the
factors that it appeared to be, in the early days it was
described as a matter of adm nistrative conveni ence, but as
they got, as the size of some producer-handlers got to be very
large, it would, it was deened to be a disorderly condition in
t he market pl ace.

Q So what I'mtrying to figure out, though, is if you are
trying to claimtoday that the exenpt quota held by the
producer-handlers is creating a disorderly market condition in
Cali fornia.

A, Qur position --

Q Is that your allegation today?

A. Qur position at this point would be that all of the,
all of the mlk of a producer-handler with over 3 mllion
pounds woul d be regul at ed.

Q That but that wasn't my question

A Ckay.

Q Wat nmy question is, is whether you are alleging today
that the limted exenpt quota held by the producer-handlers in

California, the 54,000 pounds that we have heard about, which
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is what, less than half a percent of the total pool, whether
that is creating, whether that amount in itself is creating a
di sorderly market condition?

A. At this point, that woul d be our position.

Q Gkay. And have you conducted an econom c anal ysis
about this to come to that concl usion?

A No.

Q Gkay. What do you base your concl usion on?

A. The fact that all prices are not equal at, the m ninmm
prices are not the sane.

Q And that's because you have custoners who conplain to
you about the conpetitive pricing circunstances?

A. No, that's because the exenption creates a credit, if
you will, against what mght be their volume. If you had a
hundred pounds of m Ik and you paid the Cass | on a hundred
pounds, that would be some dollars. [If you had a hundred
pounds of mlk and you paid the Cass | price on 95 pounds, and
nothing on the remaining 5 that would be a | ower price.

Q So does that mean that a producer who received
transportation all owances different than a producer who does
not receive transportation allowances is creating its own
di sorderly market conditions as well?

A, Those -- the limtation on transportation allowances
for mlk outside the order, that's part of our proposal as you

have identified. And there are instances in other orders where
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m |k outside the order, outside the marketing area, is subject
to different provisions. And so as an exanple, in Federa

Order 30, mlk outside a certain area has different ways to
perform It has a plant that wants to be included in the pool,
has to ship mlk out of the plant as opposed to being a part of
soneone el se's shipnments. So there are, there is precedent for
things |like transportation credits that woul d apply
differently, or there is precedent for performance standards
that would apply differently, as you described, in-state and
out, or in area and out of area mght be a better termfor it.
So those are all owabl e.

Q Gkay. And so you have a justification for why those
al | onances shoul d, transportation all owances, should be in
pl ace. So even though there is a difference in pricing for
t hose producers, one who receives the transportation all owance
and one who doesn't, you have a justification that explains it,
and so that means that it is not a disorderly market condition?

A, Yes.

Q Ckay. And then the sane would hold true then, for
producers who receive quota, regular quota, premum pricing,
right? That because they hold quota and there's a
justification for how and why they have obtai ned that quota,
that woul d nean that even though they get a premumpricing, it
doesn't result in disorderly market conditions because there's

justification behind it?
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A, Correct.

Q So would the sane -- woul d the sane concl usion hold
true, then, for exenpt quota, that for the same reasons that
exenpt producers have a justification, or the sane reason that
regul ar quota hol ders have a justification for receiving
premumpricing that justifies the difference in pricing, the
same would hold true for exenpt quota hol ders who al so have a
justification for why they hold that limted quota exenption?

A.  That could be a valid argunment, which would be in your
canp.

Q Do you agree with me, though, that that would be a
justification that would explain why it is not a disorderly
mar ket condition?

A Yes, that could be. But it was, once again, set by the
California statute.

Q | have no further questions.

CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VETNE:

Q John Vetne, representative for Hi|lmar Cheese Conpany.

Let's see where to start.

| want to make sure that | understand, M. Hollon, what
you did or tried to do in Exhibit 64, Table 5.B, as use of that
data el sewhere in your exhibits and testimony. As | recal
fromlast Friday, you explained that you couldn't find a good

source of information in CDFA data on the val ue of beverage
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mlk distributed in Southern California versus Northern
California, correct?

A. | think | explained | needed sone way to conpute a
conpari son between the two systens, the California system and
the Federal system so that was the derivation of Table 5.B

Q Ckay. And you chose this because -- because you
couldn't find information in CDFA, either in requested exhibits
or information they ordinarily publish, correct?

A. In requested exhibits or in information they ordinarily

publ i sh?
Q Yes.
A.  Yes.

Q Ckay. So you tried to inpute a value of Class | mlKk
in Southern California based on population. Am1l right so far?
A Tried to come up with a way of, way to price, if you
wll, over the whole state to be as representative as | could
get, so | could use it both in a California calculation and a

Federal Order cal cul ation.

Q And so your thinking in preparing Table 5.B was to
determ ne how nuch Class | beverage mlk is used in California,
based on the Southern California versus Northern California,
based on the rel ative popul ations?

A Yes.

Q And then -- and then inpute a value for your

cal cul ati ons based on those differences, Southern California
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having a greater popul ation, greater consunption, inpute a
Cass | value to Southern California based on that consunption
pattern?

A.  Sanme for Southern and Northern, yes.

Q Ckay. So the effect is that your data produces an
i nputed Class | val ue based on point of consuner purchase,
essential | y?

A, Yes. Assuming it is consuned where it is purchased.

Q Yes. |If one were to apply the same approach to the
Upper M dwest Marketing Order, you would | ook at the popul ation
in Chicago and surroundi ng Chicago, and you woul d get an
inputed value of dass | mlk at point of purchase that woul d
be heavily weighed by inputed Chicago price, correct?

A You nean using the same type of popul ation-based
county?

Q Yes.

A, Yes, you woul d.

Q Yes. Are there any distributing plants in Chicago, in
the city of Chicago, anynore?

A.  There may be one.

Q There nmay be one. But Chicago is primarily served by
plants that are |ocated at various distances from Chi cago,
correct?

A, Correct.

Q And they receive mlk at that |ocation which is |ess
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than the Federal Order or inputed value in the city of Chicago.

A I'mnot famliar with exactly the way the zones are
laid out off the top of nmy head, but there would be sone
di f f erences.

Q Chicago is the highest zone in that narket, correct?
Vel |, maybe Southern Illinois if it's included, but Chicago
s --

A, I'mjust saying | don't know where there are, there's
more than one zone in the Chicago market, and | don't recal
what the counties are in each one.

Q But Chicago market can be in the Upper M dwest market?

A Yes.

Q But primarily mlk comes, packaged m |k conmes from
plants that are in |ower-priced zones and distributes mlk
towar ds the popul ation center, correct?

A Yes.

Q Wuld you agree with nme that a substantial part of mlKk
that is actually distributed in California, in Southern
California, higher-priced zones, is actually received at plants
in Northern California?

A. | do not know.

Q You don't know. Wuld you agree with nme that in order
to ascertain the value of producer mlk received for Cass |
you woul d need to know sonet hi ng about where the mlk is being

recei ved?
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You nean where the processing plant is |ocated?
Wiere the processing plant is |ocated.

Yes.

o > O P

In theory, Southern California consumer beverage mlk
can be served in its entirety by plants |ocated in Northern
California? There's no requirenent that there be a plant in
Southern California in order for the population to be served,
I's there?

A, No.

Q And your analysis doesn't say anything about the val ue
or inputed value of Class | mlk relative to point of plant
recei pt, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Ckay. Ininputing Aass | use in Southern California
versus Northern California, were you aware that in Table 10 of
the Monthly Dairy Information Bulletin published by CDFA, there
are, there's data in volumes sold in Northern California and
Sout hern California of beverage fluid mlKk?

A I'mnot.

Q So you have in deriving your inmputed data, you didn't
| ook at published COFA information to see if it mght be there,
correct?

A | did look. | did not see it, and could you tell me
what that data represents?

Q It is Table 10 of the Dairy Information Bulletin, which
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is a publication that was published nonthly through February of
2015, and distributed in paper form and available in an inmage
on the Internet. And since then, has been available in data
formby CDFA. And it shows sales of Cass | products for
Southern California and Northern California in gallons of whole
mlk, reduced mlk, fat mlk, which is two percent, lowfat mlKk
which is one percent, and skimnonfat, fat-free mlk. And then
beverage mlk totals for Southern California and Northern
California. You weren't aware of that?

A And, no, | was not directly aware of that. And those
boundari es are the Southern California boundaries and the
Northern California boundaries, | presune.

Q The marketing area as defined by the CSO California
State Order.

A Ckay.

Q On page 4 of your testinony you used the word bl end
price target.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Now we' re in Exhibit 63?

MR. VETNE: Actually, you don't use the words bl end
price -- yes, 63, sorry.
BY MR VETNE:

Q You use the word estimated bl end prices.

A, \Wat page, |'msorry.

Q Page 4, second full, second full paragraph. You | ook

at the derived data that you produced using Table 4.B and
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conpared State Order and Federal Oder. And in the |ast
sentence you state, "In order to achieve these blend prices,

the proposed California statute m |k pooling provisions nust

include all of the class price values.” And that is the class
price value fromyour proposed Class I, II, Ill, and IV,
correct?

A.  \WWat page are you on?

Q Page 4, second full paragraph, before the heading in
bold, C

A Yes.

Q kay. First, the sentence concludes with "California's
FMMO s pooling provisions nmust include all of the class price
values."” Your reference there to class price values is to al
of the Federal Class prices, Class |, Cass Il, Cass Ill and
Cass IV, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And it is the class price values that the Cooperatives
in Proposal Nunber 1, correct?

A Yes.

Q And it's, and when you say "to achieve these bl ended
prices" it's a blend price that you inpute using, anong ot her

things, the derived data in Table B

A. Correct.
Q Correct?
A. Correct.
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Q So part of the proposal objective is a blend price
enhancenment target; is that correct?

A Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Just so the record's clear, M. Vetne,
when you asked himdoes it include all the class price val ues,
and you referred to numbers, those were Roman nuneral nunbers?

MR. VETNE: Yes, the proposal incorporates Roman nuner al
numbers.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

BY MR VETNE:

Q And again, going to, this tine Exhibit 63, page 8, the
first paragraph under Heading E, Necessary Pooling Provisions,
the second full sentence states, "In order to accunul ate and
retain all the revenues necessary to provide for the blend
prices proposed and to create an orderly mlk market, this
proposal requires that all mlk delivered to the plants |ocated
in the marketing area fromfarns |ocated in California, nust be
pool ed each month. ™"

Your reference there to provide for the blend prices
proposed, is the same concept that we discussed on page 4, that
you have a, the Cooperatives have a bl end price enhancenent
target in mnd as part of the underlying consideration for
Proposal Number 1, correct?

A.  Try that again. You incorporated three or four

different thoughts there, | need to sort them out.
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Q The reference in your statenent to blend prices
proposed, incorporates the concept that the Cooperative
proponents of Proposal 1 have a blend price enhancenent
obj ective as part of the inportant underlying concept in
Proposal 1?

A Yes.

Q And additionally, in addition to the blend price
enhancenment concept, an objective is to create an orderly
market. Other than blend price enhancenment, what features of
the current systemare disorderly that you believe a Federal
MIlk Oder would thwart?

A, In addition to the proposals we nade, that woul d
include all the mlk in the pool, it would also be the question
of mlk that's outside the state being regulated, it would al so
i nclude the uniformtreatment of producer-handlers. Of the
top of ny head, the others are all out, | don't renmenber them
off the top of ny head, but | think I answered that sane
question fromyou the first time in the first statenent. So
t hose woul d be two.

Q kay. Well, all the mlk in the pool is essentially
that which currently exists, correct?

A Yes.

Q That's not -- so all the mlk in the pool in the CSOis
the same concept as all of the mlk in the pool in the proposed

Federal M1k Order.
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A.  That's except for the proposed order woul d require that
it all be there and it would all be using the national price
grid across all classes.

Q As far as the all mlk in the pool part?

A Yes.

Q Since it is all there nowthere's no disorder that is
cured by all mlk in the pool under the proposal ?

A. As long as the proposal is as proposed, that would be
true, and that's the way that we would propose it. That's not
the sane as in Proposal 2.

Q Ckay. The inclusive pooling concept under your
proposal is captured by the clause that identifies a plant
located in California as being a pool plant, correct?

A. It is captured by the |anguage and you do nean the
| anguage that's in 7(c) and 7(c)(1)?

Q Yes. Because the definition for distributing plant, a
definition for an ESL plant, and then a definition pool plant
| ocated in the marketing area.

A.  That receives mlk froma producer |ocated in the
marketing area (c); and then (c)(1) describes the Churchil
County situation

Q So why have a 7(a) and (b) at all? |If all plants in
California are pool plants, why distinguish distributing plants
from ot her plants?

A. In order to have those provisions, we thought it was
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necessary to include 7(a) and 7(b).

Q What function does 7(a) and (b) serve in a proposed
California Oder, if all plants are pool plants?

A, Sinmply hel ps further define what they are.

Q Wuld you agree with ne that they would all be captured
by 7(c) in any case, proposed 7(c)?

A Yes.

Q You refer to, I'mnot sure who asked the question, but
you referred to the concept of opportunistic pooling. That's a
termthat you have used frequently in Federal O der hearings,
post - Federal Order Reform correct?

A | don't know if that exact term has been used, but that
concept has been a topic of |lots of Federal O der hearings.

Q Ckay. For example, if I can, if you have current
memory or if | can refresh your nenory, in the Upper M dwest
there was an issue that arose because all of a sudden a |ot of
mlk fromldaho is being pooled in the Upper Mdwest. Do you
recall that?

A |1 do.

Q And that was an opportunity created by the Reforned
Deci si on, correct?

A.  Repeat that, please?

Q It was an opportunity created by Federal M|k O der
Reform correct?

A. Are you referring to the absence of the zone out
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provisions in the pre-Refornf

Q You are reading nmy m nd.

A Wll, if you would state your mnd, |I wouldn't have to
read it in order to answer your question.

Q Wiy don't you describe that as creating an economc
opportunity or an incentive that didn't exist prior to Federal
Order Refornf

A, | didn't hear the front end of what you said.

Q Wiy don't you describe the zone out pre-Reform absence
of zone out post-Reform that created an opportunity that
wasn't there before?

A, Pre-Reform blend prices are were adjusted based on
m | eages fromsone |ocation, and I'mnot sure if it was in
every order and |'mnot sure, I"'msure it wasn't done the sane
way in every order. And then post-Reform those mleage
adj usters were not included, so that created, as you descri bed,
that created sone opportunities.

Q kay. Because the post-Reform Decision gave value to
just mlk, value relative to its value in the |ocal market that
didn't exist before?

A. | would agree.

Q Gkay. M recollection is that you testified either in
M nnesota or in the Central Market hearings that woul d have
preferred to have the probl em addressed by zoning on producer

mlk, but the USDA wasn't receptive to that at the tine.
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A | don't recall

Q Gkay. Wuld you agree with ne that opportunistic
pooling, as we have di scussed, was a marketing practice synptom
of a problemcreated by the absence of zoning out producer mlKk
at distant |ocations?

A, Yes, and included in that were perhaps relative changes
in class prices that were perhaps different in 2005 versus
2000.

Q Ckay. Wre you involved in a series of mlk order
hearings, you said you had been doing this for 30 years, so it
woul d have been the beginning of your career, in 1985 Congress
amended the statute and mandated certain Class | prices in
certain areas. Do you recall that?

A | recall that. | don't directly recall being involved
in those hearings, | may have been in some of the Upper M dwest
hearings in the Chicago Order and in the Indiana order, but |
don't remenber.

Q You don't, okay. So you don't recall how that mandated
price translated to a need for hearings to accommodate
dislocation in distributor plant relationships, in conpetitive
rel ati onshi ps created by the mandated price?

A | don't recall

Q Ckay. Wuld you agree with me that the Class | price
surface that's reflected in current FMMO system whi ch you

propose to superinpose in California, is a function of two
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conpetitive supply and denand factors? One is the val ue of
producer mlk at one | ocation conpared to another, to a
di stributing plant.

A. |Is that one condition or two conditions?

Q That's one. That's one.

A, Ckay. You said two.

Q Gkay. I'magetting to the second one.
A, Ckay

Q Ckay. That for Cass | handlers, the value of producer
m |k at one |location nmay be different than another |ocation
dependi ng upon the proximty or distance of the plant fromthe
primary or supplenental supply?

A, And you are asking nme is that one of the factors in the
Cass | price surface?

Q Is that one of the factors in the Cass | price surface
that USDA uses and has used?

A. Yes, | think that is one of the factors in the
differential price surface and the research information that
was done.

Q Ckay. And distributors, after they receive packaged
mlk, distribute mlk in conpetition wth each other in a way
that is different fromthe flow of raw mlk to those
di stributors?

MR, BESHORE: My |, your Honor?
JUDGE CLI FTON: You may, M. Beshore.
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MR. BESHORE: | would like to note at this point --

JUDGE CLI FTON: State your nane.

MR. BESHORE: Marvin Beshore.

| would like to note at this point that as we have
mentioned at |least twice, as | have mentioned at least twice in
prior occasions, there's a subsequent w tness who has the
primary responsibility of discussing pricing proposals, that is
the dass | price surface, etcetera. That was not addressed in
any, although prices are used in M. Hollon's testinony, that
was not a focus of his, of his direct testinony here, and I
woul d suggest that this |line of questioning is not appropriate
wth himany further.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English, you may speak.

MR. ENGLI SH:  Chip English. Your Honor, | need to sort of
go back to the first day and tal k about how the schedul e works
and all that, but there's just no way to parse it this way.
What this w tness says about how a pooling wll work, as
M. Beshore just indicated, depends on his assunptions about
the pricing. And | appreciate there will be a different
witness to talk about the pricing, but to prohibit M. Vetne
from aski ng questions about how that inpacts the pooling, wll
give, wll be leave us with a bit of a jigsaw puzzle where we
m ght have the pieces around the edge, but nothing in the
m ddl e.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Yeah. | think these are fair questions
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for M. Hollon. | -- I'mglad for the direction to know that
there wll be another w tness about pricing, but | have to
agree that all this hearing' s about pricing, so far.

MR. VETNE: Thank you, your Honor
BY MR VETNE:

Q So ny question was, if | can recall rather than have
the, have it be read, that is it not the case that Cass |
handl ers that receive and distribute mlk, market their mlk
fromtheir plant in conpetitive conditions that are not at al
the sane as the flow of raw mlk to those same conpeting
handl ers?

A. M/ understanding of how the price surface was derived,
both of those factors are included.

Q Ckay. Now, in nost, well, every Federal Oder, part of
the incentive of a producer to deliver to a plant at one
| ocation versus another is that the blend price mght be higher
or lower at the plants that mght be available to the producer,
correct?

A.  Yes, that could -- price is always a factor.

Q Priceis afactor. And in the current FMMO system
producer prices are adjusted on exactly the same basis as
handl er Class | prices, correct?

A Yes, they are.

Q Ckay. And the current systemcarries forward

pre-existing policy, pre-existing regulatory thought, that
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those price differences in the blend price, when adjusted at
Cass | differentials, helps attract mlk to a plant where it's
needed?

JUDGE CLI FTON: That's inmportant, would you say that again,
pl ease?

MR VETNE: Okay.
BY MR VETNE:

Q The current structure in the pre-Reformstructure,
incorporates regulatory policy and determ nation that the blend
price adjusted at the sane rate as Cass | prices helps attract
mlk to plants where it is needed?

A.  The structures you described is there in pre-Reform and
post-Reform |'msure you are aware that it is there but it is
not required to be there, there is an option to do it as we
proposed. And so for the proposal we've nade, we think that
that's a better fit, if you wll, for the proposed California
mar ket than the structure in the other ones.

Q kay. | agree. And | do know that doesn't have to be
that way, it hasn't had to be that way since 1985 when Congress
included in the amendnents, what | call the Beshore anendnents,
mar ket -wi de surface authority that what was not there before.
| was glad to have Paul Christ talk about the Ozarks as a place
that hasn't been used.

Your proposal takes the producer-incentive side of that

equation, that is, adjusting producer prices at the sane rate
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the Cass | prices are adjusted, takes the producer blend
pricing incentive for one |ocation conpared to anot her out of
the picture

A It does.

Q If the producer price incentive is not there at all,
why is there any need to have to change the conpetitive
rel ati onship | ong-established anong conpeting C ass |
di stributors?

A, Try that question again.

Q kay. Currently there are distributors, Cass |
handlers in California, correct?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. And they have evol ved over nany decades, there
are, like any market, fewer now, fewer plants that process a
| arger vol ume, correct?

A.  Cenerally, yes.

Q Gkay. And they have, over the years, established a
distribution pattern in conpetition with each other relying
upon a rel ationship of regul ated costs of one to the other
correct?

A. Correct.

Q Gkay. And you propose to change that relationship in
sone cases significantly, correct?

A, Are you referring to the difference between the Federa

Order price grid and the Northern Californial Southern
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California price grid?

Q Yes.

A Yes.

Q That's a significant change for O ass | handlers,
correct?

A. That is a change, | haven't measured every location to
see what it is, but it is nonetheless a change.

Q And, in fact, the only place where a change has been
nmade in the Federal system has been in the Southeast of the
Cass | price surface, correct?

A, Correct.

Q And by the Southeast, | nmean aggregate narkets the
Appal achi ans?

A.  Federal Orders 5, 6, and 7.

Q 5, 6, and 7. And handlers, at that tine, tal ked about
how t hat woul d change their conpetitive relationship with
conpetitors who process mlk to the North that have | ower
prices, and that the price, conpetitive price spread in the
regul ated prices would increase, correct?

A1 was up with you until the last phrase, but that there
was testinony about how competitive price relationships would
change, | agree with that.

Q Ckay. And would you agree with me that a change in
that price spread requiring some distributors to pay

significantly nore than they currently do and others to pay
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nmoderately nore than they currently do, will change the
conpetitive relationship anong those distributors?

A. Again, as to the words significant and noderate,
woul d say that yes, there will be changes in price
rel ationships that may require or may result in some change in
di stribution patterns or business plans.

Q kay. Loss of capacity in high-class plants woul d
increase capacity in plants that benefit relative to others,
correct?

A.  That could be true.

Q To mnimze such dislocation, do you think it would be
reasonabl e and prudent for USDA to enploy a Cass | price
surface that is no nore than 20 years ol d?

A Say that again?

Q To mnimze dislocation anong conpetitors, would it be
prudent for USDA to use, or at least look at, a Cass | price
surface nodel that is |less than 20 years ol d?

A If that were to be done, | think all the objections
that you raised would still be there. Some would be happy or
some woul d have concerns in one direction and one another. And
if that were to take place, | think it is our position that
that woul d be done at the national |evel, as opposed to at an
order by order level in this case, not in the proposed
California order. So with those provisos that if USDA chose to

do that, we would be a part of that process.
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But for this proposal, we choose to use the existing
Cass | price surface and dass | national grid price.

Q So if USDA believes it is necessary to take a new | ook
at supply and demand for mlk in Class | use in a price
surface, in order to make the nost effective order in
California, one that is the only practical or terns are
avai l able to the Secretary, if that's necessary, would you
agree that the Secretary should delay inplication of final

order until there is a national hearing?

A No.
Q Wiy not?
A. Again, | think we have outlined our position and the

things that we want to do, and we want to see those happen as
soon as they can. So if there is a national hearing, then that
will be called on its own notion nonmentum whatever the right
terns are, and we don't see delaying this effort --

Q Ckay.

A, -- in that regard.

Q Now, | know you are probably tired of this, but going
back to the Western O der?

A. At |east you told me what you were thinking up front.

Q \Western Order scenario.

A. By the way, wasn't that the Order hearing where you
were a wtness?

Q | don't recall. | also, you know, | also can sonetines
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have sel ective, you know, sonetimes | just bury those nenories
so deeply that they can't surface.

A.  Fair enough.

Q If I did, it wuld not have been fun

A. | unfortunately, had to |eave early, so | can't tel
you whet her that is true or not.

Q In exhibit, you don't have to look at it, but you can
Exhi bit 66, page 1, you list three objectives that proponents
in that hearing had, and one is to reduce the volume --

JUDCGE CLI FTON:  Now, just a nmonment he didn't author 66.
You know this, right?

MR, VETNE: | understand.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Ckay. So could you reword your question?

MR. VETNE: Ckay. 66 hasn't been received?

JUDGE CLIFTON: No, No, | just said, you asked hima
guestion "you" and | just wanted to remnd you this wtness did
not author Exhibit 66.

MR. VETNE: Ckay. Yes, | understand.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Ckay. So go ahead and start again with
your question, please, it is admtted into evidence.

MR. VETNE: Yes, okay.

BY MR VETNE:

Q In Exhibit 66, page 1, the paragraph that is concl uded

at the bottom not the one that begins at the bottom describes

DFA's objectives. The third nunbered itemis to reduce the

2966

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

total volune of mlk allowed to be pooled on the order. Do you
see that?

A | do.

Q Gkay. And that was an objective that you had at the
time, correct?

A | don't renenber the exact particulars of that, | would
say, if that would be to inpact the proprietary bul k tank
handl er provision, that would be true. Qherwi se, | don't
recal | .

Q You, anong other things, proposed to tighten a nunber
of pooling provisions.

A, Yes, we did propose the change in the, | think the
diversion limtations.

Q Cenerally performance standards?

A, Performance standards. Yes, you are correct, we did.

Q Miking it more difficult for mlk in that region to
access the pool.

A Yes.

Q Are there markets in which DFA operates in which DFA
receives a fee by other market participants in order for DFA to
accommodate the mlk and all ow access to the pool ?

A, I'mnot aware of any.

Q W have had a lot of talk about depooling
opportunities, and one of the reasons that you gave for your

proposal is on the California mlk has to be pooled for the
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quota systemto work, in essence, correct?

A.  The presence of the quota systeminpacts the decisions
to pool or depool in a big way. So the presence of that,
conbined with the utilization differences, would be a key
factor in wanting all the mlk to pool if we were going to
incorporate all the class prices into a blend price.

Q Gkay. But mandatory pooling does not apply to outside
other California mlk that m ght seek to associate with a new
California order, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And that volume of outside mlk may elect freely to
pool or depool on a nmonth-to-nonth basis wthout limtation,
correct?

A, Wen you say without limtation, | would disagree with
that because there are standards where m |k outside the order
to have to meet in order to pool

Q Performance standards?

A.  Performance standards, vyes.

Q But thereis no limtation conparable to that in the
Upper M dwest, Central Market, or M deast that would restrict
the volune that could come back after opportunistic pooling for
one nonth?

A Say that again.

Q The Upper M dwest order, the Mdeast order, and the
Central Order --
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A Yes.

Q Contain disincetives to depool by limting the anmount

of mlk that can conme back to the pool.

A Yes.

Q Does your proposal contain those?
A Yes, there's 115 percent.

Q Exactly like the Upper M dwest?
A No.

Q No?

JUDGE CLIFTON: Let himtalk and then you can.
MR VETNE: Sorry.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So start again, M. Hollon, wth your

response. He wants to know, is there no limt conparable to

the Upper M dwest, the Mdeast, or the Central disincetives.

[f you will respond to that.
BY MR VETNE:

Q Howis it conparable?

A. To the, | would say, the conparable is that there are

limtations. The percentage, | think, in our proposal

is 115

percent, for exanple. The Upper M dwest repooling percentage,

if you wll, is 135 percent, so there are differences there.

Q Ckay. Are there any other restrictions?

A You cannot pool until you deliver five days to a 7(a)

or 7(b) plant, and there's a limtations on the anmount that you

can divert, and those are high standards. And if those
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standards are actually met, we think that woul d be economc

justification for that mlk supply to be a part of the pool,
but those are very high standards and woul d require a pretty
hi gh econom c justification.

Q A 7(a) or 7(b) plant, is that an individual producer
touch base requirenment or is that an --

A Yes.

Q Gkay. That can be 7(a) or 7(b) plant |ocated in or
out side the marketing area?

A, No, inside the narketing area.

Q Wy would -- why could it not be outside the marketing
area? There is opportunity for a distributing plant to be
pool ed under the new California Order by neeting the 7(a) or
7(b) standards, correct?

A.  Because that's not the proposal.

Q Under your proposal, mlk originating on California
farm ranch, can be marketed outside of the state and not be
included in the California pool?

A, Correct.

Q Ckay. And whether it's included or not, it is sinply a
function of reporting handlers decision to wite that farm and
farm nunbers on the pool report or not included in the pool
report, correct?

A Is this the sane farmthat delivered out-of-state?

Q Yes. DFA for exanple.
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A.  Uh- huh.

Q Can take m |k of a producer |ocated within California
mar keted out-of-state to an out-of-state plant, and include it
in the pool report as a diversion, or just take it, leave it
out of the pool entirely, correct?

A. | think the answer to that is yes.

Q Gkay. Do you see that the disparate pool association
opportunities for in-state and out-of-state m |k under your
proposal, mght provide in California sonmething |ike, instead
of pool access fees, pool de-access fees?

A. | would say nothing is inpossible in our industry, it
seens, but | haven't really considered that.

Q Gkay. Wuld you agree with ne that the nmen and wonen
of AMS should carefully look at this proposal, |ike every
proposal, for opportunities of inventive profit-driven
marketers to exploit gane or take advantage of the systemto
t he di sadvantage of others?

A | don't think that's any different responsibility of
the Secretary. W have pointed one out that would be nmuch nore
l'i kely than the scenario that you have described. Certainly to
deliver mlk to an out-of-state |location in order to avoid
bei ng pool ed would carry a substantial cost. And that cost
m ght outwei gh even the thoughts of doing it, even if it were
possi bl e.

Q Gkay. And finally, question or two about the Fallon
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plant. It is a fairly new plant, correct?

A It is.

Q What's the capacity of the plant?

A, | think that's a proprietary. It is to nme, but |
choose not to answer.

Q Ckay. Is it operating at capacity at the nmonment?

A It's not.

Q Howlong has it been in operation?

A | don't renmenber when it started. |It's recent is the
best | can tell you.

Q Has that plant received m Ik of California Federal
originating on California dairy farns?

A At tines it has.

Q Has that plant received mlk originating at dairy farns
| ocated outside California or Nevada?

A.  To ny know edge, it has not.

Q Gkay. Does the have enough capacity to accommodate
mlk fromoutside those two states?

A Wll, to the extent it can receive one pound, it could
get themfrom somewhere, but to, as far as | know, up to now it
has not done that.

Q Ckay. Have the receipts at the Fallon plant, if you
know, included both mlk that has been pooled and m |k that has
not ?

A, Wll, it has certainly received mlk that has not been
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pooled in California. |'mnot aware of the other side of the
equation, | don't know the answer.

Q Thank you. That's all | have.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Before we continue with cross-exam nation
of M. Hollon, | want to know if anyone has -- | want to know
i f anyone has arrived who would like to testify today? Yes.
Wul d you cone and identify yourself for us?

MR, FLUEGEL: M nane is Roger --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Cone forward, into this m crophone.

MR, FLUEGEL: Hello, ny name, your Honor, is Roger Fluegel,
I'"'ma Visalia resident of California and a dairyman in
Cali fornia.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And how do you spell Roger and Fl uegel ?

MR. FLUEGEL: Ckay. Roger, ROGER M last nane,
unusual to California, it's a German nane, Fluegel,

F-L-U E-GE-L.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So there are lots of Germans in California.
That was a joke, right?

MR, FLUEGEL: Well, yes, that was a joke as far as in the
dairy industry.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Right. W have Dutch, also, you know,
that's even harder.

MR, FLUEGEL: | married one.

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're getting close to |unch.

MR, FLUEGEL: | understand.
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JUDCGE CLIFTON: Do you want to testify before we break for
[ unch or are you content --

MR, FLUEGEL: After.

JUDGE CLI FTON: After is good?

MR FLUEGEL: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Before we continue with
cross-exam nation of M. Hollon, | want to know whet her the
rest of you want to break for lunch before we conclude that or
whet her you want to press on with M. Hollon? Break? A lot of
peopl e say break. | think that's a good plan. It is hard work
what he's doing. All right.

So let's see, it's about 1:20, so what do you think?
1: 40, is that good? Al right, please be back and ready to go
at 1:40.
(Wher eupon, the lunch recess was taken.)

---000- - -
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VEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 - - AFTERNOON SESSI ON

JUDGE CLI FTON: Back on record at 1:45. Nowit's 1:46. |
would like toinvite M. Fluegel to conme forward, please, and
be seated in the witness stand. And after M. Fluegel has
testified, I"'mgoing to ask Ms. May to repeat the announcenent
about where the audi o web cast can be found that website.

M. Fluegel, 1'll swear you in in a seated position.
Woul d you rai se your right hand, please? Do you solemmly swear
or affirmunder penalty of perjury that the evidence you will
present will be the truth?

MR FLUEGEL: Yes, ma'am

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. Please state and spell your
name, and scoot a little closer to the mc if you would. You
may want, because you are tall, you may want to position it a
little differently. | think that will probably be good.

MR FLUEGEL: 1'Ill do ny best. | have never testified
prior to this, so hopefully you will respect ny inexperience, |
shoul d say.

Good norning, nmy name is Roger Fluegel, ROGER ny
| ast name is F-L-U E-G E-L.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. M. Beshore, nmay proceed.

MR, BESHORE: Were we going to take M. Fluegel's testinony
before Ms. May?

JUDGE CLIFTON: | think so.

Iy
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q So, good afternoon, M. Fluegel, and thank you for
appearing here today. Do you have -- are you a dairy farmer in
Cali fornia?

A Yes, sir.

Q Gkay. Do you have sonme notes that you would like to
present for the hearing today?

A I'mold-style, I handwmote this. It is not al
conputer-generated, but it's fromthe heart.

Q Please proceed.

A. Ckay. Ladies and Gentlenen, | appreciate the
opportunity, nost of all, | appreciate the United States
Department of Agriculture for calling this hearing at the
request of an overwhelmng najority of ny fellow dairynen in
Cali fornia.

| amunique and |'ma dairyman fromCalifornia. | grew
up in a small dairy in Illinois of 40 cows. | graduated from
[1linois State University, received a Bachel or of Science
degree. | then went on to work for the National Hol stein
Associ ation as a field consultant. | covered a four-state
regi on, Nebraska, Kansas, Col orado, New Mexico. After working
there for several years, | was transferred to California via
the National Hol stein Association in 1989.

Continuing to work for National Hol stein Association,
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and then in 1992, '93, | ventured out on my own. The

uni queness part of it is, I'"'mnmarketing cattle where people
would hire nme to market cattle, to go out and find cattle for
themto inport to California fromthe Mdwest. | continued to
do that for several years, and other tasks, but mainly that was
ny main thing that | did.

In 1998, | formed a partnership wth another gentl enan,
and started mlking cows in Visalia, California. W continued
do that and also started a calf operation. Continue to mlk
cows and have calves, | continued to narket cattle, so on so
forth, to the point where we kept doing that.

And then with ny connections in the Mdwest, in 2004 |
invested into a partnership in a dairy in Mnnesota, which is
| eading into nmy uni queness. In 2010, | becane a sole
proprietor in ny dairy, and | have a dairy now | ocated where |
| ease a facility in Hanford, California, where we mlk cows
t here.

My initial investnment in Mnnesota has grown to four
facilities, South M nesse, South M nneapolis, North Mankato.

Havi ng an interest in other areas has been very
telling. As | continue to market the dairy cattle, it was
interesting how the flow of cattle reversed. | brought cattle
in, nowl'min a situation where |'mgetting calls from people
to help ne find cattle, because | know they are | eaving

California.
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It's an interesting contrast, but yet | think it is
very telling to what's going on in the dairy industry in
California. Wth this perspective of having a dairy in
M nnesota and having a dairy here, it is ny perspective that |
can strongly, strongly say that | support, along with a mjor
majority of nmy fellow dairynmen, the proposal submtted to the
Federal Order plan by the co-ops of CDI, LOL, and DFA. This
group com ng together has been unprecedented. | feel it has
done a wonderful job in a thene to propose and hel p ensure that
the dairy industry would be allowed on an equal playing field
with the rest of the country. They have incorporated quota
into their pricing, which is a significant part of the history
and part of the dairy industry in California. |f quota was not
mai ntai ned, it would be devastating to me and a nunber of ny
fellow dairynmen. ['mnot sure what | would do to my bottom
l'i ne.

As | nmentioned, trends say a |ot. People can say many
things, yet where they go physically, will show you nore than
enough. Wien 75 to 80 percent of dairy replacenent at current
auctions | eave the state, this is your future.

In the Mdwest, there is a years' waiting list for
dairy construction crews. Here, | don't recall how nmany years
it's been since new construction of dairies. W need to
realize that dairy industry is a significant part of

California. It brings a significant part of the economc
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bal ance within California representing 190,000 jobs. 19
j obs, as due noted by the econom c inpact report done by
UC Davis in the May of 2015. Hence, for every 9.4 cows

one j ob.

0, 000

equal s

My point of making this statenent is, it is not just a

coupl e of Cooperatives, it is not just a couple of chees
plants, it's a society that California dairy has devel op
I nto.

The sinple fact is, the industry is asking for a
bal ance pricing conpared to other areas in the country.
do testify there is a significant difference fromwhat |

receive fromny mlk in Mnnesota and what | receive fro

e

ed

| can

m ny

mlk in California. It is inportant to nmy fellow dairynen,

it"s inmportant to our industry, and it is inportant to o
comuni ties. Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON:. M. Fluegel, thank you. W'Ill now o
floor to questions of M. Fluegel. M. Beshore, did you
some specific questions you wanted to ask him before
Cross-exam nation?

MR BESHORE: | do. And | -- M. Vlahos has a coup
questions also, so | would like to yield to himafter
coupl e.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Thank you for being here, M. Fluegel. Are you h
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your own initiative and voluntarily today?

A I'mhere on my own initiative and by support from
fell ow dairynmen that seeked nme out and asked for me to testify
because of ny uniqueness that |'mfromthe Mdwest and | have
investments in the Mdwest, and | have an honest opinion and
honest information as far as what's going on

Q So that's why you are here to testify?

A Yes, it is ny reason. |'mvery involved in the
industry, | believe in California, | believe in what they have
done. |I'mnot one to junp just because things don't go your

way one day, you work it out. And | have a passion for our
i ndustry and ny conmunity ny famly.

Q Gkay. You nentioned being enployed by an organi zation
that | don't think has come up in the hearing before, and
woul d l'ike you to just identify, tell us what the Nationa
Hol stein Association is, so that that's --

A. Ckay. The National Holstein Association is a nationa
organi zation that enpl oys people to cone out and being
consul tants for the dairymen throughout the United States. |
woul d go and advi se dai ryman on managenent practices, | woul d
advi se dairymen on genetic selection, and just dairy
procedures. | was a public relations individual that would
hel p young kids, the dairynen to anywhere from 20 cows to
20, 000 cows.

Q Gkay. So the National Holstein Association is for
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dai rymen who m |k Holstein cattle?

A. Correct.

Q What the National All-Jersey is to Jersey dairymen

A. Correct.

Q Al-Jersey's come up here before, but Holstein hadn't,
just bring that out.

A. Correct.

Q Can you tell us just a little bit about your farms that
you are a partner in in Mnnesota, nunber of cows, how you
market, and the same thing in California, just to give us a
little more background?

A I'"'ma nenber of California Dairies in California, CDI,
in California. | mlk alittle over 1400 cows here in
California. Mnnesota, one operation's grown to four, of which
the four operation there's one that exclusively Jersey and two
of themthat are exclusively Holstein, and then we have one
mxed facility that we refer to as a special needs facility
where all the calving is done.

Q And howis your mlk marketed?

A.  DFA

Q Do you -- can you tell us for a recent period what the
conparabl e prices you have been paid for mlk in Mnnesota
operations versus California?

A, Kind of expected this question. So what | didis, |

have the net price that | received on ny two Holstein dairies
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in Mnnesota and ny dairy in California. These are conparable,
fat test, conparable protein, conparable somatic cell, pretty
much Iike for like. The net proceeds difference was $3.25 a
hundr edwei ght .

Q For when period of tinme?

A, For August of 2015. And if you incorporate ny quota
that | have purchased in California, you can add another 50
cents to the $3.75, and that's actual

Q So just so there's no question in the record --

A.  That's net proceeds.

Q That's after -- after hauling expenses, mailbox price,
I n essence?

A. That's what | received in the check.

Q kay. And the greater price the difference is greater
price in Mnnesota versus the price in California?

A Yes, sir.

Q Thank you. That's all the questions | have. | wll
yield to M. M ahos with your Honor's consent.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Yes, and while M. Vliahos is conming to the
podi um how do you spell Mankato?
MR FLUEGEL: MA-N-K-A-T-O | believe.
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VLAHCS:
Q John VM ahos, representing the co-op of the proponents

of Proposal Number 1. CGood afternoon
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A. Thank you.

Q | just have a few questions. You nentioned the, in
your direct or your testinony that you just gave, the
I nportance of quota to you. Can you tell us how nuch of your
production is covered by quota?

A I'mroughly, in California | purchased quota that's
equi val ent to approximately one-third of my production.

Q In the quota that you purchased, your quota, did you
purchase all your quota?

A. | purchased it over a period of tine. Quota's an
interesting scenario in that it is very definitive where you
pay an awmful lot of money for it, but it is still based on a
return, based on cash availability, what interest cost is, and
things like that. It's a-- 1 think it's been a really
beneficial part conponent to the California Dairy Industry. As
a matter of fact, you know, it woul d be devastating for ne not
to have it for all the noney that | have invested init. |
can't inmagine how | would go on

Q Wen did you first purchase quota?

A | first purchased quota 15 years ago, and then |
purchased it all the way up to 2010.

Q You place the value of your quota on your financia
statements, your bal ance sheet?

A (Oh, yes, if you have to owe peopl e noney, they want

every asset that you have, of course it is directly affected on
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Q And so you use your bal ance sheet, your assets, for
your finances, correct?

A Yes.

Q Including the quota?

A Yes.

Q | understand that you have been involved in sone way
wth the California M|k Advisory Board, sonetines called the
CVAB?

A. Correct. | was elected by ny peers within ny district.
| served one term | believe it was 2011, '12, and '13. It's
very inmportant task once again, it is, you know, it's kind of
ny personal opinion that we need to be involved in an industry.

['mnot a fan of people that sit back and do nothing, and you

know, | believe in the industry, | believe in the cows, |
believe -- | believe inthe -- | believe in the industry,
peri od.

Q I'msure that nmost of the people in the audi ence here

are famliar with the CMAB, but would you describe what it is?
A CMAB is the acronymfor California MIk Advisory Board.
It oversees the approxinately $40 million of advertising budget
that's in the pronotion of California dairy products. The best
recogni zed for the real California seal or |abel or tradenark,
of black and gold, with the cow and it says Real California on

It.
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Q It is the thing you see on cartons of mlk or cheese?

A, On cartons of mlk, on advertisenent, formerly known
national ly for happy cow.

Q Now, you indicated that the function of CMAB, in part,
is to pronote and sale of California dairy products. Does that
include all kinds of dairy products?

A. Al kinds. W pronote a significant amount of cheese,
fluid mlk, powder, we pronote it internationally and
nationally. W sell products, or help pronote the facilitation
of products, | believe in all 50 states, even Al aska.

Q And internationally as well?

A, And internationally as well.

Q And what kinds of products are pronoted nationally and
internationally, just in general?

A Qite honestly it's all of them Ice cream nostly
cheese, butter, our fluid mlk, quite honestly, is nore on a
cl oser geographical thing. However, we do pronote our fluid
product on high -- high tenp, the name escapes nme, but for
foreign consideration as well. So | nean, it's a multiple of
different ones. And then we pronote it as far as California
Dairy Research, as far as research and devel opnent and product
and research, we have done that a nunber of times. | nean, we
sell, help pronote the -- actually, what we do is we take
buyers with processors fromCalifornia, and put themtogether.

Hel p facilitate their merger to better adequately get
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famliarized with their California dairy.
Q Thank you very nmuch. That's all | have.
A.  Thank you.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wio woul d next |ike to question
M. Fluegel ?
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Good afternoon, M. Fluegel, ny nane is Chip English
for the Dairy Institute of California. And | have, at nost, a
coupl e of questions, | may only have just one.

When you were responding to questions from M. Beshore,
you tal ked about a difference between M nnesota and California
of August 2015 that was $3.25, right?

A Roughly, yeah.

Q Roughly?
A.  Dependi ng.
Q I'mnot -- yeah. And but then you referenced sonething

about if you take into quota into consideration quota, did I
hear you say the difference would go up by 50 cents?

A. This is correct. What | referenced to, is, sir, if |

may - -
Q Yes, sir
A. | referenced to net proceeds per hundredwei ght of mlKk.
Ckay.
A. | have one-third quota is, of my mlk produced,
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one-third of it is based on quot a.

Q Ckay.

A. California mlk quota. |In using rough figures of the
difference what | receive as far as the, for one-third of ny
mlk, and | brought it back out equatively, it would be
approximately 50 cents. So if | did not have quota, it was al
overbase, it would be roughly, my estimation $3.75, give or
take a coupl e of pennies.

Q kay. That was what | was trying to clarify. Thanks.
That's all 1 have.

#4: John Vetne. Representative for Hilmar.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE:
Q | just have a couple of questions on the Real
California seal deal. It's true that nost of the advertising

pronotion noney that conmes into the Board from producers has
been used to pronote California cheese products; is that
correct?

A | would say that's incorrect.

Q Wat is nost of it used for?

A.  You used, you used the word nost, and that's not a
definitive nunber.

Q Ckay.

A It is distributed between all the products, sir. And I

can't define your word nost for that. It's equally
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distributed. It's the brand nore of it is based on the brand
of the real seal of California that's the |ogo. To be
definitive on a specific product, is inaccurate in that I

woul dn't agree with that.

Q Ckay. That's fine. And an objectiveis to -- is to
increase the nmarket for California-origin cheese products, for
exanple, in other markets in the United States with the seal on
it?

A, Once again, you are using the word definitive as
cheese, and | would say it's definitive as far as marketing
California dairy products. It's not definitive to cheese
alone, it's not definitive to powder alone, it is on nultiple
different products. It is definitive of California produced
products.

Q The Real California is on the package of many products;
Is that correct?

A. | think that's a fair, fair and accurate description.
Many products, many conpani es, many products.

Q Many conpani es, many products, and nany of which are
mar ket ed out-of-state to markets to the East, correct?

A. W narket internationally, and we nmarket donestically.

Q Yes.

A So a definitive direction? W narket to all 50 states
inthe United States, and we market to, to ny understanding, a

nunmber of countries. To be definitive on the actual nunber, |
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cannot -- | cannot with quote that, |I'msorry.

Q Gkay. There are periodic reports or reviews submtted
to the CMAB on the success of the pronotion program is that
correct?

A, Could you rephrase the question? |'mnot sure |
understand it.

Q The Board periodically receives informtion and
anal ysis on the success of the pronotion progranf

A.  The Board receives a personal perspective from
i ndi vidual s that are involved on their performance for a
particular area, region, and/or product that's been defined by,
| would say, their own personal perspective. But the actual
performance is sonething that is a nmoving target.

Q Yes.

A Sol can't, | don't think I"'mreally, | have been off
the Board for a couple of years as of recent, but we have
different things to say this is how much increase in product
was to a particular area or a particular conpany. But that's
the only thing, sometinmes those are assunptions, but once
again, with nany conpanies, their amount of product or anount
of sales is proprietary, so they don't share it with us. So to
be definitive on that is very difficult because we don't ask
conpanies, that 1'maware of, to provide proprietary
information |ike that.

Q |Is the CMAB as an organi zation, does it have soneone
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col l ecting aggregate information so that the Board may observe
and anal yze, for exanple, increased share of the cheese narket
in Denver of mlk bearing the California seal?

A.  You are going to have, the general information we have
is, to my know edge, is not definitive to a market share in
Denver or different ones. Al we can do is neasure the anount
of products that we see on the shelf. W don't have the
proprietary information of actually what volune of product
| eaves the shelf. M understanding is that we only know how
much shelf shares that we have carrying the | abel

Q ©Oh, okay. So when a product is scanned at checkout, it
gives you information on the origin.

A. Once again, that's proprietary by the conpanies. They
don't tell us how much product they sold there. Al we are, as
in CMAB when | was on there, is we try and connect individuals
in California, H lmar Cheese, wth the opportunity to sel
product when we find soneone |ooking for a product that H | mar
Cheese may carry.

Q Ckay. You are not famliar with the service that
Ni el son provi des, analysis of scanned itens and marketing
share?

A No, I"'mnot.

Q Ckay. That's fine. I'mfromMiine, and in ny
nei ghbor hood, Cabot cheese, Vernont cheese, is consunmed a | ot

and in Vernont nmarkets its, its origin as a premum and
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California does something simlar through its Real California
seal, correct?

A.  To ny know edge, yes.

Q Okay. Differences in California, if a nanufacturer
receives a load of mlk fromany out-of-state farmer, they are
not eligible to bear that seal, correct?

A. | don't believe so.

Q You do not believe so. You think it is a function of
where the product is manufactured?

A California dairynen's products, because we, as
dai rymen, | have to put in ten cents for California for
pronotions, so | would believe not, no.

Q Gkay. Then I have no further questions. Thank you

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wio next would like to ask questions of
M. Fluegel ?
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. TAYLOR

Q Good afternoon, M. Fluegel. This is Erin Taylor of
USDA. | want to thank you on behalf of the Departnent for
com ng here today to testify and put your views in here as a
California dairy farner

| have a question, well, just a few questions, but you
tal k about the price difference you see between what you
receive frommlk in California and what you receive for

conparable mlk in Mnnesota. Can you just elaborate a little
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on your opinion on why there's that price difference?

A. The fornulas are very conplicated, and so |'mgetting
above nyself to be able to understand the formulas conpletely.

Q Just a general, | don't need the technical,
understand, we don't need that. But your general opinion of
why you see a difference?

A. The glaring problem difference is, | would equate to
the whey protein problem That the whey pricing, | think
that's the only thing that | see is a glaring difference
between the price in California and the price in Mnnesota. |f
| had one particular thing, | think that would be the glaring,
if there's one particular thing.

Q Gkay. And the Departnment, in making its decision, has
to | ook at the inpacts to small businesses. And the way a
smal | business is defined for a dairy farnmer is $750, 000 of
revenue a year, which we have roughly equated to about a
production of 315,000 pounds a nonth. Under that definition,
woul d you qualify as a small business?

A. No, |I'mbigger than that.

Q kay. Thank you. That's it.

A, But | wuld like to add, you know, in ny testinony, in
the sense that this is just a unit pricing for a hundred pounds
of mlk. And | respect the USDA' s opi nion, because | agree it
shoul d be consi dered whether you are mlking 50 cows, 500 cows,

or 5,000 cows. It is just a unit pricing that | think needs to
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be justified. And | think it's -- it's equally inportant no
matter what size dairy you are, if not nore inportant for that
dairy that don't have the efficiencies of a large dairy. |
think it is nost inportant for the snaller guy.

Q Thank you. And again, thanks for spending tinme with us
t oday.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR VANDENHEUVEL:

Q Geoffrey VandenHeuvel, GE-OF-F-RE-Y, and the | ast
name is V-ANDE-NHE-UV-E-L [I'ma dairy farmer in Chino,
California, and I do have a couple of questions here.

Real ly, first of all, thank you very nuch for
testifying. And you also have unique, be it, you are in a
uni que position because of your know edge of the way cattle
nove between California and the rest of the country, and maybe
even the rest of the world, so | believe you testified that you
were active in cattle novenent back how many years?

A 25.

Q And so would you say back around 19907?

A.  Yes, that's when | was noving cattle, that's how, one
of the reasons | canme to California, the National Holstein
Associ ation positioned ne to be out here because of that.

Q So how woul d you, were you personally involved in
facilitating the nmovenment of cattle fromthe Mdwest into

California as we were growng as a mlk production state?
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A, Loading the truck and unloading the truck.

Q Dd it happen very often where cattle noved the other

A. Rarely. Very rarely.

Q So why do you think the cattle were noving fromrest of
the country to California?

A. At that tine there was expansion in California where,
you know, | consider it simlar to water. Water goes where the
needs, where it's less. And we had a great need of cattle in
California, and I would buy cattle for people for that purpose.

Q Wuldit be fair to say that one of the reasons it was
a large demand for cattle into California is because it was
perceived to be profitable to produce mlk in California?

A Yes.

Q So we had sone cost of production advantages that naybe
weren't there to the rest of the country?

A Yes, it was a situation where | think you had a
conbination of all the factors. What people don't understand,
when | cane to California | was enanored by the quality of
dai rymen we have here, the wonderful industry that was
unmatched in the world. And when you take into consideration
of what they have done and what they have acconplished,
California' s been a | eader worldw de through their efficiencies
and their quality of managenent and what they have done.

Q So now that you have testified that the cattle are
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movi ng the other way, what would you characterize, what do you
think is the reason why this great influx of cattle to
California, now has reversed course and now cattle are |eaving
Cal i fornia?

A |1 think simlar to ny testinony, that a lot of tines
the physical noverment is a true indicator of profitability.
Where construction is done is where profitability, when they
have noney to do it. And, you know, | get calls from Col orado,
| get calls fromKansas City, | get calls from South Dakot a,
many pl aces requesting the ability of having ani mals, because
they know aninals are being sold once left and right out here
frompeople that are no | onger in business or going out of
busi ness that they can't maintain. And the nunber of people
that are going out of business in the Mdwest are quite limted
so they don't have access to aninals.

Q So how do you think, how conpetitive now are California
dairy farners considering that cattle can nove, you can put
themon a truck, right? And ship them How conpetitive are
California dairy farmers conpeting for the cattle that we would
need for our replacenment purposes?

A. | would probably refer to ny testinony that a roughly
75 to 80 percent of all replacenents | eave California when
auct i oned.

Q So it nakes it, it would be safe to assune, then, that

California dairynen are no longer able to conpete agai nst
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out - of -state buyers for those cattle?

A. | would agree.

Q W talk, and those of us who lived this 2009 --

A Yes.

Q This was, was a year that will go down in all of our
nmenories as probably the worst year that we have ever
experienced.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Now, do you want to ask himif he agrees
with that?
BY MR VANDEN HEUVEL:

Q Do you agree with that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A Painfully, yes.

Q Painfully, yes. | feel your pain. So was there a
change in, in your experience in the attitude of the |ending
community toward the dairy industry as we energed out of 2009
into 2010, 20117

A. Significantly. Significantly changed. You had Bank of
Amrerica wi thdrawi ng many of their accounts, you had Wlls Fargo
w t hdrawi ng many of their dairy accounts, significant nunber of
the lending institutions no |onger, no |onger serviced and/or
want ed dairy | oans.

Q kay. As they began to react to what had happened, as

the financial comunity reacted to the loss of profitability
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that 2009 represented, were there instances that you are aware
of where the financial, where the pressure on the dairy owners
was to |iquidate assets, particularly replacenment prograns,
young stock cattle, calf and young stock repl acement prograns?

A Yes, because, you know, definition of understanding
dairy industry, you have to liquidate sale of assets that are
not giving you return on investment. And a six-nonth old
hei fer does not give you any mlk, so you need to put all your
noney and mai ntain your noney in assets that are returning an
investment. So they would sell those animals trying to reduce
their debt to equity ratio.

Q On average, what's been your experience that a dairy
farnmer calls and needs to replace just to maintain a stable
m | ki ng herd?

A Could you re --

Q \Wiat --

A Wat --

Q How many --

A. A call percentage?

Q Yeah, what would be the call percentage of -- what
percent age of a herd woul d get renoved fromthe herd and need
to be replaced by younger aninmals, in your experience?

A, Cenerally speaking, it's between 40 and 45 percent, but
it's relative to the managenent conditions and the environnent

and the intensity of the facility. So in rule of thunb, it's
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40 to 45.

Q Ckay. So while you just referred to a six-nmonth old
hei fer doesn't give a return right now because, how ol d woul d
that heifer need to be before it enters the m|lking herd?

A, Roughly, rule of thumb is 23 to 24 nonths.

Q Gkay. So on an annual basis, you just said about 40
percent, thereabouts, of a herd would be called and need to be
repl aced by young stock. And so while the six-nonth old aninal
isn't ready to be part of that herd, because you said between
23 and 24 nmonths old, the getting rid of it today means that 18
months from now that animal would not be avail abl e.

A,  Exactly.

Q So that, that farner, that dairyman who had |iqui dated
young stock, got a short-termbunp in its relationship, but it
didn't create an obligation to, would it create an obligation
for that dairy farmer then, a year-and-a-half later to have to
find a replacenent ani mal ?

A Yes.

Q And have you got any estinmation, and there's no exact
science, |'mnot expecting exact number, but in your
experience, what percentage of California dairy farmers were in
that position in that 2010 to '12, '13 where they needed to
l'i qui date their replacenent prograns?

A \Wat percent age?

Q Yeah. If you just -- a guess?
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A It is a guess, | -- oh ny goodness. It would be
difficult for me to guess, but it is -- | would have -- | would
prefer the opportunity to see the reduction nunber of dairies
from2009 to 2011. | think would be an accurate assunption of
from 2009 to 2012, the nunmber of dairies that are less in
California would be highly correlated with the nunber of
ani mal s, people that were no longer in business. So | can't
give you a defined --

Q Understood. Understood. But the question is, was it
one or two dairy farnmers that had to |iquidate heifer prograns
or was it a number that's significant?

A. The nost telling part of that would be the maturity of
the dairy, whether you had |long-term you know, if it is a
facility that's 25 years old that had everything paid for,
because a lot of dairies rather than do that were able to
rei nvest and borrow back against their |and base. But if you
had a younger dairy that did not have a | and base, or didn't,
they nore than likely did. So if it was a dairy that was one
to five years old, | would guesstinate half of those people
did. If you had a dairy that was five to ten years old, maybe
25 percent. And if you had a dairy that was greater than ten
years old, | would roughly say ten percent. |If you are putting
in, you know, or | had to answer it, that would be ny
estinmation.

Q That's very helpful. Because it, it raises at |east
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three questions, and I'lIl give you the three and then we'll see
if we can unpack 'em

One is, what happened to those young aninmals? Two is,
what position is that farmer now who has to buy those
repl acements in, in regards to conpeting now, because they are
in the market. So let's take those two.

From your experience, when a heifer program canme up for
sal e because of a dairy farmer needed to liquidate it for
financial reasons, do you have any sense of where those cattle
ended up, those young stock?

A Interestingly enough, in 2010, a high percent of them
ended up at Harris Ranch

Q And Harris Ranch is what?

A, A beef facility. Mst of those ended up being carne
asada.

Q Never to mlk again?

A, Never to mlk again.

Q Never to have another calf and sustain a generation?

A No, they didn't. And then other ones went
out-of-state. There was also at that time a | ot of export
going on to foreign countries and Mexico and a | ot of exports
goi ng on.

Q So these aninmals which were born and raised in
California, this young stock, and there to fuel our and sustain

our growth, would it be right to say they really permanently
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exited the California mlking herd?

A. | would agree.

Q Themand their progeny?

A Yes.

Q So with that being said, that they are no |onger here

and avail able to be purchased, the dairy farmers now who has
liquidated that is in a position where that dairy farnmer has to
go into the market. And as you earlier testified, as the
repl acement markets take place, and -- how are replacenents
pur chased and sold in California today?
A. By the head.
By the head. |In auctions, by treaty?
Al of the above.
But there's a conpetition for these ani mals?

Yep, the definition of supply and denmand.

o > O > O

And so the California dairy farmer's ability to conpete
for those animals is, they need them but they have to conpete
W t h whoever whatever other buyers mght be in the narket?

A, Sure.

Q And your testinony is, is that about 75 percent of
t hese replacenents, even within the state that becone
avai | abl e, your experience is that they are being sold to
buyers out-of -state?

A, Correct.

Q Wll, that is certainly a situation that is different
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t han what we experienced in years past.

A. Correct.

Q And one that sounds distressing to you?

A. Concerning. | nean, | have been involved in, | have
invested 25 years of nmy life in California, and I, you know, |
have a daughter that's a Sophonore and a daughter who is a
Senior, and it's not ny desire to nove.

Q As you look at the future for California, given the
reality of where we are, if soneone were to project that
California was going to continue to increase three percent, two
and a half, three percent in production per year under the
exi sting economc situation that we find ourselves in, what
woul d you think of such a projection? | nean, out, say for the
next ten years?

A | think it would be very foolish because we don't, we
have a nunber of factors that's going to hinder our ability to
i ncrease production. And our pricing is one. W have other
factors that cone into play, in nmy opinion

Q No further questions.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wio next would |ike to question

M. Fluegel? M. Fluegel, that was conpelling testinony, I

t hank you
MR. FLUEGEL: | thank you for the opportunity, your Honor.
JUDGE CLIFTON:  You're wel cone.

Ms. May, would you cone do your announcenent about
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where the webcast can be found now?

M5. MAY: No change since this norning, but just so you
know, the new link for the audio feed is at
WWw. ans. usda. gov/ | i ve.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. |Is there anything el se
prelimnary to M. Hollon resuming the stand? There is not.
M. Hol lon, welcone back. M. English?

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q ood afternoon, M. Hollon

A.  Good afternoon, M. English

Q And do you have Exhibit 1 wth you, those of the
heari ng?

A | do.

Q So | may have m sheard when you were being questioned
by M. Vetne, in which case, if we clear it up that's fine, or
maybe we need to clear it up.

He was discussing with you the issue of mlk and touch
base. And | thought | heard you say that the touch base
requirement is for a 7(a) or (b) plants. Did | hear correctly?

A.  The touch base requirement that's in --

Proposal 1?
Yes, but in 13(d).

Yes.

> O > O

So that requirenent says, "a producer is not eligible
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to diversion unless five days production of such dairy farnmer
physically received his producer mlk at a pool plant --"

THE COURT REPORTER: |'msorry, can you read a little
sl ower? Thanks.

MR HOLLON: "M Ik of the dairy farmer shall not be
eligible for diversion until at |least five days production of
such dairy farner is physically received as producer mlk at a
pool plant during the first nonth the dairy farnmer is a
producer."

BY MR ENG.I SH

Q So --
A 1'll continue, though.
Q Al right.

A, And then skipping down to 2, the diversions are limted
to 50 percent of the producer receipts, and that 50 has to be
delivered to plants described in 7(a) or (b).

Q Sol --1 was --

A |s that what you are asking?

Q Well, I was trying to get at one first. And | may
have -- | may have m sheard or maybe -- naybe between and you
M. Vetne got a little confusing. The physical touch base
requi rement of five days is a -- leaving aside diversion rules
for a nonent, it is a pool plant, correct?

A, Correct.

Q Wiich could be any pool plant?
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Yes.
Not just a 7(a) or 7(b) plant, correct?

Correct.

o > O P

Now, the diversion --

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English, just so the record hel ps
people find this, in Exhibit 1, what is the Federal Register
page nunber you are on?

MR ENGLISH. He and | are on page 47213.

We're in Section 13, and for the Federal Register purposes,
he was reading the first two paragraphs of Colum 2 of 47213,
or was referring to. Al right.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So just for clarity, and again, if | msheard, |
apol ogi ze. The initial touch base programyou can't divert at
all until the production has been received five days at any
pool plant, correct?

A. Correct.

Q So now going to paragraph 2. This is about the

quantity of mlk diverted as opposed to before you can divert,

correct?
A. Correct.
Q And |l ama little confused, so | just want to wal k

through it, because you have two 50 percent rules. You have
quantity of mlk diverted by a handl er described in the

1000.9(c), so a Cooperative -- may not exceed 50 percent of the
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producer mlk received reported by the handler pursuant to

1051. 30(c).
Now, before we get to the proviso, well, okay -- here's
the proviso -- provided that not |ess than 50 percent of such

receipts are delivered to plants described in 7(a) or (b). So
let me just use an exanple. Let's say you have a hundred

mllion pounds of mlk reported by the handl er pursuant to

.30(c).
A Ckay.
Q | take it the first 50 percent neans that no nore than

50 mllion pounds coul d be diverted?

A. Provided that --

Q Ckay.
A -- 50 mllion were delivered to a 7(a) or (b) plant.
Q kay. That's what I'mgetting at. | just want to make

sure, | wasn't sure if the 50 percent was nultiplied by 50
percent, so then what you are saying is, if you divert 50
mllion of a hundred mllion, that 50 mllion would have to
actually be delivered to an (a) or (b) plant.

A. Correct. A one for one diversion; is that fair?

Q Yeah, that's fair

A, Ckay. Fair understanding, let's put it that way.

Q | was just trying to nake sure for the record that is
wasn't sonething else that you nmultiplied 50 percent by the 50

percent and get a different result, but that's not what you are
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i ntendi ng, correct?

A No, it is not.

Q Now, paragraph 3 is witten using different verbiage,
but assume for a nonment the same hundred mllion pounds. And
this now has the, to do with the diversion by the operator of a
pool plant in (a) or (b). Wuld it work out the same way that
of the hundred mllion pounds, 50 mllion have to be received
at the (a) or (b) plant and 50 mllion can be diverted?

A, The intent is that.

Q Ckay. So even though it is witten differently, your
intent is for the result to be the same between paragraphs 2
and 37?

A. That is correct. | would say broadly that our intent
is for mlk outside the marketing area, that it be allowed to
be pooled if it neets the standards, but the standards are set
high in order to assure that there is a need for the ml|k above
and beyond just attenpting to associate with the pool.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Now, ny other set of questions
directly related to the questions asked by Ms. Hancock. And
that has to do with, you know, prior producer-handl er
proceedi ngs, and the issue of exenpt quota in this proceeding,
just to set the stage.

A. | understand.

Q You participated in the National Producer-Handl er

Hearing, correct?
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A | did.

Q And there was a proposal submtted at |east by
Mal lorie's, MA-L-L-OR-1-E"'-s, that when the proposal from
t he Cooperatives and the proprietary operators was that once
you get 3 mllion 1 pounds, you were fully regul ated, correct?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. Do you recall the Mallorie's proposal would be
that your first 3 mllion pounds, if you qualified as a
producer-handl er, would still be exenpt, and only the pounds
above 3 million pounds would be regul at ed.

A | don't recall that, but | would not be at all
surprised if that's what they submtted, and that's not our
intention. Qur intention would be, in your exanple, 3 mllion
and 1 pound woul d be fully regul ated.

Q Right. |If that issue was a proposal, the Departnent
obviously rejected it, correct? Because that's not what's in
Nat i onal producer-handl er |anguage throughout the Federa
Orders, correct?

A, Correct.

Q Now, based upon your know edge, the exenpt
producer-handlers in California, each would have nore than 3
mllion pounds of exenpt quota; is that correct?

A. | don't know that.

Q You don't know. Do you understand that the California

exenpt producer-handl ers purchase significant, | know you don't

3008

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

l'i ke that, they purchase volunes of mlk from outside sources.
Do you know t hat ?

A. | don't know that. | don't deny it, but I don't know
it to be true.

Q If it were the case that they purchase mlk from
out side sources, regardless of the 3 nmillion pound provision,
they woul dn't qualify under producer-handler rules if there was
nore than the 150,000 pound [imt?

A, That is correct.

Q Thank you. That's all | have.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VETNE:

Q John Vetne for H | mar Cheese Conpany. Just one
question in your exchange with -- one area of questioning.

You were tal king about outside mlk and standards. And
| wote down "outside mlk can be included in the pool if it
neets pooling standards, and the standards are pretty high."

A | think that's, you know, if that's not exactly what |
said, it is close. | would add the qualifier that outside, in
that context, means out of the marketing area?

Q Yes.

A.  Ckay. Fair enough.

Q Yes. Harkening back to pooling standard discussion in
prior hearings. Do you recall that an issue in one of the

M deast hearings was that mlk from Wsconsin and M nnesot a
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qualified to be in the pool because there were transactions
within the Mdeast that satisfied the performance standard for

an organi zation?

A. | think you are going to have to give ne sone nore
detail .
Q Like, percentage of -- of a Cooperatives delivery to

distributing plants in order to qualify for diversions, all of
the deliveries to the distributing plants could take place in
Chio, for exanple, and all of the diversions woul d take place
in Mnnesota or Wsconsin, so you have in-area qualifying
behavi or | everagi ng out of area pool qualification

A. (CGood description, and that is not our intention here.

Q But, in fact, your proposal allows in-area perfornance
of an institution or organization's delivery to 4a to purchase
7(a) and (b) plants the 50 percent rule, to qualify producer
mlk for diversions, whether it's diversion in-state or
out-of-state mlk. So in-state performance can qualify a
vol une of out of nmarket mlk, limted only by the volume of
mlk that is sold to 7(a) and (b) distributing plants.

A If that's the way that you read it, that's not our
intention. So if we need to reword that in some way, we woul d.

Q Ckay.

A That performance was solely based on the out-of-state
pool i ng handl er neeting those requirements. So we did not

intend for the description as you described in-area activity to
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qual ify out of area mlKk.

Q Gkay. An out-of-state pooling handler can be a handl er
that has raw m |k marketing operations both within and outside
of California, correct?

A, Could be.

Q Such as -- and DFA neets that?

A.  Could be.

Q It could be that DFA has m |k inside and outside
California? It is true, isn't it?

A.  Yes, that part is true, but I was follow ng your
question of what coul d one be.

Q Gkay. So an organization |like DFA that has both
I n-area and out-of-area producer mlk to market, can qualify
out-of-area m |k based on in-area performnce?

A. Again, I'mnot sure that | think the proposal |anguage
reads that way, but if it does, that's not our intention.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Mltner, you may cone forward.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR M LTNER

Q Ryan MItner for Select MIk Producers. | guess the
benefit of going toward the end is hopefully I'mnore focused
and shorter.

A. | hope you are correct.

Q | hope so, too. M. Hollon, you have your statenment up
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there? Exhibit 637

A Yes, sir.

Q Gkay. I1'mlooking at the very first paragraph, the
last line, and you state there that your proposal intends to
restore equity and fairness to both producers and handl ers, and
| want to junp off fromthere

A Ckay.

Q You were present during Dr. Erba's testinony and
Cross-exam nation, correct?

A Actually, I wasn't. I'msorry, but I was not in the
roomat that tine.

Q Gkay. M questions tie somewhat into his testinony, so
maybe | won't be quite as focused and short as | had hoped.

There were several questions asked of Dr. Erba
regardi ng the treatment of out-of-state producers and their
ability to participate in the California quota program And
you woul d agree that farners |ocated out-of-state, the mlk
produced out-of-state is conpletely ineligible to own or
receive California quota prices?

A | would agree.

Q And would you agree then, also, that the out-of-state
producer woul d necessarily receive a price |ower than any
producer hol ding California quota?

A, Yes.

Q In that sense, would you -- would you concl ude that
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those two producers are receiving equitable prices?

A, Well, they are receiving the prices that are set by the
regul ation, so | would have to cone to the end and say that was
the goal and target of the regulations, so they are receiving
an equitable price as defined by what the provisions say.

Q Ckay. I'malittle confused by that answer. Are you
saying that, that any producer receiving a regulated price is
therefore, receiving an equitable price?

A, In this case, that's what the provisions allow for, so
yes.

Q Ckay. You obviously were intimately involved with the
drafting of the proposal and the regul atory | anguage, correct?

A. Correct.

Q In preparing the proposal and, in specific, the
regul atory | anguage, did you consider the establishnent of a
separate pool for out-of-state mlk that woul d be paid before
California quota hol ders were paid?

A. W discussed it, yes, we did.

Q kay. Could you share with us perhaps why that option
was rejected by you or the proponents? | don't nean to pin it
entirely upon you.

A.  Fair enough. W discussed the pro's and con's, the, |
guess the conparisons, the history, and felt like that this was
the route that we wanted to choose. So --

Q | asked Dr. Erba something to the effect of, would the
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proponents of Proposal Nunber 1 consider nodifying the proposa
or considering an alternative proposal to establish a separate
out-of -state pool that would be paid before quota hol ders were
pai d? And at that tinme he said he could not answer the
question, that it would require himto consult with others.
Wuld that lead up, is that a situation that you can address?

A. W have not consulted as of yet.

Q Do you anticipate being able to consult before the
hearing concl udes?

A Possibly. W would, | think as you described earlier,
woul d have to listen to the rest of the testinony and perhaps
we may have an opinion on that.

Q Thank you. | would like to nove to page 5 of
Exhibit 63, and if you would just review the |ast sentence of
the second full paragraph, it reads:

"Because of the |ikely frequency of depooling and the
attendant negative inpact on marketing conditions, our proposed
pool ing provisions are the only solution."

A Yes, | see that sentence.

Q Ckay. So aml correct that you're qualifying your
characterization of mandatory pooling as "the only solution" as
alimtation, you're limting that characterization to the
uni que situation of the California market?

A, Yes.

Q If there were no California quota program would you

3014

BARKLEY
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

expect there to be other alternatives to inclusive pooling?

MR BESHORE: May |, your Honor?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You may, M. Beshore.

MR, BESHORE: | just want to object to that kind of
hypot hetical, which is obviously not in the real mof
possibility. And | don't know why it's inportant to have that
ki nd of hypothetical specul ation.

MR MLTNER  Your Honor, if | could address that for a
second.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Yes, let nme hear from M. English and then
['lIl hear fromyou, M. Mltner.

MR ENGISH | just want to refer back to |ast week and --

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Your nane?

MR. ENG.I SH:  Chip English. | apologize, | hadn't
forgotten it, |I forgot to give it.

Har ki ng back to | ast week and the di scussion we had
about experts and the opportunity to provide, under the Rul es
of Evidence, which, yes, they are | ooser with respect, or at
| east nore generous in these proceedings, nonethel ess going
back to M. Vetne's sort of cautionary thing. The purpose of,
one of the purposes of an expert is to give opinions on
hypot hetical situations. That's part of what they are there
for. And they are allowed to do that when lay w tnesses can't.
So if we're going to have any of these kinds of distinctions,

then the question that M. MIltner asked is conpletely

3015

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - VOLUME XV Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

appropriate just because that's what experts do, they give
opi nions, even about hypothetical situations, wth which sone
of us, or others, may not agree.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  And now, M. Mltner, | would like to hear
your response to the objection.

MR MLTNER Well, by letting M. English go first you
shortened ny conments on this.

The only thing that | would like to add is that the
W tness has said that the uniqueness of the California
Ssituation has limted their ability to offer alternatives to
inclusive pooling. And so | would like to explore briefly sone
certain aspects of the California market that could shed sone
light as to why this admttedly uni que and unprecedented, dare
| say, option, is the best alternative.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So as | understand your
qguestion, you want to know whether, if there were no quota, he
woul d still feel that way.

MR MLTNER | would like -- I think that's very
inportant. Specifically, what | would like to knowis, in the
absence of quota, would there be possible alternatives to
I ncl usi ve pooling?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You may answer.

MR. HOLLON:  There may well be, but | don't know how to
eval uate that because | can't -- | can't cone up with a

situation where there's not a quota program
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BY MR M LTNER

Q And | will accept that, but | guess, were there no
quota program it certainly would renove sone of the
constraints you saw, and your group saw, in drafting this
proposal ?

A, That would be true.

Q And nmaybe these were your words, naybe they were
soneone else's, but either in testinony or in publications, the
quota program was descri bed as a non-negoti abl e aspect of
Proposal 1, correct?

A. True.

Q And | guess it alnost becones a totalogy, if the quota
I's non-negotiable, then that includes the pooling is a
non- negot i abl e aspect of your proposal, correct?

A For our proposal, yes.

Q And -- and at the risk of asking a question | think
everybody knows the answer to except the record, DFA operates
inall Federal MIk Marketing Orders, correct?

A, No.

Q No?

A. No. W don't operate in Order 131.

Q Ah, forgot that. Thank you for clarifying that. But
obvi ously, the vast mgjority of the Federal Orders?

A. In that case, a neasure is correct.

Q As part of your job is to be famliar wth the
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marketing conditions in all the Federal Orders?

A Yes, | try.

Q Wuld you say you are intimately famliar with them
w th the exception of Arizona?

A | would say I'mreasonably famliar with narketing
operations in all of the orders.

Q Gkay. So taking into consideration the marketing
conditions in areas other than California, would inclusive
pooling be an undesirable option in the orders in which DFA
oper at es?

A. | don't know conpletely the answer to that. Certainly
t he performance standards which pooling falls under, are put
together, crafted based on conditions in each order, and
submitted as proposals and agreed to by the mgjority of the
producers in the order. So you know, would tonmorrow there be a
desire for an inclusive pooling provision in the Southwest
order? | don't know. And I don't know how the other
participants would respond to that, so | can't give you a
definitive answer.

At this point, | would say we have no plans to
i ntroduce an inclusive pooling provision at this time in any
other order. And so it is only proposed at this point in tine
inthis order.

Q Thank you. | don't have anything el se.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. M. Hollon, can you review for ne sone of
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the other factors why California's situation is unique, besides
the presence of quota with regard to marketing?

MR, HOLLON: | think, | don't know how many of them | wll
be able to give you, but certainly another one is the high
utilization of Federal Order Cass IIl and Cass IV, and no
other Order has as high of both of those uses as does
California. So the incentives to pool, as we have tried to
outline, would appear to us to be many, nmany, many tines, one
or the other of those two use classes would be incented to not
pool. And that would be, if that were the rules, that would be
a prudent decision to make. But the end result would be pretty
unwi el ding. It would be very difficult to run a marketing
program knowi ng every nonth your mninmumprice to blend price
was going to be inpacted by a |arge anount of mlk opting in or
out .

And so certainly, as you nentioned, the presence of
quota; the abilities to regulate |arge producer-handlers are
sonmet hing that going forward, we would say woul d be uniform
and the ability to deal with mlk and, in this case, it's
either fromoutside the state comng in, or inside the state
going out, or fluid mlk distribution comng into the state
woul d be regul ated on an equal or on a uniformbasis across the
country.

California doesn't use the same prices, formulas, dates

of maki ng decisions, as the other orders, and the rest of the
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Federal Orders, so that creates disparity in marketing
conditions, as | outlined in the first testinony.

['"'msure that in the mddle of the night I'll say, gee,
| should have added this other reason, but right now |I' m going
to end.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: | believe you tal ked about the borders of
California having an inpact, howit's geographically situated
in the world.

MR HOLLON:  Well, no other -- well, that's not true. The
Paci fic Northwest Order does border the ocean. But as a
general rule, California mlk is sonewhat self-contained,
there's obviously none produced to the West and none processed
to the West; to the North there's not a ot of mlk novenent,
very, very little between Oregon and California; to the East,
there is nore than to the North, but not nuch m |k movenent
bet ween Nevada and California; and between Arizona and
California there is, there has been nore m |k novenent, there
is not as much today. And there is, in our view, a fairly
substantial pooling mlk processor there that woul d be
advant ageous, in our opinion, to have Federal Regul ation
because it would inpact that conpetitive situation

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And when you say there, there is a mlk
processor there.

MR, HOLLON:  In Arizona, that is beyond the reach of the

Federal Order system
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JUDCGE CLI FTON: Thank you. Who next would like to -- oh,
see, now | have just sparked a | ot of interest.
M. Mltner first.
MR HOLLON: | was afraid of that.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR M LTNER
Q Ryan MlItner.
The handl er you referred to in Arizona, you stated that
he is outside, it is outside the reach of Federal Regul ation.
A. Qutside the reach of the state regulation.
Q kay. That was not, | think, what was, what canme out
of your nout h.
A, \Wat did you wite down, Judge difton?
JUDGE CLIFTON: | wote, "in Arizona, beyond the reach of
Federal -- "
MR, HOLLON:  That was incorrect.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Federal sonething.
MR HOLLON: It is beyond the reach of state regulation so
the state cannot regul ate that out-of-state environnent.
MR MLTNER And specifically, you are referring to the
ability of California to regulate that handler.
MR HOLLON:  Correct.
JUDCGE CLI FTON: See, it's good to have them
MR. ENG.ISH  Chip English. Wll, M. Mltner got nost of

the way there, but just to be abundantly clear, that plant is
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subject to Federal Regulation, and it is presently regul ated by
the Arizona Federal M Ik Marketing Order, correct?

MR, HOLLON: M understanding is, that is correct.

MR. ENGLI SH: Thank you.

Well, as to its sales in California, correct?

MR HOLLON:  Yes.

MR ENGLISH | understand it has sales in California, if
it is regulated under Arizona, it is because of the M|k
Regul atory Act, correct?

MR HOLLON: | woul d agree.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Who next has questions for M. Hollon?

Oh, before you redirect, M. Beshore, from USDA.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. TAYLOR

Q FErin Taylor. Good afternoon

A, CGood afternoon, Erin.

Q I'mgoing to preface this wth | did not have a
privilege of reading your statenment while you read it into the
record | ast week.

A, You nean you weren't |istening?

Q | was listening, but | didn't have the papers to | ook
at at the same tinme, which nakes it a little bit nore
difficult.

A, Correct.

Q So sone of ny questions | hope to nake sure things are
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clear in the record, and hopefully won't be too repetitive. |
have attenpted to clarify as nmuch as | can w thout having to
ask you all my questions.

A. It's so interesting how everyone says that as a preface
to their statenent.

Q Ckay. Let's see. I'mgoing to, can we go to
Exhibit 64, | think it is, your tables?

A Yes.

Q kay. So in Table 5. A you have the different
California State Prices, Cass 1 being that kind of weighted
price that you derived since you didn't have a State Cass 1
price?

A, That is correct.

Q Ckay. And so these class prices, are they what you use
then, in Table 5.C? Wen you --

A Yes.

Q ~-- cane up with the blend, you took those utilizations
in 5.Bmltiplied by the prices in 5. A to come up with your
California State blend and Federal Order blend in Colums H and
| ?

A, That is correct.

Q Ckay. And, okay.

A, So let ne nake clear for the purposes of the California
calculation, there was a Cass 1, 2, 3, 4a, 4b, so that would

result in five multiplications.
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For Federal Order there's one, which was a weighted; 2,
which was a weighted; and | also included 2 and 3; and then
Cass 3 and Class 4, so there would have been four. Ckay.

Q Gkay. | think | got you there.

A.  Thank you. [|'mglad you are done.

Q No, I'"'mnot done. Let's see. On Table E, 5.E can
you -- and | think that I would have, | know the answer if |
had it in front of me on Friday, but can you just explain what
col ums you added or subtracted to get K L, and M

A So if you were to take Colum C, and add H, I, and J,
and so, for exanple in H you woul d be adding a negative nunber,
and then you conpare that to the respective colums E, F, and
G the respective 2, the respective 3, the respective 4, you
should end up with K, L, and M

Q Ckay. So K, for exanple, is that C, plus H plus |

plus J, whatever that nunmber is, mnus Colum E for O ass 2?

A Yes.

Q And that gives you a negative 89 cents?
A, For what of the nonths?

Q For January, the first colum?

A.  January of?

Q I'msorry, I"'mon the first page of that table, so for

January of 2000 --

A. | trust you ran your finger across straight, so yes.
Q | want to turn to your statenent on page 2.
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JUDGE CLIFTON: We're now in Exhibit 63.
M5. TAYLOR |'msorry, 63.

BY M5. TAYLOR

Q Gkay. | think you just answered nmy question there, so,
on page 3, actually, third paragraph down, you note the
different use averages. | was trying to think what table
that's from But | know where all those are on your table,
except that the nunbers are below the 12 percent average for
all Federal Orders. This is the dass 2 use. [I'll read the
full sentence: "dass 2 use, which is conbined California
State Order Cass 2 and 3, Colums D and E, averaged 8. 69
percent, which is below the 12 percent average for all Federa
Orders.”

Is there any -- | don't see that nunber in your table.

A | don't thin that nunber is in here, | think I got that
from anot her source.

Q And that would be over that same time period, 2000
July, 2015?

A. | actually don't recall

Q Ckay. Just want to make sure | didn't mss it
sonmewhere

A, You didn't mss it on sonething that | said Thursday or
Friday.

Q You, also on your tables, have adjustnents for quota,

transportation credits, and the RQA's, and those were, you |ist
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them out, page 6 of your testinony. Miybe we covered this, but
you tal k about 9 cents for your transportation all owance.
Where did that nunber cone fronf

A. | took the 2015, either January through June or January
t hrough July, and averaged the nunbers to try to get a recent
pr oxy.

Q And that's based off CDFA?

A.  The nonthly pool settlenment statenent from CDFA, which
is available on request.

Q Sorry, | have lots of notes, which you have answered
many of them al ready.

On page 13, this is in regards to the provision on the
plant in Churchill County. In your text you talk about the
producers in this, in Nevada have been affiliated with the
California market for many years, until, and ship mlk to the,
a distributing plant in California?

A. No, the plant itself is in Reno, Nevada, and it has
distribution in California.

Q And can you just elaborate on for how long? Many years
can be defined by people differently.

A. | think when our producer, Pete Newell, testified --
Osen, I"'msorry -- Pete Osen testified, | think he was two or
three generations of relationship.

Q Ckay. On paragraph E, when we tal k about supply plants

outside the marketing area have a shipping percentage of 50
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percent .

A Yes.

Q Can you just elaborate on why you all chose 50 percent?
Wiy is that the right nunber?

A Again, our thought process was that if, well, let's
start the other way.

To ny know edge, an Order can't, by fiat, say, you
can't be in and you can't be out. So there needs to be sone
type of identifiable marketing relationship. And we felt |ike
that California's, if there was a need for mlk from outside
the marketing area in California that could be econom cally
justified, that it should be allowed to be a part of the pool.
But we think that needs to be a very high hurdle to do that,
and so we chose a high hurdle.

If that requirenent can be nmet, it would require a
pretty strong economc justification, there would need to be a
certain anount of balancing that goes with supplying the
market, there's a certain anount of transportation that goes
with supplying the market, and so we sinply wanted a hi gh
neasure in order to say, yes, the supply plant which by our
definition could only be outside the area coul d be associ ated
w th the pool

Q Ckay. But the nunber is not based on any observed
current marketing relationships, and therefore, the Department,

therefore, if the Department or the Secretary | ooked at the
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hearing record and thought perhaps a different high nunber or a
| ow nunber was appropriate, you are not necessarily -- 1'm
trying to get at, the 50 percent isn't based on necessarily
observed marketing relationships as a justification, you just
want the nunmber to be high so there's some type of hurdle?

A W want the number to be significant so that it woul d
be, so economics would justify it. If it were |low, that may
not be the case.

Q And is there a place in the order |anguage that allows
the Market Admi nistrator to adjust that particular --

Yes.
-- shi ppi ng percent age?

Yes.

o > O >

Ckay. Lower down you tal k about for 70, you don't --
"Il read your sentence: "A so, we do not want to all ow
concentrated mlk transferred fromthe supply plant |ocated
outside the marketing area to distributing plant, to be part of
any conputation made to determine if the supply plant can neet
the requirenents of this section.”

A Yes.

Q Can you just elaborate on the why behind that sentence?

A.  Again, going back to the significant hurdle, if you
wll, the significant provision for association. W think that
woul d be a way to make it less significant, if you were to use

t he condensed product as opposed to shipping raw m K.
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Q And Section 12, Producer, Paragraph C?
JUDGE CLI FTON: Wat page?
M5. TAYLOR |I'mon page 20 of Exhibit 63.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.
BY M5. TAYLOR

Q Paragraph C talks about, I"'mternming this in-area
di version. Wuld that be correct? Fromone pool plant to
anot her pool plant where typically in other orders we talk
about that nmovenment as a transfer, but we're tal king about a
di versi on because the mlk doesn't have to go to the first poo
pl ant and be unl oaded and then rel oaded and shi pped to anot her
pl ant .

A. | would agree.

Q ay. And that should be priced at the final plant
where that mlk | ands?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. And so then the Paragraph D is out-of-area
di versions to a nonpool plant, because a nonpool plant, except
for a small exenpt plant, would be |ocated, can only be | ocated
outside of the marketing area, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Gkay. And then in D.1 on the five-day touch base
standard, these m ght seemrepetitive, but | want to make sure
the record is clear that why you all chose five days and not

necessarily ten days or whatever.
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A Again, looking at the, | guess, possibilities, we felt
i ke five days woul d be an appropriate standard to denonstrate
need, it does give you some anount of day-to-day, week-to-week
bal ancing if that's the case. And yet again, for the
Situations where we think that mght be a possibility, five
days woul d be a pretty significant transportation function if
you had to do that.

Q Gkay. | think M. English helped clarify a ot of ny
di version questions on the diversion limts, but then -- a 7(a)
plant, for exanple, is a distributing plant. It could be
| ocated inside or outside of the marketing area, and there was
talk of --

A Yes.

Q -- whether in an area, M. Vetne tal ked about whet her
i n-area shipments can be made to qualify out-of-area mlk
because an in-area could ship to an in-area 7(a) plant, and
then qualify, somehow qualify out-of-state mlk to pool. Do
you renenber that?

A, Yes, he had that, we had that |ine of discussion

Q But is it your intention that all California plants
| ocated in California would actually qualify according to
paragraph C? So really, which is any plant receiving mlk in

Californi a?

A I'mnot sure | follow your question.
Q I'mtrying to clarify what -- because you tal ked about
3030
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you didn't want in-area mlk to qualify out-of-area mlk. So |
was trying to see if really a 7(a) or 7(b) plant -- not 7(b)
but 7(a) -- plant really only was applicable to plants,
distributing plants, |ocated outside of the marketing area.
Because a distributing plant, for lack of a better word,

| ocated inside the marketing area woul d actual ly qualify under
paragraph C, which is just a pool plant. And so you couldn't
use shipments to in-area pool plants to qualify out-of-state
mlKk.

A. That is correct. That was in order to, if you want
meet to the touch base requirenent by shipping to a pool plant,
you could, but you wouldn't really earn any diversion ability,
and you woul d have to still go to five days to a 7(a) or 7(b)
plant in-state in order to do that. So a farmin Arizona
couldn't divert to a handler, or couldn't deliver to a fluid
distributor in Arizona and neet their requirenent.

Q But a 7(a) plant doesn't have to be located in the
mar keting area?

A. In order to neet the diversion requirenment, that was
our intention.

Q Ckay.

A O out-of-area mlKk.

Q In I'mon page 23, Section 13, paragraph F, and this is
your repooling limts of 115 percent. In your text you say:

"Section 1051.13(f) regulates the volunes of mlk that this
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type of handler.” Can you just elaborate on what "this type of
handl er" neans?

MR, BESHORE: |'msorry, what page? | mssed that.

M5. TAYLOR  Page 23.

MR, HOLLON:  So this type of handler would be a supply
pl ant, which, by our definition, would be |ocated outside the
marketing area. So that would be the "this type of handler."
BY M5. TAYLOR

Q On the next page 24, when you are tal king about G ade A

m |k and market mlk, and since USDA were not that famliar
with the market mlk definition as defined by CDFA, could there
be an instance when mlk could be defined as market m |k but

not Gade A mlk?

A | amnot totally aware, but | don't think so.

Q Ckay.

A. But | don't, | don't have every instance nailed down.
Q Ckay.

A So that, | think that's one of the reasons why we put
this section in was to say that they are intended to be
equi val ent .

Q Gkay. | just want to nake sure if there is some
I nstance where that could occur, then | guess that's sonething
that USDA woul d work with CDFA to have that data sharing
information, to nmake sure we knew all the mlk that qualified

to be pooled in the Federal Order?
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Correct.
Ckay. | think that's all | have.

You reserve the right to cone back.

o > O P

| reserve the right to have nore questions |ater.

JUDCGE CLIFTON. | can't imagine having absorbed
M. Hollon's testinony on the audio feed wi thout the exhibits.
| think you are anazing.

M. Beshore, before redirect, | would like to take a

break. Thank you. Let's have you come back at 3:40, 3:40.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're back on record at 3:43. | had a
t hought just trying to picture what it nust have been |ike for
Ms. Taylor trying to absorb all this information renotely when
she was working in the office in Washi ngton DC

| f when you cone to the hearing with a new exhibit, if

you can provide a PDF of that exhibit to Ms. Laurel My, she
can transmt it to those on her teamwho may be nonitoring from
Washington DC so to the extent that's easy for you to do that
could be a big help. So her e-mail is easy, it's
Laur el . May @AVS. USDA. GOV.  And the reason | suggest you forward
it to her is she's inthis roomand you will be in this room
and so if there are any conmuni cations that need to take pl ace,
alerting her that you have a PDF of an exhibit com ng her way,
that woul d be great.

She is also in touch with people who are on her team
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who are working from headquarters, so | think that could be

very helpful. | wsh everyone |istening by audio feed could

have the exhibits, but when we tal ked about trying to do it, we

just thought logistically, USDA can't do it. W can't respond

that quickly. So |I feel for everyone trying to do it by audio.

| amparticularly aware of the need for the AMS teamto be able

to absorb the nmaterial as we go al ong.

So that's Laurel, LAUREL. MVAY@AMS. USDA. GOV.

Now, Ms. Taylor, did you think of any other questions

that you wanted to ask before redirect?

M5. TAYLOR | did.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Onh good. W will hear them now.
BY M5. TAYLOR

Q kay. It is actually just -- on the last --

Erin Taylor, USDA -- on the |ast question | asked about your

repool i ng standards, you indicated that they were, it's your

intent that they only apply to supply plants, which under your

proposal, is in Section 7 Paragraph D.

A Yes.

Q Ckay. The way | read Section 13, Paragraph F, which is

where your repooling limts are found, is that the quantity of

mlk reported by a handler, pursuant to either 30(a)(1), which

if I turn to 30, is a handler that operates a pool plant; or

30(c) (1), which is a handler described in Section 9(c),

SO a

Cooperative. So the way | read that paragraph F is that these
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repooling limts wuld actually apply to all plants.

A.  You are correct.

Q Soit's your intent though, you only want themto apply
to 7(d) plants, or would you want themto?

A No, we want themto apply the way it is witten in (f).

Q ay. Thank you. | have a follow up, that's the
problemwhen | think on the fly.

So then for a plant, and | think later and after the
provi sion that allows the Market Admi nistrator to waive the 115
percent limt, repooling limt. And that maybe woul d apply say
for a California plant that expanded production or expanded
capacity and then in that one nmonth, perhaps its production was
nore than a 115 percent of the nmonth previous?

A. | think the 115 percent -- oh, okay. Yeah, 2 is
described as by (i) and (ii) that that's the reasons why you
got to have nore than 115 percent, is you are either new or an
existing handler with a significantly changed mlk supply.

Q Ckay.

JUDGE CLI FTON: And what page are you on?
MR HOLLON:  23.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.
MS. TAYLOR  Now | think I'mfinished.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you, Ms. Tayl or.

M. Beshore, redirect?

MR BESHORE: Thank you, your Honor, Marvin Beshore.
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q M. Hollon, do you have any idea how | ong you have been
on the stand in this hearing?

A, Scared to | ook at my watch.

Q Wll, this is what, at least the fourth different day
maybe?

A | believe. | think that's correct.

Q You are not done yet, you understand that?

A I'mbuilding a big debt between M. Erba and M. Schad.

Q ay.

A, They will owe ne.

Q Gkay. The four day, in the four days and however nany
hours it's been that you are on, is it possible that you have
gotten confused or forgotten some things fromtinme to tinme?

A.  That woul d be unarguably true.

Q So let ne ask you about 7(a) plans.

I's it possible under the proposal when intended under
the proposal, that 7(a) would define the qualifications for a
distributing plant outside the State of California, anong other
things, that's one, outside the State of California to be part
of the M|k Marketing O der pool?

A It could if it met the qualifications described in A

Q In other words, a distributing plant |ocated in

Arizona, for instance, if it net those route distribution
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requi rements, could qualify as a pool plant under this order?

A It could.

Q And that's the intention of the proposal?

A Yes.

Q Now, in that case, would that plant, would pool status

and 7(a) status under the order, provide that plant with and
producer supplying that plant, with diversion rights?

A It would. | msspoke earlier.

Q kay. And it's defined under section, limted under
Section 13(d)?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. So if you said diversion rights were only
available to in-state distributing plants, that was not
correct?

A, That was not correct.

Q (Ckay. Let's look at page 20 of Exhibit 63, if we
coul d, your statement, your second statenent, testinony of
El vin Hol lon, second statement. And you were asked sone
questions by either M. English or M. Vetne or both, about the
rel ationship between (b) at the top of page 20 and (d) at the,
towards the bottom of page 20, and these are parts of part 13
producer-mlk definition. Do you recall that?

A |1 do.

Q Ckay. So what is the intended relationship between (b)
and (d)?
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A Well, first of all, there's a sequence of the way
provisions get filed and interpreted, and in paragraph (b) it
does say "received by handl er describe in part 1009(c) in
excess of the quantity delivered to pool plants.” And down in
par agraph --

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Let ne stop you, | just want to nake sure
that that 1009 that you read has point init. Wuld you read
it again?

MR, HOLLON: "Received by a handl er described in Section
1000.9(c) in excess of the quantity delivered to pool plants.”
And that diversion, that statement woul d be subject to what's
in (d), which also there said, (d) says "diverted by the
operator of a pool plant or a Cooperative association described
in part that Part 1000.9(c) to a nonpool plant subject to the
follow ng conditions.” And those two relationships of the 9(c)
relations in both paragraphs would tie, would in our |anguage
intent, tie themtogether.

BY MR BESHORE:

Q kay. So 13(b) was not intended to authorize 9(c)
Cooperatives to pool all the mlk in the rest the country?

A. It was not.

Q Gkay. You were shown by, M. Vetne called your
attention to sone statistics published by COFA relating to
fluid mlk sales by marketing area within California. Do you

recall that?
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A | do.

Q Gkay. Now, have you had the chance to anal yze that
dat a?

A. | have not, as of yet.

Q But with respect to howit's been described to you, and
with respect to the calculations you did of blend prices in
Exhi bit 64 and your discussion of that in 63, do you have any
t hought s about whether that data would allow you to nake any
ot her, make blend price conparisons as you have done in 647?

A. | do not think that it would. M understanding of what
M. Vetne outlined was limted to Class | use in Northern
California and Southern California by his description of
gallons of mlk, and there sinply wouldn't be a way to get an
appl es and appl es, or as best as you could, an apples and
appl es conparison of State Order blend prices with Federa
Order blend prices. You still would need some kind of way to
account for a Class 2 and 3 in California, and | haven't |ooked
at the data. | don't knowthat it is there.

And then you woul d have the problem of how are you
going to match that up with the Federal Order data, which you
don't have with a simlar geography and conparison. And | did,
over two years ago maybe, |ook for ways to do this type of
conparison, and | did inquire of CDFA if they thought they
could do that type of conparison, could they conpute conparable

prices, and they told ne they could not. That there would be
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confidentiality limts on the California side and they would
not have expertise on the Federal Order side.

And that was nore than just, you know, a five-mnute
phone call. W did try to explore alternatives. And so absent
those, we canme up with this methodol ogy.

Q Ckay. Let's go to Churchill County and the provision
so-called (c)1 provision in, |leading to the designation of an,
as a pool plant, the plant located in Churchill County, Nevada.
| just have one question about that. You were asked a |ot.

One question.

Is it, what is the intention of Proposal 1 with respect
to the ability to divert pool mlk by diversion fromthe
Churchill County and how woul d Section 13, those diversion
limts relate to that?

A If there would be, they would be subject to the sane
five-day touch base delivery to 7(a) or 7(b) plant, and subject
to the 50 percent. So that woul dn't change.

Q They would all apply?

A, They would all apply.

Q You were asked by one of the cross-examners, | think
It was M. Vetne, whether wasn't it true or correct that the
bl end price that was the California Order versus the Federal
Order, was the only aspect of disorderliness that was addressed
by Proposal 1.

Now, w t hout going back and repeating all your
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testinony in statement one, are there other factors besides
bl end pricing you have cited and described in detail?

A, Yes. There would certainly be others. The National
pricing grid would be the differences between the twd, would be
one; the cashiering of the current national prices would be
another; the inability of the State Order to regulate mlk
either outside the state comng in, or inside the state going
out; the common regul ation of producer-handlers; the uniform I
think | said that the uniformty of prices anongst using the
national grid of Cass 1, 2, 3, and 4a and 4b in the associ ated
Federal Order class, simlarity of those prices.

Q Al of the class prices?

A. Al of the class prices.

Q Ckay. So producer blend price was, was one of the
factors?

A, One of those factors, but there were others.

Q Many others, as you have indicated. GCkay. You were
al so asked whether the current state pool, which is essentially
an all-in pool -- | think sonebody used that term nology -- you
know, isn't the same as Proposal 1, and if so, why do you need
Proposal 1. Sonething to that effect. Do you recall that?

Wiy do you need an excl usive pooling under Proposal 1 when you
have got it now?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. Do you pool the same, does Proposal 1 and
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current State Order pool the same volunes of mlk?

A. It does not.

Q Wiat's the key difference?

A. The in-state and out-of-state are in marketing area,
out of marketing area differences that the State Order can't do
and the Federal Order could do.

Q You nean, interstate novenents of mlk fromout of the
state into the state, and into the state, out of the state?

A. Correct.

Q (oing back to 7(a) plants. Are there reasons and
within Proposal 1, are there elenents that 7(a) plants are
involved in, whether they are in the order or out of the order,
ot her than earning diversion rights? In other words, does that
provi sion provide a function in Proposal 1 to be there?

A, There would be other reasons. One would be to define
an out-of-area plant if it were to neet those provisions and
t hose requirenents, so you would need some provisions and
requi rements to determne if it met themor not.

And secondly, for the operation of the Transportation
Program you woul d need a definition someplace to deliver to
that gets or earns a transportation credit. So there would be
at | east two nore reasons why those definitions are needed.

Q kay. And they attract, operate that way in the
Proposal 1 |language. You haven't presented the transportation

credit systemyet, but it involves utilizing plants that fal
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under that definition?

A. It does.

Q Ckay.

| ater statenent on producer-handl er issues,

ask you anythi

this tinme, and |

Since you, as | have indicated earl

ng about all your cross-exam nation

time, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English?

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR ENG.I SH

er, have a

|''mnot going to

on that at

have no other questions on redirect at this

Q Chip English. And | apol ogize, but I was hoping it

woul d get cleared up on the redirect. And | heard a response

to Ms. Tayl or,

and | heard again a response to M.

Beshor e.

Wth respect to page 47213 of Exhibit 1, 47213, the

definition of

producer m |k, paragraph 13(d)(1).

hearing fromthe w tness, or when | asked himwas,

fromthe text

so maybe we ought to be very clear,

intended to be. The text of (1) refers to a five-

which | think
M. Hollon?
A, Yes.

we call touch base requirenment, corr

What | keep
is different
maybe he

day receipt,

ect,

Q And the text of paragraph (1) says at a pool plant,

correct?
A.  Yes.
Q To the

extent -- and | agree you have been
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alot --

A, Vait, say that again.

Q | agree you have been on the stand for a long tine.

A, Oh, okay.

Q So to the extent in answer to questions you may have
said a five-day touch base requirenent to a 7(a) or 7(b) plant,
which is correct, the text or what | have heard you say several
times?

A, The text would count as the five day but you woul d
still be limted by the other provisions |ower, so that --

Q But let's just be clear. The touch base requirenment is

one thing --
A Yes.
Q ~-- and the diversion limt, while linked toit, is a

different thing, correct?

A Yes.

Q Sothe diversion limt is linked to a 7(a) and 7(b)
plant, correct?

A, Correct.

Q But the touch base requirement has nothing do with the
7(a) or 7(b) plant, correct?

A. That i1s true.

Q Thank you.
MR BESHORE: Your Honor? | missed -- if | could ask your
i ndul gence, | m ssed one point, one question | wanted to ask
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M. Hol |l on.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q There were questions to you, probably from probably

fromM. Vetne, but | could be wong. In any event, that asked
you, it may have been Ms. Hancock actually -- sonething to the
effect that doesn't -- doesn't this provision treat

out-of-state mlk, and I'mtal king about qualification

provi sions, diversion provisions, etcetera, treat out-of-state
m | k, quota paynment provision, out-of-state mlk different
than, than other m|lKk?

A, Yes, | renenber that I[ine of questioning.

Q Gkay. Now, when you were tal king about qualification
provisions relating to Churchill County, relating to plants in
Arizona, if you said out-of-state, did you really nmean to be
tal ki ng about the marketing area, the out-of-marketing area?

A.  The provisions apply to marketing area. It just so
happens in this case they are simlar, but the justification,
if you will, or the policy if you will, really refers to
out - of -marketing area as opposed to out-of-state.

Q So there's nothing specific in the proposal that says
state versus state, it's nmarketing area versus non-marketing
area as far as -- okay. And your answer is yes?

A, Yes.

Q Ckay. And is that a distinction that's nade in other
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Orders in terms of pooling provisions?

A It is.

Q Gkay. | think that is all. That's not all. You have
a topic that | haven't touched?

A, There was sone question about the Class | differential
surface and how it came to be.

Q And you wanted to provide sone additional clarification
for the record of how that surface cane to be?

A. At great personal risk, but | neglected -- | neglected
to nmention that Congress actually set the current differential
structure and its deliberations, and that the Reform Decision
laid out a differential surface that woul d be recogni zed by
people famliar with the provisions as the (1)(a) price surface
and so | assume that --

Q O (1)(b) naybe, one or the other?

A. One or the other. And Congress picked the other and in
a legislative session out of vote of Congress, they changed
that. So that was Congress' direction to do that.

Q And those are the differentials that remain in place
under Part 1000, except the changes which were brought to your
attention?

A, That's correct.

Q Thank you. Do you have anything else | m ssed?
A, Gve ne a second.
Q

No?
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A, No.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Are there any other questions of M. Hollon
on this issue? These issues? There are none. You may step
down.

MR HOLLON:  Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  You're welcome. We're all appl auding you.

MR, HOLLON: The sound is deafening. In spite of the
position of being here, | think the process is stil
wor t hwhi I e, and however difficult it may be to flush out a
record, it is still a good process.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | think it is. There are so nany vari abl es
to consider, | just think this is extrenely hel pful.

M. Beshore you may cone to the podi um

MR. BESHORE: Qur next witness is M. Dennis Schad. Before
we proceed with him | wanted to just raise, if | may, a
qguestion about the requests to provide PDF versions of
exhibits. W don't have the them available now for this,

M. Schad's statenent and exhibit set, but initially when there
was sonme, when this was a request by a third party for PDF
before they got posted or whatever, there was some concerns.
And we certainly have a concern about posting docunments which
may be subject to correction during the proceedi ng before they
become exhibits. And I'"'mnot quite sure, | certainly want to
accommodate the USDA in every way and your Honor's request, but

how are we, howis that to be handled, or what's the process?
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| may have m ssed sone of what you said before.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So to the extent that entity
that wants to post on a website the recorded versions of the
audio feed, that entity wanted to acconpany the segnments of the
audio feed with the exhibits. And after M. H Il indicated
that it was wel come to post exhibits, even though not the
official copy, if it chose to, | believe that is their plan.

| woul d hope that once the official record copy becones
avai l abl e on the USDA website, that that entity would repl ace
the rough copy the initial copy with the official version. And
| would assunme they will do so.

What |'masking for is not anything to be posted
anywhere. It's a courtesy copy as an internal aid to staying
abreast of the proceedings. As you have noticed, we have got
part of the AMS team sw tching out as we proceed week-to-week,
but they are all working all the time on this, to the extent
their other duties allow. So | don't want themto work as hard
as Ms. Taylor had to, to be ready to question M. Hollon.

MR, BESHORE: So this is a courtesy copy to ANVS staff only?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Correct.

MR, BESHORE: kay. | think I understand now And |I'm
sorry | mssed part of the explanation before.

JUDCGE CLI FTON:  And so, would it be possible tonorrow to
provi de a PDF of what we're going to look at in hard copy

toni ght ?
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MR. BESHORE: Yes, probably before that, but we'll get them
as soon as we can.

JUDGE CLIFTON: That will be great. But because they are
three hours later, they are probably no |l onger listening to us
unless it is as they coomute home. Al right. Good. Thank
you. So we are about to mark sone documnents.

MR. BESHORE: And we have two documents that we would
request be nmarked for identification as the next consecutive
exhibits. And the first is the docunent called Testinony of
Dennis Schad in Support of Proposal 1. 1It's marked as
Cooperatives' Exhibit 6 in the lower right of the first page,
has a total of 36 pages.

The second docunment which is entitled Exhibits of
Dennis Schad in Support of Proposal 1, etcetera, it has
attached to it a cover page, three exhibits. 6.A 6.B, 6.C
which are nine pages, in addition to the cover.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. Ms. Elliott, | believe that the testinony
of Dennis Schad, which is nmarked at the bottom Cooperatives/
Exhibit 6, will be Exhibit 70. 1Is that what you have?

MS. ELLIOIT: That's correct.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. I'mmarking that as Exhibit 70.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 70 was narked
for identification.)
JUDGE CLI FTON: That woul d make the exhibits Exhibit 71

correct? So we're marking the | engthier docunment, the
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testinmony, as Exhibit 70, 70, and the exhibits as 71
(Thereafter, Exhibit 71 was marked
for identification.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: Pl ease raise your hand if you still need
Exhibit 70 or 71. It appears everyone has the exhibit.

M. Schad, I'll swear you in. Do you prefer to stand?

MR SCHAD: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Do you solemly swear or affirm
under penalty of perjury that the evidence you will present
wll be the truth?

MR. SCHAD: Yes, | do.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. You may be seated. And pl ease
state and spell your nane?

MR, SCHAD: Dennis, DDE-N-NI-S, Schad, S-CHA-D

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Beshore, you may proceed.

MR. BESHORE: Thank you, your Honor. | would like to ask
one prelimnary indul gence or request one prelimnary
i ndul gence in terms of the reading for the witness's benefit,
maybe this witness and | ater ones, when we have cited materia
fromthe Federal Register, of which there's quite a bit in
here, and as has been before, and we have got these open paren,
cl ose paren, close paren, would it be possible to have those
read wi thout the open and close parens? Because it has tongue
ties wtnesses and gets, you know, quite difficult sonetines.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Yes. And M. Hollon was amazi ngly
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acconplished at it, but in the event others may not be quite so
acconpl ished. The court reporter and | have di scussed that and
how it bogs the proceedi ng down. Because the court reporter
has a copy of the exhibit, and when typing the transcript wl|
be able to refer to the exhibit for punctuation, it will not be
necessary for the person testifying to add all the punctuation.
Cccasional |y, though, the person testifying will want

to depart fromthe document and should alert us, either "
would like to add here in order to expand on what's witten" or
to say "we have a correction here" or in sone way to alert us
that the docunent and the testinony will be different. So this
elimnates also the need for spelling something that is right
in the docunent. Sonetimes | mght still ask for spelling if |
did not think the witness enunciated clearly enough for people
to catch what was said.

MR. BESHORE: Very well. Thank you very much, your Honor,
you are two steps ahead of us, and | appreciate that.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Wth those understandi ngs and paranmeters, M. Schad,
woul d you pl ease proceed with your statenent, Exhibit 707?
A Yes.
| NTRODUCTI ON
My name is Dennis Schad, DDE-NN1-S, SCGCHA-D, |I'm

enmpl oyed by Land O Lakes, Incorporated, as Director of Mddle
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Atlantic MIk Sourcing and Regul atory Affairs. M business is
address is 405 Park Road, Carlisle, Pennsylvania, 17015. M
present duties at Land O Lakes are to nmanage LOL's m |k
marketing in the Northeast, forecast and budget mlk into LOL's
butter and powder plant in Carlisle, Pennsylvania, and to

represent LOL at various State and Federal regulatory hearings.

| have been enployed in the dairy industry -- and
parenthetically, this is not in ny statenent -- at Land O Lakes
and its predecessor cooperatives in Pennsylvania. | return to

ny testinmony: Since 1981, and have had regul atory
responsibilities since 1990. | have testified at Federal and
State mlk pricing and regul atory hearings on several dozen
occasions. M testinony today is in support of Proposal 1
sponsored by California Dairies, Incorporated; Dairy Farmers of
Amrerica, Incorporated; and at Land O Lakes, |ncor porated.
My testinony concerns the topics of production

classification; class prices --

Q Excuse me, M. Schad, could you start -- start that
sentence again, please?

A Start it again?

My testinony concerns the topics of product
classification; class prices; price and price fornmulas for all
classes of utilization; and price announcenments. These
subj ects are addressed in proposed Sections 1051.40, 1051. 42,
1051. 43, 1051.44, 1051.50, 1051.51, and 1051.52. | would Ilike
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to add to ny testinony. Also, Sections 1051.53 and 1051. 54.
W propose that the California Federal Order adopt the
uni form Federal Order system of product classification and
pricing. The product classifications of CDFA and the Federal
systemare very simlar; and adoption of the national, uniform
Federal classifications will involve few changes for California
for these handlers. The Federal O der systemhas in place a
national pricing grid for all classifications of use and prices
al ready explicitly provide for either California-specific
prices or prices which are expressly national in scope and have
been adopted using California plant costs, and each nmonth's
product sales prices fromCalifornia manufacturing plants are
reflected. The Federal --
JUDCGE CLI FTON: Let ne just ask you to take that phrase
again fromthe word California.
MR. SCHAD. From California manufacturing plants are --
MR. BESHORE: You missed a word, M. Schad. California?
MR. SCHAD: M Ik manufacturing plants are reflected.

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Thank you.

A.  The Federal price grid wll make the California Federal
Order an integrated part of the national dairy marketpl ace.
Nunmber 1, this is on the topic -- on.

Q Just say heading, Roman Nuneral |.

A. |I. The California Order Should Adopt the Uniform
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System of O assification of MIk and M|k Products.

Thi s proposal recomends that the Secretary adopt a
classification, classified pricing provisions of Section 100.40
t hrough 100. 45 --

JUDGE CLIFTON: (Okay. Now, we've left off a couple of
zeroes, so do those section nunbers again, if you wll.

MR, SCHAD. Gkay. |I'Ill re-start.

This proposal recomends that the Secretary adopt the
classified pricing provisions of Sections 1000.40 through
1000.45 and the fluid mlk and fluid creamdefinitions of
Section 1000. 15 and 1000. 16.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. And that reference to 1000. 15
had three zeroes in it as well, correct?

MR. SCHAD. That's correct.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Ckay.

MR. SCHAD. As a general statement of purpose, the
Prelimnary Report the Federal Order Reform C assification
Committee, in Novenmber 12th, 1996, stated, and I'll quote:

In conformance with the Agricultural Marketing Act
of 1937, all mlk should be classified "in
accordance with the formin which were the purpose
for which it is used.”" Although the primary
factors for classifying mlk should be excused in
its form other factors, such as product |abelling
and equity anong conpeting handl ers, should al so
be considered. (Page 2.)

Q Thank you. Can you hold it a m nute?

Your Honor, | would |like to have typographical error in
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presented in Exhibit 70 corrected. There's a -- the third line
fromthe end of the quote, the word "from' is there instead of
“form" fifth word fromthe end. "Cdassified mlk should be
its use and form' as opposed to from

JUDGE CLIFTON: I'mgoing to ask Ms. Elliott to nake this
change on the record copies. W're on Exhibit 70, page 3, it's
the only indented paragraph on page 3. And as M. Beshore has
indicated, it's the third line up fromthat paragraph, "front
becomes "form" And | know there's not nmuch roomfor you to
wite, however you want to do it with arrows, you may want to
rewite the word "fornt out in the margin, striking "from"

MR, BESHORE: (kay.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And | would also |ike to ask, M. Beshore,
where M. Schad added a couple of regulatory sections as he
read on page 2, shall | also ask Ms. Elliott to wite those in
on the record copies?

MR. BESHORE: | would request that, yes.

JUDCGE CLIFTON. Al right. Then I would like, Ms. Elliott,
to go to page 2 of Exhibit 70, and at the end of the second
full paragraph wite in, as M. Schad testified, additional
sections which are; 1051.53 and 1051.54. | know you are still
wor ki ng on those. Can we resune the testinony, Ms. Elliott?

M5. ELLIOIT: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. M. Beshore?

BY MR BESHORE:
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Q Go ahead, M. Schad, picking up after the end of the
quoted material on page 3.

A Yes.

In 1974, a uniform Federal Order classification plan
for 39 narkets was adopted and continued through the Federal
Order Reform process, where uniformclassifications of dairy
products were adopted for all Federal Orders. Since Federal
Order Reform AMS has called two national hearings to consider
changes in definitions and classifications of mlk products.
In 2004, AMS called a hearing to address the reclassification
of evaporated or sweetened condensed milk in consuner-type
packages fromCass IIl to Class IV.

Q And those are Roman Nuneral |11 and IV?

A, That's correct.

Q Is it necessary, your Honor, to clarify -- | assume we
don't have to clarify Roman Numeral s and Arabics, in accordance
W th your instruction at the beginning of that about
punctuation, etcetera?

JUDGE CLI FTON: | agree.

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Thank you. | won't interrupt you for that
clarification further, M. Schad. Just read it as it is.

A | will note when it's nunmerical and I wll just assume
it to be Roman nuneral s.

Q | think we don't have to note it at all as long as it
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is correct in the exhibit.
A.  Reading on.

And in 2005, USDA held a hearing to reconsider the
classification of Class | mlk.

Referenced in the Federal Order Cass | and C ass |
definitions are Section 1000.15, fluid mlk product, and
Section 1000.16, fluid cream product. Section 1000.16 was
unchanged during the Federal O der Reform process and includes
"the m xture of creamand mlk or skimmlk containing 9

percent or nore butterfat... This definition would include
the consuner product comonly known as hal f and hal f.
The fluid product section was --
Q Start again.
A, The fluid mlk products section was nodified on
January 1st, 2011, as a result of a Federal Order hearing held
during June 2005. The final decision held, "This fina
decision maintains the current fluid mlk product definition's
conposi tional standard 6.5 percent nonfat mlk solids and
i ncorporates an equivalent 2.25 percent true mlk protein
criterion for determning whether a product neets the
conposi tional standard.”
The California Food and Agriculture Code contains a
classified pricing systemwhich is conparable to the Federal

Order definitions.

The California Cass 1 definitionis simlar to the
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Federal Order Cass | with alimt, with limted exceptions.
CDFA defines half and half as a Cass 1 product, while AVS
classifies the product as dass I1I.

The California Aass 2 and Class 3 definitions are
conparable to the Federal Order Class I, with notable
exceptions. CDFA classifies butterm |k, used as a beverage, as
Cass 2, while the Federal Orders assign that product to
d ass |

The California 4a and 4b definitions are essentially
identical to the Federal Orders Cass IIl and Cass |V

Exhibit 29 of the testinony of M. N erman, |'msorry,
let me read that again. Exhibit 29 and the testinony of
M. N erman were provided by AVS and |ist individual dairy
products as classified by CDFA, and their correspondi ng Federa
Order classifications. Exhibit 62 and the testinmony of
M. Shi ppel houte from CDFA further explain the CDFA
classifications.

Thi s Proposal recomends that the California O der
adopt Sections 1000.15, 1000.16, and 1000.40 in order to
ef fectuate uniformclassifications of the forms and uses of
m | k throughout the Federal Orders.

Section 1051.42 refers to the classification and
transfer of -- I'll read that again.

Section 1051.42 refers to the classification of

transfers and diversions in part 1000.42. The provisions and
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the rationale of this section were the subject of testinony by
an AMB wi tness, M. Schaefer, at the start of the hearing. The
Cooperatives recomrend the adoption of this provision.

Section 1000.43 and Section 1051.43 refer to the
classification of shrinkage, overages, and producer mlk under
the Order. The provisions in the rationale of this section
were the subject of testinony by an AMS witness, M. Mkrantz,
at the start of the hearing. The Cooperatives reconrend the
adoption of these provisions.

Il. The California Federal Order Should Adopt for Section
1051.50 the Uni form National Provision for Cass Prices,
Conponent Prices, and Advance Pricing Factors in

7 CFR Section 1000. 50.

The Cooperatives propose that the California Federal
Order adopt the class price formula listed in the 7 CFR Section
1000.50, the text of which is found in Cooperatives' Exhibit
6. A (4 pages.) This section describes the formula used to
develop dass I, Il, Ill, and dass IV prices, the sources of
commodity prices used in the pricing fornmula, and the nake
al l owances and product yields used in the cal cul ation.

Section 1000.50 al so describes the procedure for setting
advanced Class | skimand butterfat prices. And a Cass, and
advanced Cass Il, solids not fat prices. In 2014, AMS
reported that 129.4 billion pounds of producer mlk was pool ed

on the Federal Orders, while the National Agricultura
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Statistics Services (NASS) estimated that the total U S mlk
production was 200.6 billion pounds, of which 42.3 billion
pounds were produced in California. Thus, 65 percent of the
total national production, and 82 percent of the nationa
production, less California, was priced by the uniformpricing
formul a of the Federal Orders.

Q O the Federal Order systenf

AL O the Federal Oder system

Q Thank you.

A California dairy products, |ike dairy products produced
under Federal Order pricing, conpete for sales in the national
market. The Secretary has | ong recogni zed that nationa
conpetition for dairy products required prices for mlk used to
produce these products --

Q Excuse ne, M. Schad, can you start that sentence again
the Secretary?

A.  The Secretary has |ong recogni zed that nationa
conpetition for dairy product sales, required prices for mlk
used to produce those products to be uniformacross the Federa
Orders. Wiile the current pricing fornul ae were devel oped
t hrough the Federal Order Reform process and anended as a
result of several national hearings, the fornulas' antecedents
flow fromthe Federal Orders precedents of uniformpricing of
m |k used to produce manufactured dairy products. The

est abl i shed approach of uniformnational pricing for mlk used
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to produce dairy products other than fluid mlk results from
the recognition that these products conpete in a nationa
mar ket place. Pricing in California production -- |I'msorry,
yes -- pricing in California production, under the national --
Q Excuse nme, start that sentence again
A. Pricing California mlk production under the national
class price grid is essential to extend uniformpricing to a
fifth of the nation's m |k production
A.  The Evolution of a National Mnufacturing Price.
The evolution fromregional class prices to a nationa
class pricing grid can be traced to the adoption of the
M nnesot a- Wsconsin (MW price series as a uniformprice for
mlk used to produce manufactured dairy products and the base
price for regional Class | prices in all Federal Oders. The
M nnesot a- Wsconsi n manufacturing grade mlk price series,
(MW was first adopted in 1961 and adopted in all, or nearly
all, of Federal Oders, inthe late 1960's. In the 1995
Federal -- I'msorry, I'Il start that again. In the 1995 Fina
Deci sion of the Basic Fornula Price Hearing, the Secretary
cited the national character of the MWprice.
And | quote:
The MWprice is a conpetitive price that
represents an estimate of the average prices paid
for Gade B nmlk in Mnnesota and Wsconsin by
pl ants that manufacture butter, nonfat dry mlKk
and cheese. These products are sold in a nationa

mar ket and conpetition with such products made
fromGade Amlk that is in excess of the fluid
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price reflect changes in overall supply and demand
conditions frommlk and its products nationally.
(60 Fed. Reg. 7290, 7292 (1995))

Q Could you pl ease, please note that Fed. Reg. is Federa
Regi ster, so you can just say Fed. Reg. when you cone to it.
Yeah.

A, Ckay. Further, in the 1995 decision, the Secretary

descri bes the mechanics of the MWconpetitive price series:

The use of the conpetitive pay price nethod of
pricing mlk is based on the premse that in a

hi ghly conpetitive econony, dairy concerns wll
tend to purchase mlk at prices comensurate with
the nore efficient concerns' ability to pay for
the product. As shifts occur in the relationship
between finished products prices, one group of
processors may be able to pay higher prices, the
ot her processors nust neet the approximate -- |'m
sorry -- neet or approximate these prices or |ose
their supplies. |If a dairy concern fails to make
the necessary adjustments, it will be forced --
|'msorry, I'mstarting fromthe conma -- it will,
intime, be forced out of business. |Increasing

| abor and other costs will tend to reduce prices
paid for mlk. On the other hand, the use of new
assenbl i ng, processing, packaging, and marketing

t echni ques whi ch reduce costs, or increase product
returns, will tend to increase prices paid for
mlk. These upward or downward adjustments in
costs wll automatically be reflected in the
reserve prices by using the conpetitive price, pay
prices method of pricing.

(60 Fed. Reg. at 7299 (1995))

It was observed that in the MWpricing environment --
Q Start -- start again, nake sure to get every word.
A It was observed that in the MWm Ik pricing
environnent, mlk processors of manufactured products would

freely conpete for mlk in a marketplace of many sellers and
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buyers. It was assumed in that environment that processors
determ ned the price they could afford to pay for m |k based on
the sales price of their manufactured product, |ess the cost of
processing. Wthin that accounting for a cheese manufacturer,
if whey was a product that it could sell, it would be a
positive value inits ability to pay dairy farmers. However,
if whey froma processing of cheese had no value, and had to be
di sposed of, then whey would be a cost, thus inplicitly, the
val ue or cost of whey has always, was always included in the
MWprice prior to Federal Order Reform

The MWwas a conpetitive pay price obtained froma
survey of manufacturing plants in M nnesota and W sconsin
maki ng paynents to producers of Gade B (manufacturing grade)
mlk. The base price for MWwas updated by the --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Let me have you start the sentence that
starts "this."

MR. SCHAD. This base price MW --

MR, BESHORE: Base.

JUDGE CLIFTON: One nore tine.

MR. SCHAD: This base month MWwas updated by a survey of
smal | er nunber of plants' pay prices for the succeeding nonth.
At the time the MWwas devel oped, approximately 50 percent of
the total Gade B nmilk was produced in those two states.

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Start at the end, at the beginning of that |ine, again.
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A At the time the MWwas devel oped, approximately 50
percent of the total U S. Gade B mlk was produced in those
two states. In this context, manufacturing mlk included al
uses of mlk that did not require Gade A, including
butter/powder and all forms and varieties of cheese.

As a nunber of Grade B producers and the nunber of
plants that accepted Grade B m |k declined, a change in the MW
was required. The Basic Formula Price (BFP) was established in
1989 as a conmmodity price updater to the MWconpetitive price
survey. The products surveyed in the updater formula were
butter, nonfat dry mlk, cheddar cheese, and whey powder. The
process to determne the basic fornula price was described in
the 1990 Carolina Order Promul gation Deci sion:

It (BFP) woul d be conputed by increasing or
decreasing the MWprice of the second precedi ng
month by an amount that reflects changes in the
val ue of the gross value of mlk used to produce
cheddar cheese(including whey fat and whey solids
nonfat), butter, nonfat dry mlk, and edi bl e whey
powder for the, of the first 15 days of the
precedi ng nmonth conpared to the first 15 days of
the second precedi ng nont h.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  You are doing amazingly well, but I would
like you to read again, starting, start, if you will, with
butter, nonfat dry mlk, and edi ble whey powder, and
conti nui ng.

MR, SCHAD:

Butter, nonfat dry mlk, and edible whey powder of

the first 15 days of the preceding nonth, conpared
to the first 15 days during the second preceding
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t hese products woul d be determned by nultiplying
the price of each product by a yield factor which
represents the pounds of product that results from
the manufacturer of a hundredwei ght of mlk. The
yield factors used in the fornul a adopted herein
woul d be those that are used under the Dairy Price
Support Program for determning simlar gross
val ues.
(55 Fed. Reg. 25618, 25641 (1990))
Al though the 1985 Farm Bill changed the cal cul ation of
t he cheese support price by deleting whey fromthe formula,
nevert hel ess, the Secretary continued to use whey val ues, make
al  onances and yields to conpute the BFP. Wthin the
Secretary's discretion to report an equivalent price --
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Excuse ne, M. Schad, start that sentence again
pl ease.
A Wthin the Secretary's decision to report -- within the
Secretary's decision to report an equival ent price, he wote:
It is therefore ordered that a whey processing
cost of 12.5 cents per pound and a yield factor of
5.5 pounds, continue to be used as equival ent
factors determ ning any positive whey value in
conputing the basic CGass Il formula price under
t he above-naned orders, effective wth the
i ssuance of this determ nation.
(55 Fed. Reg. at 25642.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: Because it's a quote, | would really like
you to read after the conma, the last five words, six words of
that particul ar quote.

MR, SCHAD:. effective upon issuance of this determnation.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.
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MR, SCHAD. However, the calculation that determ ned the
BFP prior to FMMO Ref orm was changed in 1995. The 1995 basic
fornula price final decision redefined a calculation deleting
the whey factor, but for the first time, included a dry
butterm |k factor. The Secretary wote:
After reviewing the various formulas, it is
concl uded the best updater would include the
follow ng products and representative price
series: Gade AA butter, Chicago Mercantile
Exchange (AAB); nonfat dry mlk, Central States
Production Area NFDM dry butterm |k, Central
States Production Area (DBM; cheddar cheese,
40- pound bl ock, National Cheese Exchange (NCE);
and G-ade A butter, Chicago Mercantile Exchange
(AB). Dry whey is not included in the formula
because not all cheese manufacturers process whey
and the disposal of it is a cost to nany
manufacturers. Furthernore, dry whey is no | onger
included in calculating the cheese purchase price
under the dairy support program
(60 Fed. Reg. 7301)

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Read that l|ast clause, please, in the quote.

A. Furthernore, dry whey is no longer included in
cal cul ating the cheese purchase price under the dairy price
support program

Q Thank you.

A, Wile the politics of the 1985 FarmBill ultimately
changed the cal cul ation of the BFP by del eting whey fromthe
formul a, neverthel ess, the value of whey continued to be
inplicitly included in the base, BFP, through the base nonth

MWprice. Consequently, since 1961, value of whey has al ways
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been included in the National Federal O der price for
manufacturing mlk.
Prior to Federal Order Reform several Federal Orders

were anmended to include nultiple conponent pricing (MCP).
These order hearings were held on an individual narketing area
basi s and subject to decision maki ng based on hearing evi dence.
For instance, Order 30 provided a protein price calculated by
mul tiplying 1.32 tinmes the average nonthly 40-pound bl ock
cheddar cheese price as reported by the National Cheese
Exchange. The pre-Reformother solids price for Federal Order,
for FMMO 30, was cal cul ated by subtracting the butterfat and
protein values fromthe announced BFP price and dividing by the
market's other solids percentage. Wile other Federal Orders
that had MCP pricing utilized in different fornula to determ ne
the order's protein price, the Class |1l price was the starting
price for all orders.

Q Read that again starting wwth "the Class IIll price."

A. Wiich was the starting price for all orders, was the
Nati onal BFP.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Let ne stop you, just so it's clear.

MR. SCHAD: Want ne to read the sentence?

JUDGE CLI FTON: No, just start wth the word "the O ass
[1l price." Start there. And say it.

MR. SCHAD: The Cdass Il price, which was the starting

point for all orders, was the National BFP. Thus, at standard
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test, can the national Cass IIl price in all orders was the
BFP.
B. Exceptions to Price Uniformty in Prices for MIk

used in Manufacturing: dass III-A
BY MR BESHORE:

Q That's a header? That's a headi ng?

A.  That's a headi ng.

Q Thank you.

A, The price for mlk used to produce nonfat dry mlKk,
Gass Il1-A was established in the Novenber of 1992 in three

Federal Orders: FMMO s 1, 4, and 124. In Cctober 20, 1993,

Cass Ill-A decision -- I'msorry, let me start that again.
In the Cctober 20, 1993 Class Il1-A decision, the
Secretary noted that the new Class IIl1-A classification

affected only mlk used to produce nonfat dry mlk (not butter)
and reiterated his support for national pricing for cheese and
butterfat. The 1993 deci sion expanded dass Ill-A pricing from
the three original orders; Oders 1, 4, and 124, to an
additional 26 Federal Orders. And | refer to [Docket
AO 14- Z65-R02, etcetera; DA-91-013.] The Secretary noted that
establishing Cass IIl-Apricing in alimted nunber of markets
caused price msalignnents in adjacent markets.
(58 Fed. Reg. 58112, 58114, and 58115, (1993))

The fornula nake all owances that were used to determ ne

the dass Il1l1-A were the nake all owances |egislated in the
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Comodity Credit Corporation's Dairy Price Support Program
The 1993 decision reiterated the earlier three market

deci sions by continuing the Western Orders' use of the average
Dairy Market News Western Powder Price for orders Wst of the
Rocky Mountains (FMMO 124, 131, and 135) and the average Dairy
Market News Central States Powder Price for the other affected
mar kets. The recommended deci sion proposed to use the Western
Powder Price in all orders for the Formula Commodity Price,

however, the Secretary reversed hinmself and wote:

There is obviously sonme | ocation val ue associ at ed
with nonfat dry mlk as dairies with other

fini shed manufacturing products |ike cheese and
butter. However, manufacturers of these finished
products conpete with each other for sales

t hroughout the nation. Thus, currently, the

m nimum price used for these products is uniform
t hroughout the country, with some m nor
exceptions. This ensures that all processors of
t hese products have the same starting point in
terns of the mninmumprice for mlk. They are
then left to conpete with sales with each other,
for sales throughout the country. |In sone areas,
t he processors woul d have a | ocation advant age
over conpetitors, and in sone areas a

di sadvantage. However, the nmarketplace, and not
differences in the mnimumprice for mlk, would
determ ne the relative advantages in order to

al |l ow conpetitive forces to continue to operate.
The recommended I11-A decision concluded --

Q Excuse ne, start that sentence again, M. Schad.
A
The recomended deci si on concl uded that the C ass

I11-A price should be uniform anong the Federal
Order nmarkets, as is currently the case with the

Cass Il price. Using different powder prices in
the dass IlIl-A fornulas could result in
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manuf acturing plants dependi ng on where the
dividing line is established. For using different
prices, the recommended deci si on concl uded.
Establishing different price |evels would not be
consistent with the price support programand the
nati onal market nature of the nonfat dry mlKk
mar ket, the reconmended decision further
concl uded.
The Secretary went on to note --
Q Could you repeat the source?
A. (58 Fed. Reg. At page 58124.)
Q The Secretary went on to note that the Western Price
was | ower than the Central nonfat dry mlk prices, but not
al ways at the same magnitude. \Wen the nonfat dry mlk prices
were high, the difference would be greater. And when the
nonfat dry mlk price was |ower, the difference between the
price series narrowed. Between Septenber 1991 and August 1992,
the difference between the price series ranged from 2.4 cents
per pound to 6.2 cents per pound, an average 4 cents for the
period. Noting that about 60 percent of the nonfat dry mlk
was manufactured in the Western Region, the Secretary opted to
maintain the regional price factor in the Class Il1-A fornul a.
In doing so, the Secretary rejected a suggestion --
JUDGE CLI FTON: Let ne stop you. Start again with d ass
[II-A at the end of the sentence.
MR SCHAD: Class Ill-A price formula. |In doing so, the

Secretary rejected the suggestion that the formula use the

Central state's price and discount that price for the Wstern
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Order by affixed amount to represent transportation. He noted
that the difference in prices between the price series,
fl uctuat ed.
Al so, this sane citing, at page 58124 and 125.
O the 33 Federal Oders included --
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Excuse ne, read, start again that sentence.

A O the 31, I'msorry -- of the 31 Federal Oders
included in the 1999 annual summary, 21 Orders had provisions
for dass Ill-A pricing.

Due to the seasonal adjusters of the three Northeast
Orders and the two separate price series (Central States and
Western States) there were five different nmonthly prices for
the 23 orders. However, the variation of the 1999 average
Cass IIl-A price series, was slight:

Order 1, $12.14; Order 2, $12.22; Order 4, $12.16;
Western Area, (Pacific Northwest, Central Arizona, and
Sout hwest ern | daho, and Eastern Oregon Orders) $12.04; and the
QG her Areas, including Carolina, Southeast, M chigan Upper
Peni nsul a, Southern M chigan, Eastern Chio, Wstern
Pennsyl vania, GChio Valley, Indiana, Chicago Regional,
Loui svi |l | e-Lexi ngton-Evansvi |l e, Upper M dwest, |owa,
Nebr aska- Western | owa, Southwestern Plains, and
New Mexi co-West Texas, $12.14.

There was an 18 cent per hundredwei ght range of the
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1999 average Cass Il1-A prices between the New York and

New Jersey Order and the | owest prices in the Western Order.

| cite --
Q \Western?
A Area.
Q Thank you.

A | cite (1999 Federal MIk Order Statistics Annua
Sunmmrary, Table 30).
JUDGE CLIFTON: Read the cite again, please.
MR, SCHAD: 1999 Federal M|k Marketing Order Statistics
Annual Sunmary, Table 30.
JUDGE CLIFTON:. |I'mgoing to stop you there, we're on page
12. | just want everybody to stand for five m nutes.
Ch ny goodness, we have used our tine.
MR. BESHORE: Maybe finish a paragraph and we'll be out.
JUDGE CLI FTON: So that we will be at a stopping point.
Yes, you may continue to read, if you would, please M. Schad.
MR, SCHAD: It is inportant to note that in 1993, a
sal es-wei ght ed national average nonfat dry mlk price was not
avai lable. The Secretary had to rely on a voluntary and
unaudi t ed survey of unwei ghted weekly sales of nonfat dry mlk
reported in the Dairy Market News. Had the Secretary had
access to a national weighted average nonfat dry mlk price
that woul d have been, that woul d have been influenced by the

Western Regions, 60 percent of nation's production as the NASS
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price is, he may have cone to a different conclusion on the
establishnent of Regional dass Ill-A prices. Nevertheless,
when you allow for the seasonal adjusters in the three
Nort heast Orders that woul d have been present even w thout
Cass IIl-Apricing, the average Class Il11-A difference was 10
cents per hundredwei ght. The infornal rule making process of
Federal Order Reformallowed AMS to better standardize and make
uniform the prices frommlk used to produce Class II, |11,
and 1V products. As a result of Federal Order Reform since
2000, no Federal Order contains a seasonal pricing provision,
nor does any Federal Order include regional pricing factors
used in that manufacturing.

Q Read the last the | ast sentence again

A As aresult a Federal Order Reform since 2000, no
Federal Order contains a seasonal pricing provision, nor does
any Federal Order include regional pricing factors for mlk
used i n manufacturing.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Now - -

MR, BESHORE: We will stop there for the day.
JUDGE CLIFTON: | think that's a good plan.
M. Beshore, | want to go back to first full paragraph,

the sentence starts "it is inportant to note" and the w tness
properly read the end of the second |line of that paragraph as

bei ng "unwei ghted" is that correct?
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MR. BESHORE: That is correct.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. So I'mgoing to ask Ms. Elliott to change
the record copies. This is Exhibit 70, page 12, the first ful
par agraph the second line, the last word reads "unwei ghed" and
it should read "unwei ghted."

MR. BESHORE: There's a "T" mi ssing.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So the record copies will be conforned
accordingly.

MR, BESHORE: Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So when we resume, we'll take the next part

of page 12, which begins with a heading at the bottom of the

page.

I's there anything else prelimnary to our going off
record? There is nothing. 1'Il see you here. You are wel cone
to come as early as 8:00, we'll go on record at 9:00.

Ri ght now we go off record at 5:01.
(Wher eupon, the evening recess was taken.)

---000- - -
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